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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the "Group"; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group celebrates its 95 anniversary
this year and forges ahead into a new chapter of success, guided by a vision: "To be the leading global
jewellery brand that is a trusted lifetime partner for every generation".

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand "CHOW TAI FOOK" has become an emblem of tradition,
celebrated for its bold designs and an unwavering attention to detail. Building upon a rich heritage and a
foundation of trust, the Group is not only widely recognised for honouring traditions but also for fostering
deep, meaningful connections with a diverse customer base through its products. The Group's long-
standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has been integral to its success over time and has
become synonymous with excellence, value and authenticity.

As a leading Chinese jeweller, the Group believes in blending contemporary cutting-edge designs with
traditional techniques to create jewellery that can be passed down from generation to generation. Every
collection is thoughtfully conceived and crafted to reflect the stories of our customers, celebrating the
special moments in their lives. Committed to growing alongside our customers, the Group embraces a
spirit that aspires to inspire and captivate generations to come, weaving the story of CHOW TAI FOOK
into the fabric of their lives.

Offering a wide variety of products, services and channels, the Group's brand portfolio comprises the
CHOW TAI FOOK flagship brand with curated retail experiences, and other individual brands including
HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group is committed to delivering sustainable long-term value creation for its stakeholders by
enhancing the quality of earnings and driving higher value growth. With an extensive retail network of
nearly 8,000 stores across China as well as multiple locations globally, and a growing e-commerce
business, the Group is implementing targeted online-to-offline ("O20") strategies to strengthen its
competitiveness in today's omni-channel retail environment.
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A SNAPSHOT OF

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP
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Chow Tai Fook Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Website Jewellery Brand Website Our Brands
AXERESRERELY B K18 Tk & G2 & 48 id 1P B 6o B2

Corporate Presentation Corporate Video Our Sustainability Reports
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We value feedback from our stakeholders as it is important for us to ensure continuous

improvement of our reporting quality. We invite you to share your views by email to ir@chowtaifook.com.
HMEHRFNENER, NERRSEEB/IUFELES
RSB B TEAERRENESEBEME ir@chowtaifook.com,
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

Despite macro challenges which impacted all businesses, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group achieved record high revenue and core
operating profit in FY2024. The Group's revenue increased 14.8% to HK$108,713 million during the financial year, or by 18.5% on a
constant exchange rate basis. Core operating profit increased 28.9% to HK$12,163 million

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets experienced excellent business momentum, with its revenue climbed 45.6% year-on-year,

which is attributed to the continued recovery in inbound tourism

We achieved encouraging profitability enhancement, core operating profit margin improved by 120 basis points to 11.2% during this

financial year

Our brand transformation is on track to elevate brand desirability, customer experience and fuel sustainable growth, with the

unveiling of our new consumer-facing logos, brand website and the signature CTF Rouge Collection

As we celebrate our 95" anniversary, we are embarking on a transformative journey with our vision "To be the leading global

jewellery brand that is a trusted lifetime partner for every generation”, with a steadfast commitment to driving higher value growth
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA
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Revenue *
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HK$ million
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108,713
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Net gearing ratio A
BFERRELER A
2024

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2023

/8.2% 27¢%

Net assets per share *
sREERE "
2024

2.7

2023

3.3 i

1. Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income, less 1.
selling and distribution costs, general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss (gain) on gold
loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

2. Included the proposed final dividend of HK$0.30 per share are subject to the approval of shareholders 2.

at the forthcoming annual general meeting

*For the year ended 31 March 2024
CHE2024F3A N BILFE

"As at 31 March 2024
AfR202443H 318
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Core operating profit ™
BEERN ™

HK$ million
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CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY RETAIL NETWORK AND PERFORMANCE "
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Mainland China
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143
movement
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Hong Kong & Macau of China Other markets
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3/ 03
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+42.4%

CHOW TAI FOOK EMPLOYEES
JH R AR E T

Total number of employees
BTHHN

28 200+

Number of employees by reportable segment
RO 2MAEEINFETEE

8 3 . O% gn;;;ﬂd China

Hong Kong & Macau of China
1 7 O(y and other markets
. @) PEBE. PERMREDTIE

3. CTF WATCH POS excluded

"As at 31 March 2024
~fR202493H31H
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CHOW TAI FOOK MEMBERSHIP PROGRAMME *
J& R A BEE

Total number of members

~6005000

Members' repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV
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FINANCIAL AND

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
¥ K S ETE S

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March H#EIASIHLEE BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
Revenue B¥H 56,751 70,164 98,938 94,684 108,713
Gross profit EA 16,096 20,075 22,340 21172 22,285
Core operating profit’ FTEESHRN 5,687 8,630 10,002 9,439 12,163
Profit for the year FE A 2,983 6,176 6,880 5,490 6,607
Profit attributable to shareholders TR 2\ 5] RS 58 JE G % A 2,901 6,026 6,712 5,384 6,499
of the Company
Earnings per share (HK$) SrREBRN(ET) 0.29 0.60 0.67 0.54 0.65
Dividend per share (HK$) SRER(ET)
Full year dividend (HK$) 2ERB(ET) 0.24 0.40 0.50 0.50 0.55
Special dividend (HK$) HRIEE(ET) - - - 0.72 =
Gross profit margin ER = 28.4% 28.6% 22.6% 22.4% 20.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin? KRB ENERNZE? 29.6% 28.2% 23.4% 23.7% 22.8%
Core operating profit margin’ EEEEEN R 10.0% 12.3% 10.1% 10.0% 11.2%
Net profit margin B A= 5.3% 8.8% 7.0% 5.8% 6.1%
Full year dividend payout ratio® EEIRBE: 82.7% 66.4% 74.5% 92.9% 84.6%
1. Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of 1. EERA AR SR R E RS A E ), BERRENENR A

W 1G5, R ES K Y B AR AR — R R AT S, R BB 1S I % UK A B B
BT HREGERR L EBNERBE S

adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

2. Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on gold 2. EEHBEEOENE(FEEERIBRSENE), NRTESBENRSREER(KE)
loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its NEE, KASEGHBBEENERHTRESEREREBNERESR
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

3. Special dividend excluded 3. AEERFRRR

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 March K3A31H BHEET BEET BERET BEEBT BEET
Non-current assets JERENE E 10,038 9,065 9,612 10,074 9,637
Current assets mEEE 55,205 55,243 78,126 77,267 79,182
Current liabilities neEasi 35,627 29,142 49,629 51,022 57,520
Net current assets mENEEFH 19,579 26,101 28,496 26,245 21,662
Non-current liabilities EREER 2,626 3,598 3,553 2,959 4,553
Net assets BEFH 26,991 31,568 34,555 33,360 26,746
Total assets BERE 65,243 64,308 87,737 87,341 88,819
Inventories TF& 42,538 43,01 57,254 59,290 64,647
Bank deposits and cash equivalents* RITEMRRIBEHFEY 7,219 6,032 14,942 1,734 7,695
Bank borrowings RITER 11,431 6,418 9,065 5,855 4136
Gold loans EHEEE 11,280 5,725 15,721 15,086 24,488
Net debt® &8 % %E 5 15,492 6,11 9,844 9,207 20,928
Net assets per share (HK$) GREEZFH(ET) 27 32 35 33 2.7
Net gearing ratio® FEREGELLZER. 57.4% 19.4% 28.5% 27.6% 78.2%
Inventory turnover period (day)’ FEFEEEA( X8 ) 381 312 272 294 274
Return on equity® i 7K [o) 3R % © 1.1% 19.6% 19.9% 16.5% 24.7%

4. Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included 4. BUFRITHBRRRE RIGHIRITER

5. Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents 5. RITEHMRESBEZRB(OMRBTFEAREEEMEN)

6. Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by total equity 6. RITHAREBEEHZBREIRRITEFRRREZFEN) FRAEZAER

7. Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by 7. BNRESHURTHEGH (FEE L) BRIUAF RIS, BRIA36581366

cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

8. Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year

b Overview
16k 58

A i I Bk LA £F ARORE 2 4 B

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBEHRESEARAS



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

For the year ended 31 March H#EIASIHLEE BEET BEET BEET BHEET BEET
Operating cash flows before SEEREF 2 8E 9,912 1,572 11,984 11,619 15,491
movements in working capital RERE
Net cash from KEEHMREEEFE 8,364 10,476 13,938 10,066 13,836
operating activities
Net cash used in RETFHTAREFESR (1,025) (693) (1,458) (1,782) (717)
investing activities
Net cash used in RlEEE AR E e (7,653) (11,188) (3,793) (10,705) (16,830)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in HERIEREBY (314) (1,404) 8,688 (2,421) (3,711)
cash and cash equivalents R )EER
Capital expenditure BIRESZ (973) (839) (1,531) (1,982) (963)
Pro forma free cash flows? HEEHRIRSR’ 5,208 6,646 10,901 6,174 11,064
9. Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, capital 9. EEEBAGAR)RRFRARETAE. BERELRH. ERESREDESFE
expenditure and net movements for gold loans
For the year ended 31 March #HEIAMBLEE 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Mainland China o & A it
SSSG FEIGHERE (15.1% 31.9% 1.1% (13.1)% 1.8%
SSS volume growth EEHERE (24.0)% 8.2% 7.6% (18.1% (4.8)%
Hong Kong & Macau of China oh B & i o B R
SSSG BEEHEER (38.7)% (41.3)% 24.7% 18.3% 42.4%
SSS volume growth EEHERE (43.5)% (42.9)% 51.0% (12.1)% 32.0%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE( )
Mainland China oh & A ith 12,699,000 15,893,000 22,118,000 21,988,000 23,774,000
Hong Kong & Macau of China and PEESE. PEIEME 2392000 1,189,000 1,674,000 1,494,000 2,108,000
other markets HAhmii5
As at 31 March R3A31H 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
POS distribution FEHAM®
Mainland China oo B N i 3,829 " 45971 5,934 " 7510 7,640
Hong Kong, China PETE 87 82 76 66 68
Macau, China o [ 8 P 18 18 19 20 20
Taiwan, China hEsE 18 18 20 20 20
Cambodia SRR 1 1 1 1 1
Canada EX - - - 1 2
Japan H 7k 3 1 1 2 2
Korea b 5 9 7 7 7 7
Malaysia R PO 4 4 5 6 7
Philippines JEEE 1 1 1 2 2
Singapore 05 4 4 5 6 7
Thailand el 1 1 1 2 3
United States E[E 2 1 1 1 1
Vietnam il dea] 1 1 1 2 2
Total st 3,978 4,736 6,072 7,646 7,782

10. SIS and CIS excluded
11. Restated to reflect the split and combination of HUA exclusive zones
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR AWARDS AND

RECOGNITIONS
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Institutional Investor's 2023 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings — Asia (ex-Mainland China) — Consumer/ Discretionary

WEREZE 203FEDNERESREERETHERNEMTE(RPBRE) - FUNHFHERER

All-Star Status — Rest of Asia

Most Honored Company — Combined — 1% place

Best CEO — Combined — Kent Wong — 1¢t place

Best CFO — Combined — Hamilton Cheng — 1% place
Best IR Professional — Combined — Danita On — 1 place
Best IR Program — Combined — 1<t place

Best ESG — Combined — 1¢* place

Best Board of Directors — Combined — 1%t place

Best IR Team — Combined — 2" place

13t Asian Excellence Award 2023
S8+ = J& 25 ) =2 K 88 2023
Asia's Best CEO — Kent Wong
Asia's Best CFO — Hamilton Cheng
Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On
Best Investor Relations Company
Best Corporate Communications
TMRETRARN - =288
5 1 B 15 B S 48 B - BB AR
EEREBTHEEREE - IR
EEREERERTSE
wIERFEEM

Lonporatebiemanay

8 Overview

TLES

SHAEAL - SN E b E
EXERETE-REG -%—%
RETHARN - 76 - 88E -5 —%8
EEEFUBER - 475 - SRR - 55—
FEEREEHEEE - K5 - YRG - F—1
EERBEEHENR - FE6 - F— 1
RERE. HBREB -6 -%—F8
RENCIEEYE - &5 - F—1
REREBERFEER - 5 - £ -8

HKIRA 9t Investor Relations Awards
FBNESEBEREEREKNE

Best IR by Chairman/ CEO — Kent Wong

Best IR by CFO — Hamilton Cheng

Best IRO — Danita On

Best Annual Report
RERBERE(ER/ITRAY) - BEE
REREEMER(IIEER ) - BIHER
EEREEHEEE - SR&

REFR

Master-Insight ESG Awards 2023
K B85 2% ESG K 22 2023

Top ESG Performance Awards
ESGIE SR B3 K4

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



GOVERNANCE

[t 32
EiA

HKICPA Best Corporate Governance and ESG Awards 2023
HFR GO RERFE ISR ESGKHE 2023

Corporate Governance Award — Hang Seng Index Category
EREIGE - EfFa N RER

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2023
FBRESITEN S LS FE X8 2023

2023 HKMA Best Annual Reports Awards
SEREEEERT 023FHEFIRILE
Citation for Design
Best Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Award (Retail)
BHERTHRE

RERRE. HEREBEHNRSE(TE)

LACP 2022 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
LACP 202217 B8 & FF 3R K&
Gold Award

HKEJ Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2023
SR A4S £ T B s K88 2023
Blue-chip (Honor Award)

BHGREXE)

Wmil 43 neun -
rEasExe 2023

= S OF EXCELLENCE

<~ LISTED COMPANY A

Annual Report 2024
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The 12t Junzi Corporation Award

BT TEIBFERFER ]
Junzi Corporation Award
BFERE

S&P Global Sustainability Yearbook (China) 2023
T2 oI E R E A D EMR )2023)

The International Annual Report Design Awards 2023

2023 [E PR F ¥R 5% 5T K28
Bronze Award (Overall Presentation: Annual Report)
Bronze Award (Overall Presentation: Sustainability Report)
SRAE( ARG ER - IR )
A REER  TRHEERRS )

LACP 2022 Vision Awards Sustainability Report Competition
LACP 2022 B RO EH R MSEKE
Gold Award

Jewellery World Awards
JWA K42

"Extraordinary 40" Awards — Kent Wong
[AFJL40 | K% - mAEE

ordina,
)
I

JEWELLERY WORLD AWARDS

Kent Wong Siu-Kee
o

,’5 anaging Director,
"/ Tai Fook Jewellery Group

nan,
‘swsimv =3
BoEm

WD HONG 10nG

Major Awards and Recognitions
FERIAR 55T



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
g A S H AT
UNSDG Achievement Awards Hong Kong 2023

G E O] {48 3 fr B 55 8 P B 88 2023

Recognised Projects (Project Name: Neutralization of used
Acid and Alkaline to reduce the disposal)
BRAUIRE(IRESM  BEPNIREE)

CORPORATE AND BRANDING
A 56 Bl i

2023-2024 World Branding Awards
2023-2024 1 57 53 & K 48

Brand of The Year — Jewellery Retailer — Hong Kong
FESBEHRETEH oM

Retail Asia Awards 2023
2023 38 i = & K 42

Jewellery Retailer of the Year — China
FEHREFER(PEH)

P PRESENTED BY:

, retailasia REAFESTATE ASIA

retail as'~:
) AWARDS

#l L4
#Rez tesr rards
15 June 20’ ina Bi i» Singapore

10 Overview
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Consumer Caring Scheme 2023
2023 F B IR S 2 T BT 8l

Consumer Caring 10+ Years Award

INEEI +FE+8

Forbes China Guochao Innovation Selection

7@ 10 A o B B ) Bl T 5T 3

Forbes China Guochao Innovation Brand 2023
& 7 B ob [0 [0 90 Al T &8 hE 2023

China New Business Leaders Summit Award 2023
2023 0P B 8 3 51 35 71 S5 0 U B 2

China New Business Best Brand Leader Award 2023
2023 00 [l 7 T 34 7] B 1 SR MR B MR K AR

2023 HKRMA Top 10 O20 Retail Brands Award
03B BEEEEME T KO20F & mhg K4

Top 10 O20 Retail Brands
TKO20FERE

2023 Top Influential Brands Awards
0BFREPE @

Most Trustworthy Brand Premium Jewellery

EHRWEER - RESEHRRM

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



SERVICE
IR %5

2023 HKRMA Service Talent Award
03B BETEEEHE IR

My Favorite Outstanding Service Retail Brand (Top 10 by
public voting)

Best Training Award — Bronze Award

Individual Award Winner — Supervisory Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Gold Award

Individual Award Winner — Junior Frontline Level (Watch & Visit our Group website for more
Jewellery Category) — Gold Award & Outstanding awards and recognitions
FREETAGRERBEZE R BERERALTHRESRIENRES

RIFIHIIE - 528
BELKEEEA - TEEAE - &4
EERLREEEA - EEEALE - £48 ( BUXRIEE

2023 HKRMA Quality Service Retailers of the Year The Straits Times — Singapore's Best Customer Service 2023/24
VBEEBEEEEREMEREEERBETE/H L TBIREFER - H0IK & £ 5 P AR 28 2023/24

Service Retailer of the Year — Chain Stores (Gold Award) - "High Jewelry Retailers" category

EEBERBZTER - HEE (228) - | ERIREZTER | A

Singapore Retailers Association Excellent Service Award 2023

03 2 6 7 i s AR 2E 2023

SRA

PRESENTATION CEREMONY

THURSDAY 9 NOVEMBER 2023 | 9.00AM TO 11.30AM

Annual Report 2024 Major Awards and Recognitions 1"
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
TR S

"As Chow Tai Fook Jewellery celebrates 95 years of excellence, we
honour our legacy while looking steadfastly towards the future. We are
in the process of writing an exciting new chapter in our brand's story,
guided by our vision: To be the leading global jewellery brand that is a
trusted lifetime partner for every generation."

| BXBIREEEBARISTF AN 2B, KRNE@EREIEEaT, MR
R, KE [ SIERETR, mfﬂkfﬂ‘ﬁ/\ij HR =, #S5EH G
BB LR E. |

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 5 5t 4l & +
Chairman & &




DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

FY2024 marks a year of record high revenue and core operating profit
("COP") as we celebrate the momentous milestone of our 95t
anniversary. In light of these achievements, | wish to express my
gratitude to all stakeholders who have made this possible through

their unwavering support and trust.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery has uniquely shone as a globally recognised
icon of Chinese artistry and culture, committed to quality,
craftsmanship and customer satisfaction. To enhance our long-term
competitiveness and drive higher value growth, we continue to
diligently execute on our five strategic priorities: brand
transformation, product optimisation, accelerated digitalisation,

operational efficiency and talent cultivation.

DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE VALUE

During FY2024, the Group successfully grew its revenue by 14.8% to
HK$108,713 million. Thanks to our disciplined approach in cost
management, COP increased by 28.9% to HK$12,163 million, which
operating margin improved to 11.2%. This exceptional performance led
to record-high levels for both revenue and COP. Profit attributable to
shareholders grew by 20.7% to HK$6,499 million. Earnings per share
was HK$0.65. The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.30
per share, bringing the dividend per share for the year to HK$0.55.
The full year payout ratio in FY2024 was approximately 84.6%.

As we make steady progress towards higher value growth, we expect
sustained momentum through the medium term driven by our ongoing

brand transformation journey.

REMAINING AGILE IN THE FACE OF CHANGE

Despite the macro challenges facing the global economy, the Group
achieved excellent results, a testament to our ability to enhance
earnings quality and deliver sustained value creation for all
stakeholders. We remain vigilant in our approach, monitoring and
responding promptly to evolving consumer behaviours to capture new

growth opportunities.
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In Mainland China (the "Mainland"), the 2024 Government Work Report
of the Central Government set a GDP growth target of around 5%.
Anchored by supportive policy that prioritises "new productive forces"
and promotes domestic consumption, we remain confident in the
Mainland jewellery market over the mid- to long-term. Furthermore,
due to the growing enthusiasm among young Chinese consumers for
purchasing jewellery products as part of the Guochao wave ("national
trend"), along with the value preservation nature of gold, we expect

that jewellery demand in the Mainland will remain resilient.

While in Hong Kong and Macau of China, we noticed that the surge in
visitors boosted our store traffic, but spending remained prudent.
Aligned with our five strategic priorities, we are working to enhance
the customer experience across omni-channel touchpoints to cater
the evolving consumption preferences of both the local consumer

base and travel retail market.

In other markets, we expect opportunities from the rising middle class
and projected economic growth in Southeast Asian countries. We look
forward to expand our retail network strategically in the region driven

by the recovery in tourism and sustained local demand for jewellery.

OUR BRAND TRANSFORMATION JOURNEY

Our history traces important stories and life moments of our
customers, while our jewellery pieces transcend generations of
families, as do our commitments to extend a legacy with quality and
integrity, as well as to relentlessly focus on consumer preferences and
needs. We commit to preserving and honouring Chinese jewellery
craftsmanship, drawing reference to China's rich history in our pieces,
while differentiating our design aesthetic and refining our products to

meet the evolving tastes of the next generation of our customers.

It is imperative that we stay relevant and modern in our thinking and
practices to continue our leadership position in the industry. As part
of this evolution, we have made it a priority to provide a crystal-clear
direction that aligns everyone towards a common goal. Through core
values revitalisation and effective communication via various internal
channels, we cultivate a corporate culture that unite our people and

empower them to work together towards shared success.
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EMPOWERING THE NEXT GENERATION
THROUGH CULTURAL PRESERVATION

At Chow Tai Fook Jewellery, we are committed to supporting the
sustainable development of the jewellery industry. Preserving and
passing on Chinese artistry and culture are among the key initiatives
that we have been pursuing to attract and develop the next
generation of talent for the jewellery industry. Through our dedicated
Incubation Hub in Shunde, China, as well as comprehensive
scholarships and internship programme for students in the Mainland
and Hong Kong, we will actively impart valuable knowledge and know-
how, and create significant opportunities to foster youth career

development in the jewellery industry.

Thank you once again to everyone who has supported the
development of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery: to our shareholders and
investors, customers, business partners, all our staff, management
teams, as well as my fellow Board members. We have had a
tremendous start to our five-year transformation journey towards
centennial celebrations in 2029, and we will remain steadfast in

driving long-term, sustainable growth for our stakeholders.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 13 June 2024
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OVERVIEW OF

CORPORATE STRATEGY

ERR IS

Despite ongoing macro-economic and geopolitical uncertainties, we
delivered record high revenue and core operating profit in FY2024.
This builds on our strong track record of creating value sustainably for
shareholders over the last 95 years and a testament to our positioning
as an industry leader. We adapted promptly to the fast-evolving
market conditions and complexities whilst focused on capitalising on
market opportunities as they emerge. We shall continue to pave the

way for innovation and leadership in the market.

By upholding the highest standards of Chinese jewellery
craftsmanship and fostering deeper relationships with the next
generation of customers, we are fully committed to driving higher

value growth.

PROGRESS ON KEY STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

The Group has been diligently executing the five strategic
priorities across brand transformation, product optimisation,
accelerated digitalisation, operational efficiency and talent

cultivation, to strengthen its long-term competitiveness.

With a focus on enhancing earnings quality with improved returns
on equity and capital, the Group also continues to adopt
disciplined cost management to deliver sustained value creation

for all stakeholders.

Brand transformation progressing as we celebrated our
05" anniversary
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery's 95™ anniversary is a momentous
milestone where we leverage our brand legacy to embark on a
transformation journey. Through the implementation of the five
strategic priorities, we aim to elevate our brand image and strive
to enhance the customer experience. This empowers us to

resonate with consumers in a stronger way.

We refreshed our brand image this April by unveiling new
consumer-facing logos that reflects the brand's rich legacy in a

modern and dynamic fashion.
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To celebrate our 95" anniversary, we unveiled the CTF Rouge
Collection in April, which is inspired by the passionate hues of red
and the auspicious symbol of good fortune "4g@". The Collection is
a clear embodiment of Chinese culture, our innovation and
craftsmanship and with timeless designs featuring natural
diamonds, pearl, enamel and gold. A 360-degree global marketing
campaign, involving omni-channel tactics, was activated to
promote the signature CTF Rouge Collection and it received very

positive market response.

We have appointed Mr. Nicholas Lieou as Creative Director, High
Jewellery, to drive brand elevation and design new product
collections, including the CTF Rouge Collection. In his role, he leads
the creation of modernised high jewellery, catering to the desires
of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery's exclusive clientele. His appointment
exemplifies our focus on bringing the highest calibre creative and
business talent into the Group to help differentiate our brand and
product offerings that translate into long-term competitiveness

and resilience in revenue.

Refreshing omni-channels to elevate customer experience

18

New group and brand websites were launched in April to create an
enhanced customer experience. The new brand website's improved
features and streamlined design ensure a seamless shopping
experience, reflecting the Group's dedication to customer

satisfaction.

Also, the application of Artificial Intelligence ("Al") allows us to
deliver personalised content and product recommendations to CTF
Club app users and visitors of our brand website, enhancing their

overall retail experience and online engagement.

We are launching two stores with new image. The store in Central,
Hong Kong with a refreshed image, will launch in the third quarter
of 2024, and the new 5-storey store in Shanghai, the Group's first
flagship store in Mainland China, is expected to be revealed in
2025. Over the next five years, all stores will undergo a strategic
refurbishment, culminating in the celebration of our 100t

anniversary in 2029.
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Leveraging digital capabilities to make timely business
decision and enhance operational efficiency

In FY2024, we expanded the use of Al in our operations and
bolstered our data management capabilities by constructing a
comprehensive data lake that seamlessly integrates diverse data
sources. By building this centralised data repository, we are
empowered to derive deeper insights in less time and make data-
driven decisions across key areas, including product planning,
supply chain, and customer journey optimisation. For instance,
during FY2024, we conducted a trial run that incorporated
predictive analytics for more accurate product demand forecasting.
This allows us to optimise our production, automate replenishment
based on daily sales data. By doing so, we aim to deliver the right

products to the right place at the right time.

Talent cultivation and corporate culture

As part of our brand transformation, we revitalised our core values
recently, recognising their pivotal role in shaping our organisational
culture and driving our success. These values were co-created
through a series of collaborative workshops involving staff
members at different levels, fostering a more cohesive and
purpose-driven corporate culture. The workshops provided a
platform for active participation and collaboration, ensuring that

the values truly reflect the beliefs and aspirations of our workforce.

Our five core values — work collaboratively, act with integrity,
be open-minded, take ownership, and be passionate — serve as the
foundation for executing our five strategic priorities and achieving
our business goals. Through ongoing communication,
reinforcement, and the embodiment of these values in our daily
work, we are building a stronger, more resilient organisation that is

poised for long-term success.

Disciplined and prudent capital management

We continue to prioritise strong cash flow generation to ensure
ample liquidity. Inventory turnover improved, led by the strong
demand for gold jewellery and seasonal festive campaigns. In line
with management's expectations, we achieved our target of
improving inventory turnover days from 294 in FY2023 to 274 in
FY2024.

We intend to adopt a calibrated approach to ensure the capital
expenditure and selling, general and administrative ratio remain in
line with our annual historical average for financial prudence as we

sustain our growth trajectory.
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CHOW TAI FOOK
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CTF Rouge Collection
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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MAINLAND CHINA

Market review

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total
retail sales of consumer goods increased by 7.2% year-on-year in
2023. Notably, the retail sales of gold, silver and jewellery also
increased 13.3%, indicating the continued positive momentum of
the country's steady economic recovery. This growth trajectory
was reinforced in the first 3 months of 2024, with sustained

growth recorded in both retail sales figures.

Despite the challenging macro environment, jewellery consumption
in Mainland China remained resilient, fuelled by festive demand
and consumers enhanced appreciation of Chinese aesthetics and

craftmanship in gold jewellery.

Business highlights

Strong sales performance supported by festive period and
continuous product optimisation

22

Despite the dynamic market conditions, we continued to witness
resilient jewellery consumption during festive and holiday periods
throughout FY2024. Strength in gold products continued given its
nature of value preservation and defensiveness amidst the
uncertain macro environment and its increasing popularity among
youngsters. Our signature gold jewellery HUA Collection, which
blends traditional craftsmanship with modern designs, continued
to receive positive response from consumers and its RSV
experienced a year-on-year growth of approximately 20% in
FY2024.

Riding on the heightened appreciation of Chinese aesthetics and
craftsmanship in gold jewellery, we have been shifting focus from
weight-based pricing to fixed-price gold jewellery. These selective
products embody exquisite craftsmanship and differentiated value
from our weight-based pricing gold jewellery offerings. Since the
progressive roll-out in November 2023, the sales contribution of
higher margin fixed-price gold products has been steadily rising. This

reflects consumers' positive reception and a validation of our strategy.
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Our annual sale campaign alongside the successful launch of
Chinese zodiac themed products captured consumption
momentum for the Lunar New Year celebration. Brand new designs
of dragon-themed gold jewelleries and ornaments, such as the
Dragon of HUA Collection and "Dragon of Fortune" Collection
catered to festive demand and were well-received by the market.
With the auspicious meaning of "Loong" (Chinese translation of
dragon) in Chinese culture, these zodiac-themed gold products

were selling well.

Meanwhile, we launched the "Beyond Time" natural diamond
exhibition to raise consumer awareness of natural diamonds,
enhancing the desirability of gem-set jewellery. We brought
"Beyond Time" to Beijing in December 2023 and Shanghai in March
2024, following its successful debut in Hong Kong last September.
Through captivating multimedia interactive projections, the
exhibition offered a unique opportunity for the public to immerse

themselves in the allure of natural diamonds.

While we recognise that gem-set jewellery consumption was
influenced under the challenging external macro environment, we
have observed a stabilising sales trend across various gem-set
collections. With healthy sales, the performance of both the
Wonderful Life Collection and Chow Tai Fook Dancing Lily
Collection, exceeded management's expectations in FY2024. The
VELA Collection and the newly launched BARRE Collection of
HEARTS ON FIRE also registered strong sales. These encouraging
developments are testament that quality jewellery continues to be
favoured by consumers, underpinning our confidence on the long-

term prospects of diamond jewellery.
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Maximising capital efficiency and productivity for quality
earnings growth

Our capital management strategy to maximise capital efficiency is
aligned with overall POS management strategy. Our current
priorities are to maximise overall financial health of our POS
portfolio with a focus on store productivity and profitability. We
continuously optimise existing retail network strategically through
a combination of selective store openings and closures to enhance

operational efficiency and profitability.

As of 31 March 2024, there were a total of 7,403 CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS in Mainland China. Over 50% of our total stores
in the Mainland were opened in the last two to four years and we
have observed a healthy ramp-up across new stores in lower tier
cities. We continue to expect a gradual maturity of these stores to
generate an uplift to topline growth and operating leverage,

boosting our profitability in medium term.

We shall continue to support quality franchisees. For instance,
while top-down the Group will empower franchised stores with
data insights and guidance to drive business performance. Further,
we will strengthen our franchisee management and take
necessary rectifying actions to enforce our pricing strategy and

protect our brand.

Steady growth of e-commerce business

24

With our initiatives to enhance digital customer engagement, retail
sales value of our Mainland e-commerce business grew robustly at
18.8%. Its Average Selling Price ("ASP") increased by over 10% to
HK$2,080.

E-commerce contributed to more than 10% in terms of volume in
the Mainland, with a steady year-on-year growth of around 20% in

terms of RSV during the period.

Our content marketing strategy relies on data as its cornerstone.
While we harness various third-party e-commerce and social
platforms, like Tmall, JD.com, Douyin, and Xiaohongshu, we gain
valuable insights into customer behaviour. This empowers us to
make well-informed decisions regarding product selection and live
broadcast planning, thus maximising our visibility and outreach to

our targeted audiences.
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HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA

Market review
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According to government statistics, the total retail sales in Hong
Kong and Macau, experienced a growth of 16.2% and 49.5% year-
on-year in 2023 respectively.

While the phenomenon of local population heading north for
consumption has had relatively moderate impact on jewellery
consumption, the Hong Kong and Macau markets may continue to
be influenced by evolving consumption patterns and lower

spending by both inbound visitors and local residents.

Given Hong Kong and Macau's pricing advantage and the role that
gold jewellery plays in Chinese culture, there is a solid demand for
jewellery. Also, the government's measures to drive tourism, the
expansion of the individual visit scheme to eight more Mainland
cities, and a relatively manageable rental levels, further contribute
to our cautiously optimistic outlook on the profitability of the Hong
Kong and Macau segment in FY2025.

Business highlights

In Hong Kong and Macau, the sustained growth trend was
supported by the inbound travel of Mainland tourists, coupled with
the Lunar New Year holiday. The average daily customer traffic at
our stores in Hong Kong and Macau experienced a substantial year-
on-year increase during the year, largely driven by the arrival of
Mainland tourists.

The Group registered RSV growth of 36.7% in Hong Kong and
Macau during FY2024.

We opened a net of 2 POS in Hong Kong and Macau in FY2024.
As of 31 March 2024, we maintained a total of 87 POS in Hong
Kong and Macau, which will position us favourably to drive higher
value growth. We shall continue to closely analyse data on
store performance, leasing terms and reassess market
opportunities for potential new additions. More importantly, we
shall stay competitive by innovating our product offerings and

customer service.
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OTHER MARKETS

Market review

Robust domestic demand and the rise of middle class continued to
support economic recovery across Southeast Asia, while the
resurgence of tourist arrivals from the Mainland further bolstered
the region's retail recovery. The World Bank said in its semi-annual
economic outlook that the GDP growth forecast for developing
Asia-Pacific countries is 4.6% in 2024.

Duty-free sales of Hainan's offshore duty-free zone saw remarkable
growth in 2023, with a 59.9% increase in the number of shoppers
and a 25.4% increase in total sales compared to the previous year,
according to statistics from Haikou Customs. Measures such as
simplifying purchase procedures and issuing duty-free consumption
coupons were launched at the beginning of 2024 and are expected

to help enhancing the recovery of duty-free consumption in Hainan.

Business highlights

26

The increase in tourism and strong local demand resulted in robust
RSV growth of 118.9% in other markets, especially for Singapore,
Malaysia, Canada and duty-free shops in Hainan, China.

Our Hainan offshore duty-free shops recorded robust sales,
prompted in part by consumer's spending fuelled by the local

government's consumer voucher programme and festive demand.

Looking ahead, we will continue to strategically expand our retail
network in popular tourist destinations and areas with a significant

number of Chinese residents, such as ASEAN countries.

We would also look to explore areas that had worked well with our
business model and adapt accordingly based on local nuances and
understanding of domestic markets. This ensures that we are
maximising our investment dollar and returns as we set sights on

pursuing overseas growth going forward.
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In light of the dynamic and uncertain market conditions, we stay
cautiously optimistic for FY2025. Nonetheless, we are encouraged by
the steady ramp up and maturity of performing franchised POS,
together with the positive momentum and new perspective brought
by our brand transformation, which will continue to support our sales

and core operating profit.

We shall continue to enhance store productivity and maintain our
disciplined cost management to ensure margin resilience in reaching a
higher value growth. Meanwhile, we shall also stay vigilant in
calibrating our financial and operational resources effectively, a
strategy that has been successful in navigating through the

challenging operating landscape.

Notwithstanding the near-term uncertainties, we stay confident in
the mid- to long-term growth prospects of the Mainland jewellery
market and economy with supportive government policies prioritising

economic stabilisation and reviving domestic consumption.

As we embark on our mid-term transformation journey towards the
100 anniversary, the Group's commitment remains unwavering in
uplifting brand desirability and broadening business horizons, while
staying focused in executing the five strategic priorities to strengthen
long-term competitiveness and industry leadership, supporting us to

deliver sustainable growth to our stakeholders.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

7% 15 [o] iR

OVERVIEW

Despite FY2024 being a year of macro-economic and geopolitical

uncertainties, the Group achieved record high revenue and core
operating profit, thanks to our diligent execution of the five strategic
priorities and resilient demand for gold jewellery and products.

With a focus on product optimisation, we introduced signature and
differentiated gold jewellery and products that successfully captured
the strong gold jewellery demand trend especially during festive
periods. Further, our focus on store productivity and customer
experience enhancement supported progressive ramp up of the
stores opened over the past two to four years. These initiatives
drove our growth outperformance relative to the total retail sales of
gold, silver and jewellery, as reported by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China. In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, the
recovery of inbound tourism continued to support our business.
Hence, the Group's revenue grew by 14.8% and reached HK$108,713
million in FY2024.

The Group's adjusted gross profit margin moderated by 90 basis
points to 22.8% in the financial year, due to changes in product and
wholesale mix. The impact was partially mitigated by our optimised
pricing strategy and the benefits from strength in gold price. In our
push for higher value growth, we are continuously innovating and
exploring new ways to enhance our margin. Since November 2023, we
have seen good traction in our push from weight based pricing to
higher margin fixed price gold jewellery. These selective products
embody exquisite craftsmanship and differentiated features. We are
encouraged to witness a sequential increase of the sales contribution
from the fixed price gold products in 2HFY2024.

While we recognise that the consumption of gem-set jewellery was
influenced by the challenging external macro-economic environment
in recent years, we have also observed that quality jewellery
continues to be favoured by customers which underpins our long-term
prospects of diamond jewellery.

Building on our bottom-up approach, our focus on disciplined cost
management has supported a 28.9% growth in our core operating
profit to HK12,163 million. While core operating profit margin improved
by 120 basis points to 11.2% in the financial year. This validates our
clear focus and progressive towards higher value growth.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased 20.7% in FY2024, as the
increase of core operating profit was partly offset by the unrealised
loss on gold loans arising from gold price volatility in 2HFY2024.
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Revenue

Revenue by reportable segment *

ROI2HTEPEISTHIERE *

ik

HK$ million
BEET YoY
change
Btk
120,000
108,713 +14.8%
100,000 98938 94684
80,000 70,164
56,751 825% +9.9%
60,000 ! 9
87.9% 86.2%
40,000 e 851% Mainland China
hE At
20,000 Ml Hong Kong & Macau of China
28.2% 149% 1% 13.8% 175% +45.6% and other markets
0 PEEE. DEIRMREMTSR
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
LupiE: M EE
EE THEF
Revenue (HK$ million) EXH(EEERT) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 Clid-34 Gli4-4i4
Mainland China i 40,927 40,696 40,680 49,018 -0.6% +20.4%
Hong Kong & Macau hEEE. R Z 5,608 7453 8,846 10,169 +57.7% +36.4%
of China and other markets B
Overall fog ] 46,535 48,149 49,526 59,187 +6.4% +22.9%

The Group's revenue increased 14.8% to HK$108,713 million in
FY2024. On a constant exchange rate basis, the growth amounted
to 18.5%.

Revenue in the Mainland grew 9.9% during the financial year,
supported by strong festive demand and progressive ramp up of
the stores opened over the past two to four years. On a constant
exchange rate basis, the underlying growth would be 14.1% in
FY2024. Share of our Mainland business to the Group's revenue

amounted to 82.5% for the financial year.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue climbed 45.6%
during the financial year, thanks to the continued recovery in

inbound tourism.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHE3ANHBILLEE

30 Management Discussion and Analysis
FIRE 5T AT

2024 WU E, REKEEE KRG M148%=E
108,713 BB, WBREEXRSH, B EED
18.5%0

IRPTHEE, ERINEIE EFHRRZIE A = 0055
FEE#HM @SBRI T, AMMEREER
9.9%, KIBRIERFTHE, 2024 WKFENIBRBRES
14.1%0 7R B B Z, W05 B 10 K &R B & % &R
82.5%

TEEB. MAREMME, ZERARRIELELFFEE
P, RNAEFEHERBFER45.6%0

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees) *

hiEmREIN MEREA(GR ISR EE 5 2R BN ERFRBEA) *

HK$ million
EEE YoY
change
[Eili%=114
12
0,000 107,757 +15.0%
100,000 97.799 93,729 134% -13.3%
204% 178%
80,000 69,289
60,000 6250 241% .
e 0% +22.5% [ | (k‘:eml—csie.t, Plalmltlnum and
- o -gold jewellery
40,000 i PRERE. BERKEEN
68.2% [l Gold jewellery and products
20,000 865% BREORER
I Watches
0 61% 7.7% 6.0% 5.3% 46% +0.5% frted
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

% of Revenue SEHGIE 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BREEHR. TR KEEM 19.1% 16.6% 14.7% 12.4%
Gold jewellery and products EHEBEMKRER 75.6% 78.2% 80.1% 83.5%
Watches i i% 5.4% 5.2% 5.2% 4.1%

Strength in gold jewellery and products continued in the financial
year, given its perceived nature of value preservation and
defensiveness and its increasing popularity among young
consumers. Revenue of gold jewellery and products increased
22.5% in FY2024. Its contribution to the Group's revenue expanded
510 basis points to 82.0% during the financial year.

To effectively capture this robust gold demand trend, we unveiled
new products of our signature HUA Collection, including the
launch of jewellery inspired by the Tang Dynasty and dragon, a

Chinese zodiac with auspicious meaning in Chinese culture.

Revenue of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery declined 13.3%
during the financial year given that demand was more sensitive to
the challenging macro-economic environment. However, we have
observed that quality jewellery continued to be favoured by
customers. With healthy sales, both the Wonderful Life Collection
and Chow Tai Fook Dancing Lily Collection exceeded
management's expectation in FY2024, underpinning our confidence

on the long-term prospects of diamond jewellery.

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIASIBLLFE
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SSSG

SSSG by major market
ErEmEANNERIEHEER

96.5%

.3%

4.5%
9o
-2.7%
—®— Mainland China (Self-operated)
hERNE (HE)
—®— Mainland China (Franchised)
hEAA (7088 )
—®— Hong Kong &
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q Macau of China
FY2023 FY2024 PEIE B R EIRP
FY2023 FY2024
SSS volume SSS volume
SSSG growth SSSG growth

FIEHERE FEHEBBR FEHERBER REHEER

Mainland China (Self-operated)
Mainland China (Franchised)
Hong Kong & Macau of China

hEAM(EE ) -13.1% -18.1% +1.8% -4.8%
thE A e ) -11.2% -13.8% +7.4% -4.2%
P E & R o B +18.3% -12.1% +42.4% +32.0%

SSS in the Mainland was up 1.8% in FY2024. Separately, sales of - N E S E R 2024 B KEE EFH1.8% B9,

franchised POS calculated on same store basis grew 7.4% during TERFEMENSEMIEBERA, REISEFTE,
the financial year, thanks to the steady ramp up of younger stores. NOER B ER AR K FEHHE EF7.4%,

In Hong Kong and Macau, the sustained recovery of inbound - REBBRIEM, ANERENFENS B MOERKE
tourism continued to support our business recovery. SSS registered HER TR, REHEHER 2024 KFEIER 42.4%,

a growth of 42.4% in FY2024.

SSS in Hong Kong grew 40.0% during the financial year while that - HBREEHESERTIFEEBRA0.0%, MmiRPMH

in Macau surged 50.9%.
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Profitability

Group *
50 *
23.4% 23.7%
" R 228%
'\.
14.1% 14.5%
- e
12.2%
@ ® 1.2%
10.1% 10.0%
2022 2023 2024
Core operating profit? by reportable segment*
FOIE2RABERFIESEE G 2*
HK$ million
BEET YoY
change
Elas=3t4
14,000
12,000
10,509 +19.6%
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2000 +153.7%
0
2022 2023 2024
1. Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of 1.

unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of 2.
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a

more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHIIHILEFE
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—&— Adjusted gross profit margin’
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Selling and distribution costs and general
and administrative expenses ("SG&A") as
a % to revenue
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Mainland China
hEAth

Hong Kong & Macau of China
and other markets
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1HFY 2HFY

YoY change YoY change

A E upig:

ot oY 3 THEF

(HK$ million) (BHET) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 [ bk 1k B L 1K
Revenue E¥H 46,535 48,149 49,526 59,187 +6.4% +22.9%
Adjusted gross profit KRABEMERN 10,436 11,965 11,786 12,988 +12.9% +8.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin #E 5 B 1E 1T E R 3= 22.4% 24.9% 23.8% 21.9% +1.4% pts -3.0% pts
=R 18 &2 &

Other income HABKA 353 381 353 337 +0.1% -11.6%
SG&A HERITERMRY (6,440) (7,256) (6,150) (7,151) -4.5% -1.5%
SG&A as a % to revenue i & RITI B AT 1 13.8% 15.1% 12.4% 12.1% -1.4% pts -3.0% pts
EXEHALL EERE &5

Core operating profit FTEEEHRA 4,349 5,090 5,989 6,174 +37.7% +21.3%
Core operating profit margin GG RAIZE 9.3% 10.6% 12.1% 10.4% +2.8% pts -0.2% pts

Eg#ns f@AEHH

Between the two segments, the Mainland continued to be our - MENEE, NihEERN A TS iEARIR, R2024 81
main profit contributor, accounting for over 85% of the Group's KWEEGREEESEERNBIEBSS%,
core operating profit in FY2024.

The Group's core operating profit grew strongly by 28.9% year-on- © 2024 E, REEBRNESEEHEANRFRINER
year to HK$12,163 million, while its margin expanded to 11.2% in 28 9% ZE 12,163 B &BIT, MEAZHRE EHZE1.2%,
FY2024.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 20.7% in FY2024, - 2024 E, RREGERN LF20.7%, HIR2024

as the increase in core operating profit was partly offset by the MEFEETHFEFEERNENEEBENRERER
unrealised loss on gold loans arising from gold price volatility in HETEHN FTEEEBZANFIE R,
2HFY2024.

34  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Adjusted gross profit margin KRR I B R R

We use adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, for < B LAAS A B AR 00 E A 2= ( JF 15 B R R R 5 E RIS

analysis. It represents gross profit margin generated from the BENNT, HERBEBAENENRINREEEE
business after eliminating the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on FREREB(IE )NHE, MG TSR Ba
gold loans. We believe that this measure better reflects the MEENEERE RGN THRERNERES,

operational performance of the Group and is useful for the

understanding of the underlying trend of its businesses.

Unrealised loss (gain) REREE(E)

For the year ended 31 March HEIATHLEFE 2022 2023 2024

Gross profit margin FE A= 22.6% 22.4% 20.5%

Unrealised loss on gold loans EREERERER 0.8% 1.3% 2.3%

Adjusted gross profit margin ERBENENF 23.4% 237% 22.8%
We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge - MM AEEE(EERE )REEBERBEN, LU
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price EstcrE(EFE EBEINUBZE, "M
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). In the near-term S, REEMBRSHANGEERLZE, MEGHEHE
and taking a snapshot view of specific financial reporting period, WEEHEEMER, ®*RRE, FMEHESERE
we will incur recognition due to timing differences. In the longer HREEgRLEESFERORNE, RUKRSH
term, we expect the long and short positions in gold to offset, &K, REENE=EEEGHENHEEBETEMD,
through the sale of gold inventories over time. The unsettled gold LA 10 4 £ 151 7N ( ELJIE SB AY 7S B O % 57 J B W & P
loan contracts are revalued at market price at the end of the ZREE HENEEEFEUAGETERD,

financial reporting period, while the gold inventories are not as it is
measured at weighted average cost, lower of its historical cost

and net realisable value.

As at 31 March 2024, an unrealised loss of HK$2,489 million arose - JR2024%3A31H, RERMEHEZEEENRERE
from such timing difference. BR2,48988B T,
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Movements in adjusted gross profit margin *

EREENENREE *

25.0%

24.0% 23.7%

0.2%

23.0%
0.4%
0.2%

22.0%

21.0% 1:5%

[ Changes in Mainland
China, Hong Kong &
Macau of China and
other markets mix
hEAh, PESE.
hELRPI R Bt IS E S S E

Impact from wholesale
business

1.4% 22.8% HESRBHIRE

Impact from jewellery
trading
BREZEANE

Changes in product mix
EnEGEH

Changes in gross profit
margin by product in
retail business
TEXRBRERSN
HIER =2

20.0%
2023

At group level, adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 90 basis
points to 22.8% during FY2024, mainly attributable to the impact
from a higher sales contribution from our gold jewellery and
products and wholesale business. This offset the benefit from
retail like-for-like margin improvement resulted from gold price

increase and our optimised pricing strategy.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIANBLEFE
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London gold price

RBEE
US$ per ounce
ESR= L
2,300
2,100
1,900
1,700 ,
1,500
1 London gold price
1,300 ! REEE
3 Average of T-180 days’
1,100 . T-180XKFHE"
1.4.2022 1.4.2023 31.3.2024
1. Average of T-180 refers to the average gold price of previous 180 days on rolling basis, being a proxy of 1. T-180XFHEERTEESOXRNERHM, AENXBPMEH ITEESFENFAMR
the average price of our hedged inventories. Average of T-180 days was used for FY2024 and FY2023 1o 2024 M E K2 2023 WK F E B AT-180 X FHIE
FY2024 Closing price YoY change Average price YoY change
ST 88 =] Eb 4 1k TEER L1k
London gold price _I_ 'I ’I 9 Cy ’I O 2 (y
AR - 7./0 T1U.L/o
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SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment *
ROI2 3R EPEI ST B E R TGS *

B M AT BB 32

HK$ million
e
BEET Yo
change
[EILE 1Y
13,964
14,000 13,696 13,300 2.9%
12,000
10,000
8000 80.1% 78.9% 76.6% -5.8%
6,000
4,000 Bl Mainland China
chE A
2,000 19.9% 211% 23.4% +8.1% Jl Hong Kong & Macau of China
and other markets
0 PEEHE, PEIRPREhTSS
2022 2023 2024
SG&A to revenue ratio *
HERITHZIGERELLR
HK$ million
BEET
14.1% 14.5% —— As a % of revenue
.- YoY PGS AT AL
12.2% change Bl Staff costs and related expenses
Bt 1L BT R RRABRBS
16,000 [ | ;c;éz;;lonalre fees
14,000 13964 13,696 13,300 22.9% I Rental expenses
THEBISZ
12,000 [l Depreciation and amortisation
5.4% 5.6% N o (Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
10,000 9% +2.0% ER (SRR )
Il Depreciation and amortisation
8,000 . 5 (Property, plant and equipment)
24% 20% 17% 0.0% R (. BRREE)
6,000 13% 1.3% 12% +7.7% 1 Advertilsing and promotion expenses
11% 1.3% N ) EEREEMX
4,000 o . 1.2% +6.7% _ _
0.8% 0.9% 07% 17.0% [l Packaging materials
000 [ R 0% -44.2% 2
' 2.0% 2.2% 1.9% -2.1% I Other SG&A'
0 HAMSHE R TEB !
2022 2023 2024

1. Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty fees

for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHAIBLLFE
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Executing against our disciplined cost management strategy, the - R E, REEERENNREREM, B
Group closely managed SG&A expenses during the financial year, as a FITHE R ITE S, HERTRAXEIRED>2.9%%
result SG&A expenses decreased by 2.9% to HK$13,300 million. 13,300B&EE Lo

SG&A ratio improved significantly by 230 basis points to 12.2%. - HERITHMXZIEFERE THK230E8FE12.2%,
Fixed in nature expenses contributed approximately 50% to SG&A 2024 ML E, [ 1B B 32 16 88 B K2 17 LR 2 41
expenses in FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 50%). 50%( 2023 (A E : £150% )o

Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs and - ARHERTHRAXTSENEE(BFBE TR

related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses TERA R 2« AR5 AY 52 FE B 4B BA B Sz ) o) A # AR AN ER
are provided on p.44 - 45 and p.56 - 57 of this report. EHR44EASERS6ESTH,
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MAINLAND CHINA [ A i
Revenue e
Revenue by operation model *
REEETSINNERESE *
HK$ mmion
BaEiET YoY
change
Lk,
100,000
86932 89,698 +9.9%
81,623
80,000
230% +3.6%
50.4%
60,000 59,698 456%
40,763
40,000 59.8%
65.7% ” o
570% +15.1% .
% 54.4% Retail
20,000 49.6% n v
40.2%
343% Wholesale
0 biiktd
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue mainly represents sales to franchisees and

provision of services to franchisees.

Revenue in the Mainland was up by 9.9% to HK$89,698 million in
FY2024. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue growth

reached 14.1% during the financial year.

Wholesale revenue climbed 15.1% or 19.6% on a constant exchange
rate basis during the financial year, supported by the progressive
ramp up of our stores and the store opening over the past 12

months.

As at 31 March 2024, we had 5,679 franchised CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS. For the majority of these POS, we retain
inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with
the retail customers, upon which wholesale revenue is recognised.
These franchised POS contributed approximately 63% of the

wholesale revenue in the Mainland.

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHAIBLLFE
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RepE A, M TEERBIEREEETER.
BErEBREMBERRENHESR, MitEEREA
= S5 100 /10 B3 7 41 5 5 6 K (8110 BE 7 2 SRLAR AR BT UL o

2024 T, NMMBIEREF ETH9.9%%E 89,6988
B, WERERSE, NUKFENERR LT
14.1%,

ZIEHMABE T IRA K@ 128 B 6P IS B sz,
S ERERRUKEE EF15.1%0y 18R EXRE
BH19.6%,

R2024F3H 318, HM&RAS,6796EKXBIKE N
BEEH, RAXBABXBHRENMEZTER, HME
TEHETEZWHEXZIRBFEEEARE, FX5
TEANE, IEEAMBEERR, HRNETEHNE
SRERIG NI AL 3 E SR ER A 63%.,

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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SSSG

SSSG of major products
BEmRISHEIRR

9.9%

N

9.4%

-2.0%

L 3 1 4 5

Same Store ASP
[EEFEIEE
FY2024

Gem-set jewellery

BRETERIRE A

HK$8,100

(FY2023": HK$7,600)

Gold jewellery and products

EEEMRER

HK$5,600

(FY2023": HK$5,200)

32.5%

3.4%

—&— Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
BREFiHR. I RKEEN

—8— Gold jewellery

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q and products

FY2023 FY2024 wERBEMRERD

FY2024

SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHERR FEHEER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery PREER . HERKEEM -14.4% -20.5%
Gold jewellery and products =B R E R +6.4% -0.6%
Watches 8 % +2.8% -2.8%
Overall B +1.8% -4.8%

1. Same Store ASP on FY2024 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, ASP across product categories was resilient in
FY2024, thanks to our continued efforts in pricing strategy
optimisation and differentiated product offerings.

SSSG of gold jewellery and products was relatively strong at 6.4%
during the financial year. ASP of gold jewellery and products
increased steadily to about HK$5,600 (FY2023: HK$5,200).

Moreover, ASP of gem-set jewellery increased to approximately
HK$8,100 (FY2023: HK$7,600).

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

1.

515 T 14 € 88 LA 2024 I BUAF 2 00 6] 5 F 2

RpE NI, BRFEMFEEHEERBREEHER
WER, SEREAR2024 0 BUF E K F B 58 7
F#tE

AUKEFE, ExathkERKNREGHESE B
T, RB6A%IBE, R EMRERNTHESEREE
BAHELS, 600 T( 2023 WBERE : 5,200 7T ),

b, BREETEMNTEEAEE EFEL8,100E T
(2023TIEEE : 7,600 T )o
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Profitability & fiE
Mainland China *

thERith *
9 23.3%
21% - 22.5%
o -
12.9% 13.2%
o— —e 1.7%
.\>m°/ —@— Adjusted gross profit margin
11.0% 10.8% e IERREENERSE
—&— SG&A as a % to revenue
THERITIRSZ TGS BB At
—@— Core operating profit margin
Esdcdoyiivilk
2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
B i g: Y
ot THE
(HK$ million) (EE#ET) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 FILL &1t C]i4-114
Revenue e 40,927 40,696 40,680 49,018 -0.6% +20.4%
Adjusted gross profit KABREMERN 9,070 9,970 9,615 10,523 +6.0% +5.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin #E o B 1E 1T E 3 22.2% 24.5% 23.6% 21.5% +1.4% pts -3.0% pts
EN=Pa 1] EN=Ra ]
Other income HABUIA 256 303 282 272 +9.9% -10.1%
SG&A & R AT B 2 (511) (5,701) (4,695) (5,487) -8.1% -3.8%
SG&A as a % to revenue ﬁgﬁ T B AT 1 12.5% 14.0% 11.5% 11.2% -1.0% pts -2.8% pts
ES =50 EBEs% EEsH
Core operating profit FTEHEERA 4,215 4,572 5,201 5,308 +23.4% +16.1%
Core operating profit margin FTEEERAE 10.3% 11.2% 12.8% 10.8% +2.5% pts -0.4% pts
EN=P A =P - ]
*For the year ended 31 March
FHE3ANHBILLEE
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Adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 80 basis points in
FY2024, mainly due to the impact from a higher sales contribution
from wholesale business and gold jewellery and products. This

offset the improvement in the retail like-for-like product margin.

The wholesale business has a relatively lower gross profit margin
than the retail business. An increase of wholesale mix in FY2024
led to a drop of 70 basis points in adjusted gross profit margin.
Revenue mix of gold jewellery and products also surged to 82.5%
(FY2023: 77.8%) due to strong demand for gold jewellery, which
resulted in a decline of 120 basis points in adjusted gross profit
margin. On the other hand, the surge of gold prices and our pricing
strategy optimisation improved the adjusted gross profit margin
by 110 basis points.

SG&A ratio was 11.4% for the period ended 31 March 2024. Fixed
in nature expenses contributed around 50% to SG&A expenses in
FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 45%).

Core operating profit margin was up by 90 basis points to 11.7%
in FY2024.

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

f‘I‘n BB ENER 2024 M B FE T RE8OMER T,
FHEEFULETEMREnfHEEM LA
ﬁﬁ%%o EMETEEERENEHIIE,

HBEEBNENERZTEEBM, 2024 TKFE, #it
BHSIENERERAEENENRTR70EE T, B
REatNHRKEY, =ScEMNERNEERA
ST ZE 82.5%( 2023 FE : 77.8% ), BH 4
FAEENEAMETHRI0OELF. 5—T1H, &M
FLARBFAGEYEERBEEAEZEMNENE L
MO @A Fo

HE2024F 33T H LM, HERITHMASZIERA
M.4%, 2024 MK FE, BIEMERGHE RITE
B 4150%( 2023 T : £145% )o
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SG&A B M AT BB 32

SG&A to revenue ratio *

HER{TIRASZIGEREALLER *

HK$ million
BEET
12.9% 13.2% —&— As a % of respective revenue
o— —e 1.4% YoY PGB S BE AL
change Bl Staff costs and related expenses
EIEEE Y BT RRRARRBSZ
12,000 -
11,190 Il Concessionaire fees
10,812 St
10,182 -5.8% -
10,000 I Rental expenses
4.7% s TAERZ
o [l Depreciation and amortisation
8,000 4.4% -0.3% (Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
FEREE (RAEEE)
o N Il Depreciation and amortisation
6,000 27% 23% . N (Property, plant and equipment)
o7 21 0.0% TR (M. BERER)
4,000 ?g; 12% 07% +2.1% I Advertising and promotion expenses
07% 0.9% 1.2% +10.2% REREMM
. 13% 0.6% -27.4% [l Packaging materials
2,000 - 14% | 06% -47.2% PP
1.6% 2.0% 1.7% -2.7% I Other SG&A
0 HhHERITERX
2022 2023 2024
Staff costs and related expenses *
BT RNR BB Fy2024
HK$ million
BEET Average number
of employees’ YoY change
THETHE' B4
o 4.8%
4.7% ©)
4.4% YoY 20 /HO _1 1 %)
change / :
EIEEE
4,500
4,113
4,000 3,938 3,924 -0.3%
3,500
3000 44.0% 38.5% 37.1% -3.9%
2,500
1000 —&— As a % of respective revenue
' FFEAERE SEE AL
1,500 N M Variable staff costs
52.7% 57.6% 60.0% +3.8% FE}BTRR
1,000 [l Fixed staff costs
EIE8 TR
500
Il Other staff related expenses 2
0 3.3% 4.0% 2.9% -26.5% Hih& TiERAB 2
2022 2023 2024
1. Employees in production function excluded 1. AEBELEESMNET
2. Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc. 2. HMMETHEMAXTISOFEIERIRN. BRENYUEEHS
Staff costs and related expenses were slightly down 0.3% in FY2024. © 2024FTEE, BTN IBERMZEMTRE0.3%,

- Fixed component increased 3.8% year-on-year, mainly due to the - BIEEANBEERF EFA3.8%, TEHRFEFUIIE
annual salary increment. Variable component decreased 3.9%, R. FHANIEB THK3.9%, TSHREHNE T Hio
mainly due to revision of staff remuneration of back office. P,

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHAIBLLFE
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Concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses ™

HiEsr iR A SRR ™
HK$ million
EEET
7.9% 7.9% 77%
*— o e
._/.\. YoY
4.4% o change
4.0% a1 FILEE
3,500
3,003
3,000
2,506 2,518 +0.5%
2,500
1,000 —8— Concessionaire fees as a % of
78.8%

respective revenue
1500 74.8% 74.4% 0.0% HiEN A TSR E R AL

—®— Lease-related expenses as a % of
respective revenue

1,000 TAEMERIRISZ PTG TER S 5B L
M Concessionaire fees
500 HHES A
212% 25.2% 25.6% +1.9% [l Lease-related expenses’
0 THETERARA S
2022 2023 2024

- Concessionaire fees ratio declined to 7.7% as a result of a shift of - HRHEEHGEINAEERTNETEMNER,
sales mix towards gold jewellery and products that are generally BEENHLEETRERZET 7%,
subject to lower rates compared with other product types.

Lease-related expenses ratio down slightly by 30 basis points - RETEEEN, HEBRBFSEFEM T ER30E R F,
during the financial year.

1. Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace the 1. WRIBERUBMSERFE 6 3% - BE. TERMH(EAREE )R B ER & A RE
majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these elements for the analysis of lease-related TXEBAEERZ, HMAMIEERRESH, NETHEEBMMEZZAT
expenses

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIASIBLLFE
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POS network 0 G A 4%
POS movement by store brand' — Mainland China
REHGRRESNZFEEE - DEAI
During FY2024
31.3.2022 31.3.2023 2024 N L EE J& 31.3.2024
Total Total Reduction Net Total
As at iy st @5t R PRI ast
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY? & K48 Bk ° 5,629 7,260 (422) 143 7,403
CTF WATCH IEPN =17 136 129 (22) (8) 121
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 1 1 (1) (1) -
ENZO ENZO 54 30 (9) (7) 23
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 39 21 (6) (6) 15
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 68 60 (5) 5 65
1. SIS and CIS excluded 1. REFEEPERIENHIE
2. CTF WATCH POS excluded 2. AOERXEEETER
3. Restated to reflect the split and combination of HUA exclusive zones 3. HEBREBIURRAMFREHERRIER
RSV analysis A Hr
RSV by product
HERISNEFERE
3.7%
RSV YoY change
FY2023  FY2024 FEERLLEL
[ | [ | Gem-set, Platinum and PREER, BE R -5.9%
K-gold jewellery (=i
| | Gold jewellery and products EEEMAE®D +23.3%
| Watches fE ik +6.3%
Overall Hag +17.3%
RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery
GhEZR. HERKEEMNTEE
% of RSV FEMEIGIE FY2023 FY2024
Diamond jewellery A s i 60.5% 57.7%
Other gem-set jewellery HbprE ER S M 20.8% 24.3%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery e R KEE M 18.7% 18.0%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE
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RSV of gold jewellery and products
EEEMIRERNFTEH

% of RSV FEAEIGIE FY2023 FY2024
Weight-based gold products FIEETAEM 85.0% 84.6%
Fixed price gold products EEEEED 7.0% 7.1%
Bullion EH/ E1R 8.0% 8.3%
RSV by channel
HHEREENTNZERE
4.3% 4.8%
RSV YoY change
FY2023  FY2024 ZEERLLEK
| [ | CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY  EXt@bkE +17.4%
[ | [ | Other store brands’ HA/S &g’ +11.7%
[ | E-commerce? BRI +18.8%
Overall pge +17.3%
1. CTF WATCH, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included 1. BUERAX@E . HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO. SOINLOVE &2 MONOLOGUE
2. Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Douyin and Vipshop 2. FEFEABRAXBEERRBIS. X, RR. I ehERE

Brick-and-mortar stores remained the dominant channel for
jewellery consumption, accounting for approximately 95% of our
RSV in the Mainland during FY2024.

Meanwhile the e-commerce channel enables us to complement
and further enhance the customer journey and omni-channel
shopping experience. Given our initiatives to enhance digital
customer engagement and stay agile in our product planning when
targeting online consumers, RSV of our Mainland e-commerce
business grew steadily at around 20% during the financial year.
Share of our e-commerce business, in terms of retail sales volume,
amounted to more than 10%. ASP increased to approximately
HK$2,080 during the financial year (FY2023: HK$1,870).

Annual Report 2024
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BEHBNMAUERIERERE, R024THEFE,
A ZEEL 95%,0

B, EMRENPMAZERE-—TSRABENDR
EEMESS, SERFEMMaE LESEE, UKL
HIR FESEHEEERASMBMR, NIETERE
FIZEERATKREENRESLA 2050 EEBRE, &
TESHE N SLLEAE10%, KMKFEN, &
FEBETHEBRITEL 2,080 T 2023 W HFE .
1,870 7T )o

Performance Review 47

ESEIEI ]



The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS
which contributed over 90% of the RSV in Mainland China:

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS

RSV and POS by tier of cities'
BTGNS SNEFEERFTER"

15.5%

18.2%

FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEMGIL TEEGLE FEMAERLEL TEFE
23.7% 12.2%

] | Tier | cities — iR +17.7% +14
] | Tier |l cities ) +18.1% +98

| Tier Il cities =300 +15.5% +17

21.9% 42.3% ) -

[ | | ] Tier IV cities and others PO#%R 1y 1 &2 H Ath +17.7% +14

1. As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in
Mainland China, we adopt the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first-tier cities were
grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 30 May 2023

RSV and POS by operating model
REERNENNZTEEARTER

#5600 oh B P9 St 4R T AT A S R AD MR B, T MR AR 5B — R AT )3 1 6
SRS H— AR AR BI T ch g s Z AR T 552812023 5 B30
HAMmEHES

30.4% FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FTEGIE TEESLE TEMERLLEEL TEFEET
23.3% | | Self-operated BHE +5.8% +21
[ | [ | Franchised no 8 +23.4% +122
RSV and POS by store format
RIESHERENANETEEARTER
FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FEIGIE TEESLE ZEMERLLEEL TENFEEH
| | Shopping mall i el +21.0% +167
| | Department store BEAT +10.3% +6
[ | Others HAh +21.1% -30
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The current priorities of our POS management strategy are to
maximise overall financial health of our POS portfolio with a focus
on store productivity and profitability. We continuously optimise
existing retail network strategically through a combination of
selective store openings and closures to enhance operational
efficiency and profitability. In FY2024, we opened a net of 143
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland.

We registered a broad-based RSV growth across different tiers of
cities in FY2024. Growth in the higher tier cities was similar to that
of the lower tier cities.

By operating model, the net openings in FY2024 were primarily in
franchised format and the new openings were mainly located in

shopping malls.

As at 31 March 2024, franchised POS comprised approximately 77%
of our store count in the Mainland. RSV of franchised POS in the
Mainland rose by 23.4% year-on-year in FY2024, driven by the
steady and progressive store ramp up and new store additions. As
over 50% of our total stores in the Mainland were opened in the
last two to four years, we expect the gradual maturity of these

stores will boost our RSV and store profitability in the coming years.

Annual Report 2024
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EZEREERE L, RMNBEREATEHEET
FBEMAETT, BHPIEESHIRENHERRKL. &
MM E@ERRIBMEEEFENEE, BREKES
HZEREE, BIRAZEEIZEMENEE], 202457
WEE, MERIMBEMRI43ERXBEIRESTER,

HPR 2024 B FEERRERNMEREZNFE
BB, SRS RE/R&NTHHEIERBIE,

REERILEI Y, 2024 B E EZ KB F RS &0 8
J&, RS ESURBIDP L,

BZE2024F3H31H, 02 ERAG TP NS &
BH177%0 2024 BFE, ZHEMRIEMHYHEBER T
RiiBiEa, NIENBETERNETEERLLE LT
23.4%, BRI S50% W MK PI)E 2L — = M F MR
B, HMIRMAREZZFEHGBAR, RRREER
AURREAPIEHRZEEMNRNEES.
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Ratio of RSV per store to RSV per Same Store by store age
RIERENNEEFEERAEEAFEEZES

137.3%
115.8%
94.2%
76.0%
64.9% I
Less than 2 years'  2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more
DRR24E! pE S 4Z65F 6FE8F 8FFEYIA L
3/2016
or before
POS opening date Bl J& B i 4/2022-3/2024 4/2020-3/2022 4/2018-3/2020 4/2016-3/2018  3/20168¥ LAl Total 485t
POS EEE 2,287 2,165 1132 408 141 7,403
% of POS ZE Eh{4EL 30.9% 29.2% 15.3% 5.5% 19.1% 100.0%

1. For POS of age less than 1year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis 1. ERABIENTEH TEERFUEERE

The progressive ramp up of our young stores in the Mainland in 2024 B, BEPERINE FEN/SHIZIRERIE
FY2024 strengthened the resilience and stability of our store R, Mm@ THMPIEESRINENBEL. 50RAE
network. The average RSV for stores aged less than two years was MEMEHTFEHZEEANEANBERE/SEZEEN
approximately 65% of overall Mainland RSV per Same Store, 65%, RILFRKZESKFE,

marking the highest level in recent years.

50  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Average quarterly sales’
TAFEHER"

HK$ million

BEBT

32.6%

20.8%
18.0%

so 52
4.4
3.9
35 3.6
3.2
|||||| 28|||
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q

1.

1. Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation; FY2023 data on FY2024 same
store basis

- FY2024 was a year of normalisation after the pandemic, with
2HFY2024 contributing approximately 55% of annual SSS,

reflecting normal seasonality under the normal course of business.

The fourth quarter of our financial year, our peak season as
driven by festive occasions such as Lunar New Year and
Valentine's Day, usually accounts for the highest quarterly SSS
contribution in the year.

Annual Report 2024
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—@— FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20230 F E 2 2 5 TH S8Rt
FERIGHERENEM

—&— FY2024 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20240 U FE 2 E RS TH e gt
FEREHERN TN

B Y2023 average quarterly $SS
20230 U ET AT EREHE

B Y2024 average quarterly SSS
2024R G T2 E RS E

FSstHOBEEE RN AT SR ; 2023 { BUF Z 8K LA 2024 BT BUF & 6] 15 B T H

2024 MFEERRBEEREEREHN —F, 2024 B K
ETH+FENFERIGHEHESMAS5%, REKERE
T B Z= 8K TEAR I .

e 179 B BUEF 2 B 56 U0 25 2 08 O R B R A A B A BN S
BAHF, HBRMNEREE, TERSHESME

EREFRS.
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HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND v A L B P R H A T

OTHER MARKETS

M Retail

FE

Wholesale
il

K 2
Revenue =
Revenue by operation model *
HREERTENNERE ~
HK$ million YoY
BEET change
Eili%=114
20,000 19,015 +45.6%
15,988
15,000
13,061
12,006
10,466

10.000 854% +40.4%

93.0%

84.2% 88.5%
87.2%
5,000
0% - 15.8% 115% 146% +85.6%
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to

franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading.

Retail revenue surged encouragingly by 40.4% in FY2024,
supported by the progressive return of Mainland tourists.
Wholesale revenue increased strongly by 85.6%, thanks to the

rebound of our duty-free business in Hainan Province.

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHAIBLLFE
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SSSG

SSSG of major products
BEmRISHEIRR

116.5%

L 3 1 4 5

Same store ASP
EEFEIEE
FY2024

Gem-set jewellery

BRECERIRE A

HK$16,700

(FY2023": HK$16,500)

Gold jewellery and products
EREMRER

HK$8,100

(FY2023": HK$6,900)

101.1% 89.0% 104.3%
wf%\ 16.6%
T
-—
18.4% 1.4% -4.3%
4% -27.2%
—&— Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
BRETIEER . IR RKEEM
—8— Gold jewellery
1Q 20 3Q 4Q 1Q 20 3Q 4Q and products
FY2023 FY2024 EEEMRER
FY2024
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHERR FEHERR
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BRE®R. HERKEEM -4.8% -4.4%
Gold jewellery and products BEEEMMKLEGRD +67.7% +43.0%
Watches i &% +3.9% +1.3%
Overall e +42.4% +32.0%

1. Same Store ASP on FY2024 Same Store basis

Annual Report 2024
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In Hong Kong and Macau, SSS climbed 42.4% in FY2024, driven by

a significant volume increase and steady ASP growth.

SSS of gold jewellery and products surged 67.7% in the financial
year, outperforming other product categories. Its ASP reached
HK$8,100, up by 17.3% comparing to the previous financial year,
backed by a higher contribution of HUA Collection and gold
price surge.

SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery declined 4.8% in
FY2024. Yet, ASP of gem-set jewellery was stable at HK$16,700

during the financial year, demonstrating resilience.

REBRRM, BREEXEERLRTHEERET R
Ft, BIETHER 2024 MIFEER T 42.4%,

RYWHFE, BEEHWKERKRSHESHET
67.7%, RBRBREMEREMN. BRBEARIINE
MEAREEETT, ESEMRERN TGS BEE
8,100, B E—EMBFERTT17.3%,

DhEEE . 0T R KE B 2024 A F Z K E )5
ETFE4.8%, PAM, DRE RS H TS /ERRAY
BEEBEE16,700E T, REHHME,

Profitability 1 H] hE
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets *
hEEE. hERM R A *
—@— Adjusted gross profit margin
AR ENERN =R
—®— SG&A as a % to revenue
HERITHR S EREAENLE
—— Core operating profit margin
s cdoyisvilEd
2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
B FIBUEEE
i3 THEF
(HK$ million) (E&EET) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 Giliki4 EILE &1
Revenue e 5,608 7,453 8,846 10,169 +57.7% +36.4%
Adjusted gross profit SR EENER 1,367 1,995 2,171 2,466 +58.9% +23.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin  #535 #1& BT E F = 24.4% 26.8% 24.5% 24.2% +0.1% pts -2.6% pts
EEx4 BEREH
Other income B Athsg A 96 78 71 64 -25.9% -17.2%
SG&A HE RZITHBISZ (1,329) (1,555) (1,454) (1,664) +9.5% +7.0%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHH 23.7% 20.9% 16.4% 16.4% -7.3% pts -4.5% pts
ST I=P EEsE B
Core operating profit FTEEEEA 134 518 788 866 +487.1% +67.2%
Core operating profit margin & ZB 45 & i FI| & 24% 6.9% 8.9% 85%  +6.5% pts +1.6% pts

EEAE BEAH

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIANBLEFE
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In FY2024, adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 130 basis
points to 24.4%, mainly due to the impact from a higher sales
contribution from gold jewellery and products which offset the

improved like-for-like margin.

SG&A ratio decreased by 570 basis points to 16.4% due to

favourable operating leveraging.

Fixed nature expenses contributed approximately 65% to SG&A
expenses in FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 65%).

Core operating profit escalated by 153.7% and reached HK$1,654
million in FY2024. Its corresponding margin was up 370 basis
points to 8.7%, as a result of an improved SG&A ratio.

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

2024 ML E, ERBENENETEIBOEHRTE
24.4%, TEHMRESTE MK E oo K#H & = RS 0T
HTE@ENR LANRZE,

TEREENT, HERITHMZEETRES70@EEH
TE16.4%,

2024 T E, B EMZGEE RITREZA
65%( 2023 T : £165% )o

2024 T E, T EEEHEF KNI EF153.7% %
1,654 B BB, SEREERTRMAILEENNS,
HIBEHERNZ= A I70FEEFE8.7%,
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio *

HER{TIRASZIGEREALLER *

S

e

B AT BB 3

HK$ million
BEET
23.1% 9
227% —&— As a % of respective revenue
16.4% YoY PSRRI ESRERE At
) change Bl Staff costs and related expenses
EILLE L BT RRRBRARSE
Ml Concessionaire fees
3,118 +8.1% HIES Y
2,884
3,000 2,775 I Rental expenses
HERZ
B o [l Depreciation and amortisation
0.0% 102% 7.6% +8.7% (Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
2,000 : rER s (ERkEE)
Il Depreciation and amortisation
01% 01% 0.1% +8.9% (Property.,’plant and equiPment)
IrEER I (5. BB R )
5.2% 4.6% 3.6% +13.4%
I Advertising and promotion expenses
1,000 EEREMEMX
1.7% 1.5% 0.9% -10.8%
12% 11% 1.0% +37.6% [l Packaging materials
- 05% T 04% 0.3% +10.1% B2}
4.4% 4.0% 2.8% -0.5% | Other SG&A
0 HMHERAITHRR
2022 2023 2024
Hong Kong and Macau of China hEEERDEIREM
Staff costs and related expenses *
B T RN RAB BRI * FY2024
HK$ million
BERET Average number
of employees’ YoY change
10.9% n.2% FHATHE' RILEE
0)
; 2,560 -23
8.7%
’/‘\‘ e , O /0
Itk L
1,500
1,302 +9.4%
1,190
1,050
1,000 36.2% +12.3%
35.2%
38.3%
—@— As a % of respective revenue
PGB E5ERE At
500 " o Ml Variable staff costs
56.9% o6.5% +8.7% IF# 8 TRk
54.7% Pl Fixed staff costs
BlE& AR
I Other staff related expenses 2
0 7.1% 7.8% 7.3% +2.0% Hith& TAERIRISL 2
2022 2023 2024

1. Employees in production function excluded

2. Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational

expenses, etc.

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHAIBLLFE
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Staff costs and related expenses were up by 9.4% in FY2024.
Yet, the staff costs and related expenses ratio dropped by 250
basis points to 8.7%, attributable to a faster growth in respective

revenue.

Fixed staff costs increased 8.7% year-on-year, mainly due to
revisions of the staff remuneration packages to attract and retain
talents. The variable staff costs rose by 12.3% as retail revenue

increased.

Lease-related expenses ™

2024 T E, B TR N RABBIRISZ L719.4%, &
m, BREMERFIBESR, 8T AKX
EE I B 250 fE 25 F 2 8.7 %,

BEESTIANELIEMNS 7%, TEEHMRBITTEL
TR, WRSIRBEBEAT, FBME TN RARETE
EREBMNMm ET12.3%,

THE1BRARSZ ™
HK$ million
BHEET
5.8%
51%
N YoY
41% change
Blas-3t4
1,000
662 +15.3%
597 574
500 32.6% 30.1% 37.2% —@— As a % of respective revenue
EREUEE e S =P e
Bl Rental expenses
THERISZ
64.8% 67.4% 58.8% Ml Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA)
FEREE (EAEEE)
Il Finance costs on leases
0 2.6% 2.6% 4.0% TSRS YR
2022 2023 2024

1. Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace the

1. IRBERUMBRSERNRE 165 - HE, FEREBMH(LAREZE )RESHE N RERN

majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the analysis of lease- REARERZ, BARLSE=EHE S0, ETAEEE% 2 31T

related expenses

The average increment on lease renewal during FY2024 relative 2024 FE, BHEERLE-MEATHLEAL
to the last leases was approximately 18%. This led to a 15.3% 18%, EEMFENHEBRMAXZIEN5.3%, FRN, M

increase in lease-related expenses during the year. The lease-
related expenses ratio reduced by 100 basis points to 4.1% during
the year.

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIASIBLLFE

Annual Report 2024
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POS network 7 A B 4 4k

POS movement by store brand' — Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets

REHRRESNFENEH - PEFE. PERMAREMTIR

During FY2024

31.3.2022 31.3.2023 2024 (T EESE 31.3.2024
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at it st #ast 18m R B IG R fast
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY & XtgathE 133 135 13 (3) 10 145
Hong Kong, China & & E 74 66 3 (1) 2 68
Macau, China o (] 5 P 18 19 2 (2) - 19
Other markets HAh 17 41 50 8 - 8 58
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 10 10 - - - 10
1. SIS and CIS excluded 1. AEUHESS PIE RS N EiE
RSV analysis AT
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets hEFE. PEIRMREMMIZ
RSV by product
HERISNETERE
5.2%
RSV YoY change
FY2023  FY2024 FEERFLLE
[ ] | Gem-set, Platinum and PREEHR. TR -3.7%
K-gold jewellery KESam
[ ] [ | Gold jewellery and products EEEMAEEGRD +69.4%
| Watches 8 8% -7.0%
Overall B2 a8 +45.6%
RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery
GRhERR. HERKEEMNSIEE
% of RSV FEEIGLE FY2023 FY2024
Diamond jewellery 2R mp=]i] 71.0% 64.4%
Other gem-set jewellery HihhE iR E & 15.5% 20.2%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery HERKESE 13.5% 15.4%
58  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV of gold jewellery and products

=EEENMIRERNZTEE
% of RSV FEEISLE FY2023 FY2024
Weight-based gold products FTEETAEM 78.6% 84.7%
Fixed price gold products EEETEM 1.1% 9.7%
Bullion TH/ IR 10.3% 5.6%
RSV and POS by geography
EMESSNETEERTERNS
FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FTENGIE TEEGLE FEERLEEL FEHFEH
[ ] [ | Hong Kong, China PETE +32.0% +2
[ ] [ | Macau, China o [ 5 P +53.2% -
[ | Other markets HAth iz +118.9% +8

2024 TFE, BB, BMREMAGHNZTEEM
T ZERARREEE,

RSV in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets surged robustly in
FY2024, thanks to the recovery of inbound tourism.

In the financial year, RSV growth in Hong Kong and Macau were
32.0% and 53.2% respectively. The average daily customer traffic
at our stores in Hong Kong and Macau experienced a substantial
increase year-on-year, especially during the National Day and

Lunar New Year holidays.

RSV of other markets jumped 118.9% in the financial year, driven by
new store additions, buoyant demand at our duty-free shops in

Hainan and the recovery in key Southeast Asian markets.

In Hong Kong and Macau, we net opened 2 POS in the financial
year. In other markets, we opened 8 stores, including 4 duty-free
shops in the Mainland, 1 POS in Canada and 3 POS in key
Southeast Asian markets to capitalise the emerging opportunities

from retail demand in these markets.

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

RMEFEE, SBREMATEEBRN A A32.0%
K2 532%, HEERBMPISHEH THERER LT
lBERE, THERBEERZBHFEHE.

NMBFE, HtmEHKZEEMIT118.9%, MLT1H
WGBS, BraR/ERRYIFRARRmEESH
118 B P o B o

EEBRIEM, RMRMKEERNFHRR2EZTER,
Hitfitmm, BMEART8EME, 81F4RNMKA
MmEIeR/E. URMEXMMMEZTEHUARESRE
DMHEHRSEZER, BRIEEZFMHTEZ KM
T R BT I
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Hong Kong and Macau of China

Average quarterly sales'

FHFEHER"
HK$ million
BEET

33.7%

18.8%

1. Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation; FY2023 data on FY2024 same
store basis

The third quarter of our financial year, being the peak season for
the industry as driven by Christmas, typically accounts for the
highest quarterly SSS contribution in the year for the Hong Kong

and Macau market.

Nevertheless, seasonality in FY2024 and FY2023 deviated from
the normal course of business. In SSS terms, 2HFY2024 contributed
approximately 52% to annual SSS, which is slightly below typical
seasonality levels. Meanwhile, the higher contribution by
2HFY2023 was driven by the inbound visits from Mainland
travellers and pent-up bridal demand, following the lift of

pandemic related measures in the fourth quarter of FY2023.

60 Management Discussion and Analysis

BT R T

hEFERPEIRM

—&— FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2023 BAF E ZFFE Rl S 1A E5 Bt
FEEEHERNZT

—®— FY2024 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2024 U FE 22 RIS SH S 3Rt
FERIGHERANEM

B FY2023 average quarterly SSS
2023 F ETHFERIEHE

I FY2024 average quarterly SSS
2024 ETIFERIGHE

FEStERFEEE RMBTER ; 2023 I BUF E BUIRLA 2024 BT BUE E B 5 2 E5TH

HMUREENE=ZSEBERNRE, BENERT
=, HHEHMESEBERRMAMENZTERGHETHE
BARTFERSE.

PATT, 2024 B ISL4F R F 2023 S U4 15 0 84 5 18 520
BT R IE SR 00T 6 KT, R 8
8, 2024 BB T4 4 004 FE 6L 5 6 S TR MK A 0
52%, BSIERERBZEEENT, RILAKE, 20230
BUEE RN E RIS ERRE, WIRRET
5D ) 0 0 5 0 98 8 552023 TR TR 603
R,
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW

EAMET 5 o] R

Other income, other gains and losses and other expenses

Fofble A At i g B s 18 L R A B 5

2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HEIAMHLEE BE#ET BEET BE#ET [5l EE & 1k
Other income HARUZA 793 733 690 -6.0%
Other gains and losses HAMW 2= 2 B8 171 (318) (330) +4.0%
Other expenses HAh Bz (95) (88) (74) -15.1%

Other income mainly arose from the government grants received in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, commission income, other income

received from franchisees and other interest income.

Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign exchange
loss of HK$289 million (FY2023: HK$328 million) due to the
depreciation of RMB.

Other expenses mainly represented donations of HK$34 million
(FY2023: HK$48 million) and the amortisation of other intangible
assets of HK$40 million (FY2023: HK$40 million).

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

HAUAE SRS E A ith K2 3 8 T8 15 00 U #6 B <
EHOBA L REME B FE MU R MR B WA

HihWwm Rk EEFSENAREEEMELENER S
I8 289 B BB IL( 2023 KESE : 3283 BB T )o

HpZ F B AIBRI4EEBL( 2023 HEE : 48
BEBT ) REMEREE#EI0TEBT(20230
BERE - 40 EEEIT ).
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Interest income, finance costs and taxation FE WA . BlE A K B T

2022 2023 2024

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March H#ZE3ASIHILLEE BEET BEET BEEx [ Lk & 1k
Interest income from banks IRITR B WA 70 228 183 -19.6%
Finance costs on bank borrowings IRITEREE A K (68) (294) (297) +0.8%
Finance costs on gold loans ELEEMENK (234) (252) (357) +41.8%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEEEMENK (36) (39) (51) +28.8%
Taxation wia (2,103) (1,957) (2,121) +8.4%

Interest income from banks decreased by 19.6%, mainly due to a © 2024 BT E, TEHRBERENTERITEMES
relatively lower average bank deposit balance during FY2024. 8%, SUERITHIRUBIAR19.6%,

Finance costs on gold loans increased by 41.8% in FY2024, - 204 HBEE, =B EMEMARIEBA41.8%, JT1H

resulting from a relatively higher average gold loan (by weight) RENKEETIHESES(NESSIE ) EREES
outstanding during the year. IKE,
62 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Return on equity

We use return on equity ("ROE") to measure the efficiency of

generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

Net profit margin increased to 6.1%. ROE was up by 820 basis
points to 24.7% while the equity multiplier increased.

4 i
ROE . Net profit jFimFl

R 1352

Total equity {E&F4AEE

(FY2023: 5.8%)

T T

Net profit Bzl

Assets turnover & |
(FY2023: 1.1 times 1)

Revenue EE8

JBEAS (] e 32
1P 2 PR AR 7 395 S 5 IR B9 6 R R o ME 5 T B R 6
W,

BIERAEEFAE 6%, RIARERE FF 820 @ E F =
24.7%, TMiE# 58RI EFH,

+8.2% pts EB T2
(FY2023: 16.5%)

Equity multiplier #1581
(FY2023: 2.6 times {&)

T

Total assets E&E

Revenue ¥

Annual Report 2024
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Total assets A& E

Total equity #5485
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Inventory balances and turnover period 7 B8 45 R % ]
Inventory balances by product ™

REREINNFEGSR ™

HK$ million
BaEBT YoY
change
B L i
70,000 Eili%=414
64,593 +9.2%
60,000 57,073 59172
50,000 44.6% -9.2%
. 53.7%
40,000 522%
30,000
M Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
20,000 527% +32.3% BRERE. INRRKE SN
44.9% 43.5% Ml Gold jewellery and products
10,000 EHEEMRER
J Watches
0 2.9% 2.8% 2.6% +3.1% =
2022 2023 2024
1. Packaging materials excluded 1. FEFEaEME
Inventory turnover period by category #*
ERI BN MR E R 2>
Day
ES YoY
change
Eili%-414
350
300 294
272 274 -20 daysX
250
200
213 o
212 -9d
150 aysX
100
Bl Finished goods
50 73 EZ) )
59 62 -11 daysX Il Raw materials
) A
2022 2023 2024
2. Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by 2. EIERSHRTEGHR REIEEEME PRIAFNHEM, FERLA3658) 366

cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by - R2024%F3A3MH, FEER(ALEEEYA )L
9.2% and reached HK$64,593 million as at 31 March 2024. FH9.2% ZE 64,593 B & B ITo

Inventory turnover period reduced by 20 days when compared to - FEEBHR2023MREFEERD 20X,
that of FY2023.

As at 31 March 2024, approximately HK$16,535 million or 25.6% of + fR2024%F3A31H, NBEFEHGFERMBFELR
our total inventory balances were held by franchised POS (31 #116,535 B BBV 25.6%( 202338310 : IN&
March 2023: approximately HK$15,570 million or 26.3% were held FERFEL15570 B & BT 26.3% )o

by franchised POS).

If the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded, c MR EFAENFEGN, 2024 MHFERFER
inventory turnover period in FY2024 would have reduced to 204 S TIRE 204 X( 2023 BFE : 216K )o
days (FY2023: 216 days).

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIANOLEE
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Capital structure

i

BN

Increase

% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2023 total equity 31.3.2024 total equity  IB/I( ji 2> ) Denominated Interest rate
HK$ million  {5IEZZ4EE HK$ million  {51EiS4A%E HK$ million currency’ structure’
As at iy BEET B BEET Btk BEET SHEEE R=RE
Non-current assets EREFE E 10,074 30.2% 9,637 36.0% (437) N/AARER N/AARER
Inventories e | 59,290 177.7% 64,647 241.7% 5357 N/AREMA N/ARNiEA
Bank deposits and RITERARES 1,734 35.2% 7,695 28.8% (4,039) Mainly Mainly
cash equivalents? HEY? HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
+TE%5 rate
T +TE%5
AREE  ZEAE

EIT

Total borrowings® wmE 20,941 62.8% 28,624 107.1% 7,683
Bank borrowings IRITEM 5,855 17.6% 4136 15.5% (1,719) HKD and Fixed and
RMB variable
T R interest
NG rate
[E & &2
EER
Gold loans =EEE 15,086 452% 24,488 91.6% 9,402 RMB and Fixed
usb interest
AR¥BR rate
Xt EBlEHN=E
Net debt * EIRFER 9,207 27.6% 20,928 78.2% 1,721 N/ARER N/AAE A
Working capital ® EEEES 26,245 78.7% 21,662 81.0% (4,583) N/AAE A N/A AiE A
Total equity B EER 33,360 100.0% 26,746 100.0% (6,614) N/AAE A N/A AiE A

1. Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at 31

March 2024
2. Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included

3. As at 31 March 2024, bank borrowings amounted to HK$794 million and all the gold loans would be
matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$3,342 million would be matured in

more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years

4. Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

5. Being net current assets

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

1. ARGHEEERAZEENER R 202453 A 31 BHKER

2. BIERITHEBRIADRIEWIRITER
3. [R2024F3A3H, 794EREBINRTENERMARSEERR2EBANEE, @
3342BBBANRITERERBA1FERSR2FNEH

4. RITENR, HEEEZ@RORRITERRBEEEEN)

5. MEMAEFHE
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66

We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the

Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash
flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital for
future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has not

experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated in
HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts and
payments for our Mainland China operations are both made in
RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to our
business.

It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to the
requirement of operating cash flows; and to maintain financial
prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or speculative

derivative products.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HMEESBERRECERSRE. RITEAREERH
EERARREMEEESRAEMTINESTER, &
EEETAFCEERBNNEE A B FER

W&@]B’]ﬁﬁ‘%%%‘o

REBHERFMFECTSRBEERETRE, T
ZEBUREHNEEREREFTHANFEEEFT R, KRR
ERERSTEMEEEEE RIEST I HIFE R, REBER
1815 & R 77 0 b 2 1 fol O B

REBZWARMIXESUBIRARKSE, ME
ERBBEUESZABET. ARBRETEH. HRH#K
MPEANMBERBEEENES XS UARBES,
HEMEEBUEBYEXOE R, BmKEH
HARBKIHAEOUEIPTE,
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Effect of RMB fluctuation N B 8 Y e 2

As part of our business operation is in Mainland China, the BRFEMEBNEBEPEANIMES, AREHIKE
fluctuation in RMB would have some impact on our performance. HAMORBENE FTEE,

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but denominated - BERQSINARBSENRZZA( G HE D E N i E
in RMB, including the inter-group transactions with the Mainland ABETHEREHRXZ ERXZE XN EERR
China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD, the functional currency BB, BMAREENINEEY, MASGENZZ A
of the Group, initially using the spot rate at the date of transaction BIANKWMEXRGEEBENRE, HEEREICHE
and the unsettled transactions are retranslated at closing ZRRBEERRBERPER, MARBEESHI
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Such translation MEIFERNEREN B EEE,

differences between the spot rate and closing exchange rate are
recognised in profit or loss, negatively affecting our profit for the

year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses of < ESh, ERERIRR ) E A I EB S 1 T ) [

the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the EMERBIT, MRKEZINEY, MEBENEZER
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange rate, BENKNMERRE ; Ri)PENMSENEZEFE
while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated at Ji2 7 BT I 6 6T ST T 22 0 18 B I F KD LSL T =2
closing exchange rate and ii) the change in closing exchange rates AMEH, ARERRBTPRNRERMENERAR.

at the current financial year of the net assets of the Mainland
China segment from the closing rates at the previous financial

year. Such differences are recognised in the translation reserve in

equity.

The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the impact - TERAAMIIRARBEIRENAN S MIIBRENR

on our financial performance:

4 }UJ
KN
mlFﬁ

FY2024 Closing exchange rate YoY change Average exchange rate YoY change
IS EE 22 [e] EE 2 1k THEZRRE LEEL
RMB to HKD
ARBRET
2023 2024
Constant Constant
exchange exchange
As reported rate basis As reported rate basis
EHERE R
For the year ended 31 March HEIATHLEE Fif £ 3R EX5HE Fi 23R EXsH
Revenue YoY change ERGELLENW -4.3% +0.5% +14.8% +18.5%
Core operating profit YoY change BiEE RN E -5.6% -0.5% +28.9% +33.1%
Changes in inventory balances FEERET +3.6% +8.7% +9.0% +11.4%
Changes in bank deposits and cash equivalents $R{TTFF R IZ & E @Y E L -21.5% -15.6% -34.4% -31.9%
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Cash flows and others

2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March H#EIAMBLEE BEET BEET BEET
Operating cash flows before movements gEEREIRZEEREME 11,984 1,619 15,491
in working capital
Leases paid’ EEE (1,017) (953) (893)
Net cash used in inventories 2 FEMARESESR (4163) (6,304) (829)
Net cash from (used in) other operating HihvE &S/ FMAE( A )RS FSE 5,628 3,794 (1,742)
activities
Capital expenditure B (1,531) (1,982) (963)
Pro forma free cash flows HEZEHRERE 10,901 6174 11,064
Net change in bank borrowings IRTTENFEI 2,641 (3,216) (1,749)
Dividends paid EfRE (4,689) (5,079) (12,538)
Other movements EL{th s &) 57 (1,126) (777)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRrBEEFEMEN(RLY )FHE 8,910 (3,247) (4,000)

cash equivalents

Major cash flows items for FY2024

20248 FETEREMREIER
HK$ million
ﬁ&??ﬁﬁo

Pro forma free cash flows % BHRERE

T
30,000
15,491

26,000
893
22,000
18,000
14,000 11,695
10,000
6,000

2,000

1,742 963

1,749

7,695

12538

As at iR
31.3.2023

1. With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities

2. Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories and repayment of gold loans
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As at 12
31.3.2024

Operating cash flows
before movements in
working capital
SEESEHFIZEE
RERE

Leases paid’
EfffE!

Net cash used in
inventories ?
FEMARESFE?

Net cash used in other
operating activities
Bt &S AT AR S PR
Capital expenditure
EpiNEig

Net decrease in bank
borrowings
SRATERUBERD
Dividends paid
EfTRE

Other movements
Hih &)

1. PRANEIRREIIS RS R 1658, DIEES AREEH

2. FEMAREFROEFEFLILEEES

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2024 amounted

to HK$963 million (FY2023: HK$1,982 million).

Capital expenditure by nature *

EA B L

REER204 M BEENERMESZ AT E BT
(20230 UAETE - 1,982B&EIBIT )o

R E R AEARSE *
HK$ million
BEBT
1,982
2,000
1600 1,531
1200 74.8%
963
800 89.5%
749%
400
21.0%
6.7% 23.9%
o 3.8% 41% 125
2022 2023 2024
Capital expenditure by function *
EEEEIR BE AR *
HKS$ million
BEET
1,982
2,000
21.3%
1600 1,531
8.3%
1,200
963
. 60.4%
800 69.5% 22.0%
54.3%
400 2.9% 4.8%
" 3 43%
0
2022 2023 2024

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31

March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIASIBLLFE

Annual Report 2024
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o AR AR

BB Furniture, textures and equipment and
leasehold improvements
b SRERER AT SIS

Ml Land and buildings and construction in
progress
T RS FRERTRE

I Plant and machinery and motor vehicles
B R Mg BE RN B

Projects
"B

POS
FER

J Productions
*E

[l Offices
WAz

REEEMR2024F 33T H R 2023F 3318 i #{F
fIEXRYAREE,

AR IR I

NEEMR 2024 3H31H R 2023F3H31THKE R
FIEFF R GS M IREM EE 31,
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASH

E = =] X B >~ FIEﬂ )|
Executive Directors I{TEE Responsibilities &

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry*, GBM, GBS (Chairman) @@@ Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
R AIEL *(GBM, GBS)(EFE) IREBEBIRIB T E R BERER

2 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* (Vice-chairman) @@ Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group
BEE A H(BIEE) REEEREE 8. KRR RERELE

3 Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia* (Vice-chairman) @@ Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group
BEE R+ H(BIEE) REERE . REREHESLE

4 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) e@ Overall corporate management, strategy and operations of the Group
EIRA S (BRI REEEBTEESE. HIgHEEE

5 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian?, JP Strategic investment
EERITE L *(JP) riskE

6 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson * Bank and landlord relationship management
EDSRAR ST A ¢ IRITAIRERAREIE

7 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton @ Financial management, corporate governance and investor relations
ERIRER S & WHEERE, CEEERREBME

8 Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Business in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan of China
RERTE PEEE. PEIEMERPE G SR RS

9 Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby Development of individual brands, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE,
BiRATE and watch business in Mainland China

&M Gk ENZOL SOINLOVE A1 MONOLOGUE, 2 th[E A i #8 8% 3 55 00 3% R

Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHITESE Responsibilities B&E

10 Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon @@ Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED", or "INEDs" in the
Bkt plural) serve a significant role in the Board to bring independent

11 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBM, GBS, JP @@@ judgment on the performance, development and risk management
HERE55 4 (GBM. GBS, JP) of the Group. As chairmen or members of the Nomination

' ' Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and/ or

12 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP @@@ Sustainability Committee, they also undertake detailed governance
S KEE L (SBS, JP) work under the respective terms of reference of the committees.
13 Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily QO® nurnrssnesenEEESHE, AAEENER. BRR
LR AREBETEIER. FTARSSEE. FHSAE,. BEKSAE
14 Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, JP @@ %/ zmgfﬁ;}ff%%{fﬂqaiﬁﬂﬁyé: MPTRIES S ESHEN
RETRENEE TF,

EmEELE (UP)

15 Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina @@

HkEL

16 Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric @@
Wamkt

NC = Nomination Committee member RC = Remuneration Committee member AC = Audit Committee member
RESAGNE HMERENE HEVSEGHE

SC = Sustainability Committee member STC = Strategy and Transformation Committee member *  Committee Chairman
IHESREEGNEA RENNEESEGHE SEFER

#  Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.
hBREEARANSEERRAMEARKEN R PRIk 2, NAT A RN 2 1 5HE,
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS
Aged 77, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an

executive Director in July 2011. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is
responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of

the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is also
a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of New
World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings Limited,
and also chairman and a non-executive director of FSE Lifestyle
Services Limited and i-CABLE Communications Limited, all of which

are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of the

People's Republic of China.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Ms.
Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a

cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.

Annual Report 2024
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VICE CHAIRMEN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Aged 46, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive

Director in July 2011 and became Vice-chairman and executive
Director in June 2022. Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for strategic
direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group. He
is a member of the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng has been in the jewellery industry for over 15 years, with
extensive knowledge of the global diamond market. He is currently a
member of the executive committee of the Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, China and a board member of the World Diamond
Council.

Mr. Cheng is a non-executive director of New World Development

Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at a Hong
Kong-based investment management company as a corporate finance

executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, and a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.
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Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Aged 43, joined the Group in April 2019 as a non-executive Director,
re-designated as an executive Director in April 2021, and became
Vice-chairman and executive Director in June 2022. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for strategic direction, performance and corporate
transformation of the Group. She is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Strategy and Transformation Committee of the

Company. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group. She is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited and a non-executive director of Giordano
International Limited (appointed on 3 April 2024), both of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an independent
non-executive director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. Ms. Cheng was an independent director of
Primavera Capital Acquisition Corporation, a company listed on the

New York Stock Exchange, until her resignation in December 2022.

Ms. Cheng serves as a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and
chairman of its Marketing and Business Development Committee. She
is a council member of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
member of its Committee on Institutional Advancement and
Community Relations, a member of Human Resources Planning
Commission and a member of The Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Service of the HKSAR. She is also
the Vice-Governor of Guangdong Youth Development Foundation.
Furthermore, Ms. Cheng is a member of the Thirteenth Guangdong
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative

Conference of the People's Republic of China.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited, Ms. Cheng
worked in a major international investment bank and a global US
private equity firm specialising in real estate investments. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied Mathematics with a concentration

in Economics from Harvard University.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the sister
of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011. He is responsible for the
Group's overall corporate management, strategy and operations. He is
a member of the Sustainability Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wong has over 45 years' diverse experience in the jewellery
industry with a proven track record in business development in
China as well as in corporate operations and management. He has
been feted with the highest accolade of the JNA Awards 2020,
the "Lifetime Achievement Award", for his outstanding lifetime
achievements and contributions to the global jewellery community.
He also received "Extraordinary 40" Awards from Jewellery World
Awards in 2023. Mr. Wong was awarded Director of The Year
Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in December
2015. He was ranked the 1t place as the "Best CEQ" by
Institutional Investors 2023 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings, in
Asia (ex-Mainland China) in the Consumer/ Discretionary sector,
combined vote type; was recognised Best IR by Chairman/ CEO by
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association in 2023; and has also
been named as "Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)" by Corporate
Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on corporate

governance, at its Asian Excellence Awards in 2023 and 2024.

Mr. Wong is dedicated to giving back to the community and the
industry through his participation in public or non-profit
organisations. He serves as a member of the 2024 Fair Organising
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its
Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong
International Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, a council member of
The Hong Kong Management Association, chairman of the
Jewellers' and Goldsmiths' Association of Hong Kong, chairman of
the supervising committee of the Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers'
& Goldsmiths' Employees' Association, a permanent honorary
president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchants' Staff
Association, and a board member of CIBJO, the World Jewellery
Confederation. He is also president of the executive committee
2022/2024 of Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Crystal
International Group Limited, which is a listed public company in
Hong Kong.

76 Governance
EEaVAN
=§(=)

HATH R
B AR o R

HE68EE, RI977FMAREE, 201 F7HESES
RATEEREE, RERNKEERDREE. #HigR

ERERKETEHEABISTFESER, TPEIFER
HRERETHREENEERTDBEEANE, iE20204F
EREINAKXEBRZER BN ME |IRSIKR, AKE
il R MAHERREERFHNSE B, i
E£2023F 5K E Jewellery World Awards[ FEJL40 K2,
WAL 006F N2 ABGETEEERGRITMI[ 2015F
EfHEESE |, ffE Institutional Investor 2023 F Z
All-Asia Executive Team HE 1745 ap il H il ith & ( Bk o E
KENEVWHHEREANGETED, B A RETH
R VRBIEHRE—; R2023F, RETEREHBIE
MEFEAE RERETHRGE(EIRE/ TEBFH)]; &
EEHTEEARRMMAE(EIMEEEE )R2023F R
2024 F R SR N S K2R |, MREER SRiN&E
THRE(REERE) L

BAREERHSSRAXFIFENEBER, BILE
HEMXR MRETSEEZLREETBEAKRKER
HEBHKRELD. BEORBIKEN2024FEHESETS
8, CHREREXNEESESE, SHEKEENERE
TR, BLHEENANEBHER, EBNMANET
REZEER, URBERKESHHEGECIBIOEES
B, MR MEL2022/2024 FEANTSETE R,

Bt NMERBEREEERATEIIFATES, Z
NEHBFBLEMARAE,

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBEHRESEARAS



Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, SBS, JP

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the strategic
investment of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer of
New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the strategic
direction for its property development and investment activities. He is
also chairman and a non-executive director of New World Department
Store China Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of Arta
TechFin Corporation Limited, and a non-executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited (re-designated from executive director with effect
from 1 April 2024), all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He was a non-executive director of New Century Healthcare
Holding Co. Limited, until his resignation on 1 June 2022; a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited, until his
resignation on 1 December 2022; and a non-executive director and a
co-chairman of Meta Media Holdings Limited, until his resignation on 5
October 2023, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng serves as a member of the Fourteenth National Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of the
People's Republic of China, a vice-president of All-China General
Chamber of Industry and Commerce, the chairman of the Mega Arts
and Cultural Events Committee, a board member of the Hong Kong
Financial Services Development Council and the chair of the board of
Hong Kong Academy for Wealth Legacy, a non-official member of the
Task Force on Promoting and Branding Hong Kong, and a member of
the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and
Pacific (ESCAP) Sustainable Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council
and the chair of the ESBN Task Force on Innovation. He is the chairman
of New World Group Charity Foundation Limited, the vice chairman of
CTF Education Group, the founder of K11 Art Foundation, the founder
of The WEMP Foundation, and the chairman of China Young Leaders
Foundation. Dr. Cheng is a Justice of Peace appointed by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since
2016 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2022. He was made
an "Officier de I'Ordre des Arts et des Lettres" by the French
Government in 2017, and an "Officier de 'Ordre National du Mérite" in
2022.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University and received the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by the
Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. He was conferred an
Honorary Fellowship by Lingnan University in 2014, an Honorary
University Fellowship by The University of Hong Kong in 2022 and an
Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2023. Dr. Cheng worked in a major international bank
from September 2003 to April 2006 prior to joining the Group, and
has substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the brother of
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a
nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 65, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive Director in April
2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible for the Group's bank and landlord
relationship management. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is chairman of the Supervisory Committee of The Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society. He has over 45 years' experience in
administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii,

Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, and an
uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is the Chief Financial Officer
responsible for the Group's financial management, corporate
governance and investor relations. Mr. Cheng is a member of the
Strategy and Transformation Committee of the Company. He also
serves as a joint company secretary of the Company and a director of

certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The Prince of Wales's
Business & Sustainability Programme designed by the University of
Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership and obtained
Executive Diploma in Corporate Governance and Sustainability

Directorship from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was ranked the 1 place in the "Best CFO" category in
Institutional Investor's 2023 All-Asia Executive Team rankings, in Asia
(ex-Mainland China) in Consumer/ Discretionary sector, combined
vote type. He was recognised Best IR by CFO by Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association in 2023. He has also been named as "Asia's Best
CFO (Investor Relations)" by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian
Excellence Awards in 2023 and 2024. Mr. Cheng was awarded
Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors in December 2015.
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Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 59, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
business in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan of China. He is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for almost 40 years. He is
a member of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, the executive committee of The
Jewellers' and Goldsmiths' Association of Hong Kong, the executive
committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework and the committee on fundraising of Youth
Outreach. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's Degree in Business

Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 49, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for the
development of individual brands of the Group, including ENZO,
SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE, as well as that of the Group's watch
business in Mainland China. He is also a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in retail business and
operational management. He is a member of the Yantian District
Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference
in Shenzhen, executive committee member of the Shenzhen
Federation of Industry & Commerce and vice chairman of the
Federation of Industry and Commerce of Yantian District, Shenzhen
Municipal, and vice chairman of the council of Shenzhen Performance

Excellence Management Foundation.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Mathematics

from Carleton University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a

member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of
PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during
which, he had acted as convener of both the Compliance Committee

and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, FSE Lifestyle Services Limited and
COSCO Shipping International (Hong Kong) Company Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority SA (a
company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange) and Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited. Mr. Kwong was an independent non-
executive director of NWS Holdings Limited, a listed public company in

Hong Kong, until his retirement on 21 November 2022.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of

the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C Land
Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited,
Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties Limited, Analogue
Holdings Limited, CSC Holdings Limited, and Golden Resources
Development International Limited (appointed on 2 April 2024), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was an executive
director of USPACE Technology Group Limited (formerly known as
Hong Kong Aerospace Technology Group Limited), a listed public

company in Hong Kong, until his resignation on 28 November 2023.

Mr. Lam is a non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong. He also holds several other public and
community service positions, including being a general committee
member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, an
honorary member of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a director of the board of Heifer Hong Kong. Mr. Lam
was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference, and a director of Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the Grand
Bauhinia Medal by the HKSAR Government in 2023.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from Tufts
University in the United States. He has over 40 years of experience in
the toy industry and is currently the managing director of Forward

Winsome Industries Limited, which is engaged in toy manufacturing.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, |P

Aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee

of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
CSC Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited and Playmates
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited.

Dr. Or holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and
Psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded
Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in 2009.
Dr. Or was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Social Science from the
City University of Hong Kong in 2014 and was conferred Honorary
Fellowship by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
Hang Seng Management College) in May 2017.

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the

Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry for
over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate executive.
She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel Labs Limited, a
software lab developing Al-powered edtech games and applications.
She served as the President of TripAdvisor, APAC from 2014 to 2016
and held various management roles at TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia,
Inc. from 2008 to 2016. She was a management consultant with The
Boston Consulting Group from 2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Engineering and a Master
of Engineering Degree from the University of Cambridge and a Graduate

Certificate in Artificial Intelligence from Stanford University.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Sunevision
Holdings Limited and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (appointed on
20 May 2024), both of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. She is also an independent non-executive director of Octopus
Cards Limited, a board observer and advisor to HBX Group and a
non-executive member of the Global Council of Herbert Smith
Freehills, LLC.. Ms. Cheng has been an independent non-executive
director of Swire Properties Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong, from 17 March 2017 to 7 May 2024.
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Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, |P

Aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
April 2021 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chia is a member of the board of director of Hong Kong Science
and Technology Parks Corporation. He has around 15 years of
practical experience in big data strategy and application with unique
insights into the future trends of e-commerce. He joined Alibaba in
2010 and served as the Vice President of Alibaba (China) Co., Ltd. and
the President of Data Committee. During his tenure with Alibaba, the
data team of Alibaba was awarded "China Excellent IT Team" in the
"Excellent Chinese CIO" selection in 2014. Mr. Herbert Chia was rated
as "China Top 10 Most Influential Big Data Entrepreneurs" by the
State Information Center of China in 2017 and garnered Outstanding
Achievement Award in 2021 Al Golden Goose Awards of China. He is

also a former Venture Partner of Sequoia Capital China.

Mr. Chia has been making significant contributions in helping to bring
China's big data industry to a new level and has actively promoted
Hong Kong to become the big data pilot city in The China Great Bay
Area and The Belt and Road. In Hong Kong, he serves as a co-opted
member of the Information Technology Services Committee of the
Hospital Authority of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a non-
official member of the Education Commission and the Digital Economy
Development Committee, and Vice Chairman of GBA International

Information Technology Association.

Mr. Chia is the Adjunct Professor of the School of Management of
Zhejiang University and the Alibaba Business School, and the Adjunct
Associate Professor of The University of Hong Kong (Institute for
China Business). He is also the author of various best-selling books
including The Big Data and The Nature of Big Data. He holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) Degree from
Tsinghua University and an EMBA Degree from the Institut Européen d'
Administration des Affaires (INSEAD).
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Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina

Aged 52, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2022, and is a member of the Nomination

Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Fung is the group managing director of Fung Retailing Group, a
non-executive director of Convenience Retail Asia Limited, a listed
public company in Hong Kong, and the chief executive officer of Asia
Retail Company Limited, a company of the Fung Group (a Hong Kong-
based multinational group which comprises major operating groups
engaging in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing) focusing on
supporting and growing international brands in Asia. She also serves
as the chair of Wellness Med Limited, a company under the Fung

Group that serves the growing global health and wellness market.

Ms. Fung is also the investment director of Fung Investment
Management Limited. She started working at the private investment
arm of the Fung Group in 2000 as investment manager running the
family's investments. Prior to joining the Fung Group, Ms. Fung worked
for Brown Brothers Harriman & Co in New York and Hong Kong until
1999. Ms. Fung is experienced in the retail industry and had held
positions in marketing and public relations for Salvatore Ferragamo
Asia, as well as in merchandising, sourcing and branding for Li & Fung
group in Hong Kong and the USA. She was named in the Business of
Fashion 500 in 2016, and Women's Wear Daily 10 of Tomorrow in 2017.

In Hong Kong, Ms. Fung is a member of the Major Sports Events
Committee of HKSAR, a member of the board of Alibaba Hong Kong
Entrepreneurs Fund, an advisor on Retailing and Fashion for NBA
Greater China, a member of the Executive Committee of the
International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics
of the University of Hong Kong, an honorary member of the Advisory
Committee of the Roger King Center for Asian Family Business and
Family Office at Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
Business School, and a member of the advisory panel of IBM
Collaborative Innovative Program, the Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong-Europe Business Council and the Hong Kong-France Business
Council of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Internationally, Ms.
Fung is a member of MclLaren Advisory Group, Harvard Global Advisory
Council, the board of trustees of The Carmnegie Hall Corporation in New
York, and the co-chair of Asia Council of St. Paul's School in New
Hampshire, USA.

Ms. Fung is also an independent non-executive director of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (appointed on 29 April 2024),
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Fung graduated from Harvard University, with a Bachelor of Arts
Degree in Economics. She attended Harvard Business School's
Program for Global Leadership and its Business of Entertainment,

Media and Sports program afterwards.
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Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric
Aged 59, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2023, and is chairman of the Sustainability

Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tang has over 35 years of audit and assurance experience, with
clientele covering listed companies in Hong Kong, state owned
enterprises, MNCs and SEC registrants. He has in-depth experience in
consumer business industry and capital market transactions including
initial public offerings, re-organisations, and strategic acquisitions. Mr.
Tang was a Partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1999 to 2022.
He had held different leadership roles during his tenure which
included National Leader of Consumer Business & Transportation
Industry, National Leader of Audit Learning, National Audit Risk
Leader, and National Professional Practice Director, and he had served
as a member of Deloitte China Governing Board. Mr. Tang has been
appointed as an advisor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu since his

retirement from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in 2022.

Mr. Tang currently serves as a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel of the Hong Kong Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council. He is a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants; a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and a Certified Internal Auditor of the Institute of

Internal Auditors.

Mr. Tang holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce Degree and a Professional Diploma in Professional

Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on p.78 of this annual report

under the sub-section of "Executive Directors".

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 63, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the Chief Legal Officer of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of experience
in corporate, commercial and related regulatory practice. He was a
long-standing partner and later on, consultant, of a leading law firm
before joining the Group and has extensive experience on corporate
finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served on a number of public

appointments.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Annie Wong

Aged 60, joined the Group in 2023, is the Chief Operating Officer
responsible for the Group's commercial and business strategies, the
development of end-to-end value chain efficiencies and integration of
demand/ supply management and fulfillment. Ms. Wong has over 30
years of experience in luxury retail operations, and an impressive
range of expertise in management consulting, operations, and
executive leadership. She holds an Executive Master's Degree in
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She is also a Graduate Diamonds Gemologist of the Gemological

Institute of America.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2010, is the Chief Brand Officer responsible
for the branding and marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Chan has
around 30 years of experience in luxury brand management

and marketing.

Ms. Lui Yin-Ming, Theresa

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief People Officer
responsible for the strategic direction of the Group's human resources
function, to ensure that right people strategies are in place to support
the long-term development of the Group. Ms. Lui is a seasoned HR

veteran in the retail industry and has over 25 years of experience.

Mr. Cheung Wang-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 35, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief Digital Officer
responsible for technology, eCommerce, loyalty and data governance
functions of the Group, steering the enhancement of digital
experience and enterprise systems to drive sales growth and
maximise efficiency for the Group's development. Mr. Cheung has
extensive experience in deriving transformation roadmap, devising
digital transformation strategies and driving operational excellence

across China and globally.

Ms. Danita On
Aged 47, joined the Group in 2012, is the senior director of Investor

Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and media.
Ms. On has over 25 years of experience in auditing, management
consulting, equity research, asset management and investor relations.
She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark
Aged 62, joined the Group in 1986, is the director responsible for the

procurement planning and manufacturing management of diamonds
of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience in the

jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi, Tony
Aged 52, joined the Group in 1994, is the director responsible for the

procurement planning and management of gemstones such as jadeite,
colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has around 30

years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 61, joined the Group in 2011, is the assistant general manager
responsible for manufacturing technology transformation of the
Group. Mr. Tam has over 30 years of experience in jewellery

manufacturing with a focus on advanced technology application.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max
Aged 41, joined the Group in 2011, is the general manager responsible

for the creative design and development of jewellery products. Mr.
Lam holds an MA in Design, Innovation & Brand Management from
University for the Creative Arts, United Kingdom. He has over 20
years of experience in the jewellery industry, specializing in jewellery
design and strategic product innovation. Mr. Lam was awarded Hong
Kong Ten Outstanding Designer Award and was conferred Fellowship
and Chartered Manager by the Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration. He has been a committee member of the

International Jewellery Designer Association since 2017.

Ms. Liu Po King
Aged 49, joined the group in 2006, is the general manager responsible

for scaling the Group's business outside of China as well as in travel
retail. Since 2015, she has been leading the Group's global expansion
across diverse markets spanning the ASEAN region, North America,
Japan, and Korea. Ms. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the
jewellery retail sector. She serves as the director of Training and

Learning of the Institute of Shopping Centre Management in Hong Kong.
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Ms. Yuan Jie

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2002, is the executive general manager
responsible for managing the Mainland China Management Center of
the Group, orchestrating the overall enterprise management in the
Mainland China. Ms. Yuan has over 20 years of experience in change
management, process efficiency optimisation, risk control, corporate

culture building and talent development.

Ms. Yang Xiao-Lin
Aged 44, joined the Group in 2004, is a general manager responsible for

the Group's financial management, strategic finance and shared service
center as well as leading the finance team in the Mainland China. Ms.
Yang has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, financial
management and risk management. Ms. Yang is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEE RS

OUR 4T FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FA A B[ 4T |

Corporate governance provides a framework within which the Board T%EB EF El $ g %U TE IR SR AD Fil e N 6k [ 3R S AR 2R o

forms their decisions and builds the Group's businesses. Our "4T" FAE

TIRAEERREEERNERE, X

principles for corporate governance guide the development of our FREKEESE iﬁ\iﬁﬁﬂig'fiﬁﬁ, MO EIE RAERE

corporate governance practices, supporting the Group in better
achieving our strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and

development.

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine

Transparent

EfliER BiEoTA

mutual understanding with stakeholders

BiRERAFMRREMZREREE, fURRER

HRENBEET®

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business

Thoughtful
FHES HAOE

acumen who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and
attainment of common values with stakeholders

EREEURE. FETENERNANEARERNOEMS, FEHEMNRHNAE

ROUFENRBERNERENENHREES

Truthful Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental

HEEE HUHOE

interests of stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them

ERRABUKMENNL, RERNEFERANEREHKIEETBEGEERE

Traceable

HERE BFRTSE

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive
better utilisation of resources and fulfilment of stakeholders' interests

i i RS AR R R, NEANERERNERENE KNGS

OUR BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK HRTEIR

Board Structure * Board of directors
EFERE 55T
* Board committees
EFELHEE

Responsibilities and main tasks

WEANESTIF

Board Composition * Board diversity
EETHEMN EFFT i
* Board refreshment
EFTEM
» Director roles and functions

EHHAEARERE

Continuing professional development
Remuneration

7

Board Operations - Board independence
EETEF EFgWIUM

Communication and information support

BImAD Bl 2

Compliance and accountability
GBS
Evaluation

SFiE

Shareholder Communications Interactive engagement

B RAEE o 5 H R

Shareholder rights and other information

A% SR RIAD EL{th & 4
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BOARD STRUCTURE

i

e

The Board

E5g

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee Committee
REEEE HNEEE BEREEE

Board of directors

Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group by
overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and
directing and supervising its affairs.

Sets the Group's core values, corporate culture and adopts proper
standards to ensure that the Company operates with integrity and
being responsible to our shareholders and other stakeholders for
the Group's performance.

Establishes board committees to undertake governance duties as
specified in their respective terms of reference.

Sets out the list of reserved matters that are significant to the
interests of the shareholders for the Board's review and/ or
decision, such as approving results and dividends, transactions over
a specified threshold limit or which are subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules, matters involving conflict of interest related to

certain directors or which require to obtain shareholders' consent.

Nomination committee

Responsible for board nomination, diversity, succession plan,
independence assessment and continuing professional
development.

Conducts performance evaluation of the Board and the directors.

Remuneration committee

90

Determines remuneration for directors and senior management;
oversight on the Group's remuneration policy and structure,
incentive mechanisms and share schemes.

Advises on strategic issues related to organisation structure,

corporate culture, people development and succession pipeline.

Governance
&8

I I
Strategy and

RGN Transformation

Committee
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Audit committee %1‘7 %8

Oversight on financial statements, financial reporting systems, BB B iﬁ? MM SES ARG BRIMS ; RIZEED
corporate reports; and the appointment of auditor. EUECEN

Oversight on risk management and internal control systems, - BEEREEONPEHRK. NEDEZERE. fA58
internal audit function, cyber-security and data governance; SENERIEE ; BTEEEIGTH

compliance with Corporate Governance Code.

Sustainability committee Ll ?—ir HERZE ARG
Oversight on sustainability strategy and performance, Wﬂ—”—?ﬁﬁ‘%%ﬂ%*ﬂw\ﬂ\ HhEnNkERR RO
stakeholders' feedbacks and sustainability reporting. TEERBRS
Oversight on sustainability risks and opportunities, review of : W*&Th"a%?ﬂﬂl‘wﬁ*uﬁk R AR ERE
trends, major issues and policies related to sustainability. K. ESFRMER,

Strategy and transformation committee RIS MM EZ B &
Assumes leadership and monitoring responsibilities in strategy and - BEHENEEHIENTRE. #KEEE. AKX
corporate reforms, business operations, financial performance, B, REEE. tEBENEGR,

investment projects, corporate administration and compliance.
Being delegated with all the powers to act like a standing - BEMAERUNBUIESEERSEEGRNINTSE

committee of the Board to make decisions and report back to the RERMWEOESGER, MHEHEB %%E"}%Eﬁi?ﬁ BT
Board, except for matters reserved for the Board's decision or FHATEFEENEHMESFTSEGTRENSF HIR,

other board committees which require INEDs' oversight.
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Main tasks of the board of directors

Area of focus

REHE

FY2024
(Number of meetings EiHIXE : 4)

EHEH EETE

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Strategy planning and
execution
REEHR BNFO AT

Review on the medium to long-term goals and strategies

@51 P Il E R I B IRAD SR B

Comment on the current corporate plan and financial budget

T B A A S F BAERE

Receive the reports from the Strategy and Transformation Committee

BERBMNNESSBNRS

Business and financial
performance

SRIFAO I R IR

Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend
HEFERGURS AREFH KPR S

Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend
HEPHEENRSARPHRER

Review recent business development, industry trends and
market outlook

BT ITARBF R RE. TREZNMG R

Receive the investor feedback report

RRREENRERS

Corporate governance

A s gy
THEER

Receive the reports from the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Sustainability Committee
ROREECET. HF#HESET. ERSEGNIHERRSETN
WS

Approve changes in board committee and board positions
HEESCEERESTEHHENEE

Approve granting of share awards

HEHEFE AR 10 22 Bh

Review sustainability performance and approve the report

R O A R R RIRAOHEB R R S

Approve the proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual general
meeting and the publication of related circular

TR 2 7 IR AUA XS 6 2 55 1R 558 52 A0 1 3248 BA 1 oR

Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs

EETIREBUFATESHNMMSH

v

v

During the year, the Board has increased attention on:

FN, EFFERBEILATEIR

Business resilience and cost optimisation amid the market
uncertainties.

Refining of brand identity and product strategies to enhance the
leading position of the Group in the jewellery market.
Rationalisation of market development and management strategies
catering for different market segments in the Mainland market to

enhance the quality and profitability of POS.

Governance
&8

SRS NTERD AY ZN 18 1 LA FE 31 T 15 8 B B0 AR B E M o
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Main tasks of the nomination committee

RAZBEMEE T

Area of focus FY2024
BEGE (Number of meetings & & IXEL : 2) Q1 Q3
Board performance Evaluate on the structure, delegation and memberships of Board committees v
assessment HEESSEENNRE. BEN TN ESEN
EFETRFTMG Evaluate on the roles, functions and performance of executive directors v
FEMTESFNAER. BrEREY
Re-define the status, delegation and composition of Sustainability Committee v
BMATUFBERRTEGNEN. BEMNHEMN
Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment of INEDs v
S A SR XL AR AT E S BB I AR A B
Review and monitor the training and continuing professional development of directors and v
senior management
REANEREFNESHREEABNEIRFESERER
Review the implementation of the mechanism to ensure independent views and input are v
available to the Board
MEREFGEIE BN E BT HIERME SN E SR
Board composition review Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives required by future v
BB FHAEMN KT strategic needs
FERRRE RS RESEMBNENESNZ T B
Review the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress v
BT BRINESEEN. St BENEER
Board refreshment or Follow up and review the progress of board refreshment with respect to INEDs v v
succession MBUFAITESHNESTEMTIF L IREN BT EE
EETEMVET Review and discuss on executive directors' future development and succession plans v
5T R0 57 o #1172 B B R 3 R A0 AR (2 51 2
Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors v
REBEENMENENSE
Directors' nomination and Nomination and selection of directors and recommendation on the relevant appointment v 4
appointment RENMESEREDBESE
EENREREE Plan for induction programme for new directors v

MESHEIRE 5t

During the year, the Nomination Committee has increased attention on:

Board independence and INED refreshment plan.

Management succession and development of a pipeline with
diversity of perspectives.

Revamp of the Sustainability Committee to separate the
governance function and management function and ensure the

proper discharge of board oversight responsibilities in respect of

BEHUBEXREEE, HER

strategy and performance, risk and opportunities and the reporting

related to sustainability.
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Main tasks of the remuneration committee B Z B e FEE AR

Area of focus FY2024
REHEE (Number of meetings B IR 8 : 2) Q1 Q4
Performance and rewards ~ + Assess on the linkage between Company's performance and remuneration level for v
for executive directors and executive directors and senior management
senior management FERABIRFEATESNSREE A S5 B 2 [ 65 B
MITESREHREEAE - Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for executive directors and v
B2 IR FO 42 @ senior management with reference to the Group's performance, remuneration strategy and
market competitiveness
SENREKEFRGE. FHRBNTSERFNUNEENTEFRESREEA BHHTE
FOF B
Consider and approve on the granting of share awards to executive directors and senior v
management, including but not limited to determination of the number of awards, vesting
period and performance target, with due regard to effective motivation and retention of
corporate leaders
REYHMEBAOREERBHAT, EEOMEARTESNSHRERASR B RN
B, BEEFRREERBHE. BEANENER
Remuneration policy - Determine and supervise on the remuneration policy and structure respectively for v 4
and strategy directors and employees
i B ISR A0 2R 8 EEMSEESRES KD BERIEH
Determine and approve on the terms of share award scheme v
i TE RO HE R AR 1) 22 ) 51 81 1) 1% 5K
Review and approve the mechanism and metrics for short-term and long-term incentives v v
fa 5T RO HE A HA K2 = HA 22 BN 60 1 1 A0 15 1R
Endorse the annual pay rise budget for frontline and back office staff with reference to v
market salary survey, the Company's performance and incentive strategy
SEMGHMAES. ROSIRBIEEBMRKE, MRAGRLEHNE LNFRENHESR
Strategic development + Supervise on human resources strategies and action plans v
REG MR BEANEIRREEZITEE S
Review on the organisational structure, major changes in the management members, and v v

overall manpower statistics

RETAAMIRIE. EBASNESHEIMNER A NHTEE
During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased attention on: FA, HFWESEGERBMEUTEIR .

Mechanism and metrics for both short-term and long-term - AR RIERNEHEER, ReSBLEmME,

incentives to enhance staff motivation.

- Corporate culture, talent development and pipeline building. - BEXN. ATBRERZETBIHE,
Efficiency of organisation in terms of team structure and division of - BRI S S T m AR AUE,

responsibilities.
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Main tasks of the audit committee

FHZA KN LT

Area of focus FY2024
REHE (Number of meetings & IXE : 3) Q1 Q3 Q4
Financial statements Receive the management's analysis on the business and financial review v v
U i BN e 1 JE Y 5ROB A0 BT (B) R B ) AT
Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for the v v
Group's interim and annual results
B BN SR h H R B SR AR R AR B 2 A0 EE
External auditor Comment on the annual audit plan v
S BB 1% ELEm HEEELTEARHER
Receive auditor's audit report, or interim review report, including the key 4 v
audit matters
REZEMKET RS PHEMRS, BEFESEHFEHE
Private meeting with auditor 4
B BB R 1T P G 5%
Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of auditor, 4
and recommend on their re-appointment
BERZEEMVEIENSERE. RRNER, UREBEMSE
Review on the implementation of policy to regulate non-assurance services 4 4
provided by external auditor
15T AR & I 80 A% BUEm =2 11T 3F 22 58 IR A BUR BO & i
Review of auditor re-tendering policy 4
18 5 2 BB 22 T 18 IR BUR
Risk management and Receive risk management reports 4 v
controls R E R E RS
2 B 1 FO 4% Receive internal audit reports v v v/
FEB NG E GRS
Receive anti-fraud reports v v v
RS ERRS
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Area of focus

REHE FY2024 Q1 Q3 Q4
Corporate governance Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal control v
TEEIBR systems, reporting processes, and external and internal audit
FERTAREENNSBRIERGEREYE. PRER, URINEER
N EB & 1%
Annual review on the continuing connected transactions v
AR R N B B E X 5
Review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code v
BREFREBTANETER
Annual review on the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders' v
communication policy
F AR 5T IR BB I8 BUR 00 8 e 12 A U
Review the disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual reports v v
(including Corporate Governance Report therein)
BREELS. PHRSRFHR(OFEPHREEREIERS HIHKE
Strategic alignment Receive the management review report on franchise business v v
RIEREG TRENA R N0 R A E BB EET RS
Oversee the digital transformation, data governance and cybersecurity v v 4
BEHFHEAE, JRENRAEE:
Comment on the internal audit plan and adequacy of resources supporting the 4
internal audit function
ERNBEZFTENZFANNESABENERESE R
Comment on the work plans and resources of finance and governance functions 4

TR AR R )6 AL 0 T 3 2R AR

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on: FRN, ERTCETFAB TIATEIE -

96

Performance and risk management of the franchise business in c MEERTEBAISERBEAR 2 T XM GERE

view of the significant expansion in the previous few years. B,
Re-alignment on the risk appetite and risk rating standard amid the - EEARIEREEY, TSR ERRSE N TR
changes in the external and internal environment. ZAE,

Core systems upgrade, cloud migration and cybersecurity.

Governance
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Main tasks of the sustainability committee

MR EZE B e R T

Area of focus FY2024
REHEE (Number of meetings B IR 8 : 2) Q1 Q4
Strategy and goals Oversee the sustainability strategic roadmap, goals and action plans v 4
RESEBIR BEUREERERBERE. BERRTHE
Performance review and Review on the current status of the Group's sustainability development in "Craftsmanship, v
risk management Innovation & Technology", "Responsible Sourcing”, "People Focused" and "Resource
FIVT G R EAREE Efficiency & Carbon Reduction"
CIRRARSRE A FARBIH L [ SERE N[ UMARK | RT REYE | 50] 5 48&
FRIFN
Review the benchmarking assessments in relation to sustainability indices rating and v
investors' expectations
Bl AR O EERIEHTRRREENENE RN
Review and advise on the preparation works for compliance with new rules and government v v
policies on climate risk management and related disclosures
L SwL 1k B 1 A2 A B e B8 T A R K2 U BUR B & AR B TR T A 5T i A3t
BR
Reporting Review the sustainability report (including the independent assurance statement therein), v
RS key metrics and the compliance with statutory requirements
ERTHEYRRS(OEEDIBIIEEEN ). REEEREZRMNETER
Accountability Review on the management committee structure in support of the effective execution of v
& sustainability strategy
BREESESTHRRIE, NZHoFERRREE LT
Review and update the terms of reference of the Sustainability Committee v
B REMINERRSE TN ELE
During the year, the Sustainability Committee has increased attention on: FA, IFERRSEGERMEIUTER
Proposal of a comprehensive sustainability strategy roadmap and - REZENOFEREREBERE R BRIANG RS

goals in alignment with the new mission of the Group. B 5T YL BT fE AR o

Preparation for the compliance with enhanced climate-related

disclosure requirements proposed by the Stock Exchange.

Customers' perspectives and industry benchmarking on the

Group's sustainability strategies and initiatives.
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Main tasks of the strategy and transformation committee

Area of focus

TR R 2T B B AR

REEE
Strategy Competition and market development strategy Supply chain strategy
g 35 A0 T 5 3 R R 1 L8 32 SR B
Customer strategy and business model People and IT strategy
RS RS RO IIE T AAMEHNF RIS
Execution Business targets and progress tracking Organisation and management system
T B BIRAIE E 1B HEE RS E
Goals and reward system for the management Investment budget and appraisal
A 5B R A0 A I = RERBAETY
Monitoring Business alignment with risk appetite Compliance with laws and regulations
B FRERLG B BATE BT IERAER
Efficiency in operations and use of resources Financial performance
EEEIREAYE W B
Accountability Governance policy and practices Social and environmental impacts
fl= BB HERIE B HENRRYE
Investors' perspectives Corporate culture and ethics
REENME EEWIERE

98

Formulate market-driven and customer-focused strategies to
achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by
the Board.

Organise broad-based engagement activities to align strategic
vision and encourage collaborations across functions through clear
annual plans and co-owned KPIs.

Hold monthly meetings to review the performance reports, monitor
the progress of strategy and reforms implementation, financial
budget and make timely adaptations.

Supervise on critical aspects of the business operations such as
strategic prioritisation, resource allocation and performance
measurement, as well as aligning various strategies on talent,
reward, culture, risk appetite and controls.

Set up and supervise on the sub-committees, which assist in the
implementation of corporate reforms, such as branding, product
supply chain, people development, digitalisation and sustainability.
Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group.

Governance
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BOARD COMPOSITION

Independence

Bt

7 INED
BIIFNITES

Bl INEDBIIFNITES
B EDHiTES

56%

Board tenure

EFEEIM

Average years of service

T 1R 55 4 HA

0-3 years
4-6 years
7-9 years £

meEm QO

10 years or more FFa¥ A £
62%

The Board consists of 16 directors. During the year, Mr. Tang Ying-
Cheung, Eric joined the Board as an INED.

The Board has been orderly refreshed in the last couple of years to
bring new skills and perspectives to support the Group's strategy
and governance.

The Board considers that the current composition is suitable in
view of the balanced mix of board tenure and age group, and also

an appropriate level of INED and female representation.
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Age

3 g AL

31%

Gender

TR

81%

5 8 Average age
38% TFE

B 3550
B 5145

I overé5 &
Bid655

19%

3 Female directors
UHMES

B Female &
B Males
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Our board diversity policy
Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of
perspectives in order to achieve the Company's long-term goal and
strategy.
Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on
broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better understanding
on customers and stakeholders.
A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes:
— Personal skills and professional knowledge
— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders

— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Our current board mix of knowledge and experience
Broad business exposures
Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
Emerging sectors serving for customers' lifestyle and enjoyments
Worldwide market: China, Europe and the United States
Connections with public bodies and community groups

Diverse professional knowledge
Retail, jewellery and brand development
Technology and data analytics
Corporate strategies and listed company governance

Capital market, finance and risk management

Our diversity objectives for the future Board
A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across multiple
commercial fields.
Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders' interests.
A balanced mix of age groups and board tenure.
Gender balance with at least 3 female directors as an immediate
target and a minimum 20% representation by 2025. This target will
be reviewed on an annual basis by the Board and the Nomination

Committee.

The Nomination Committee will give due regard to diversity
objectives, among other objective criteria, in the board candidate
search and selection process. The Board will also continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members among
the management over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified so as to develop a diversified pipeline of potential

successors to the Board.

As at 31 March 2024, the ratio of females to males in the senior
management was 50%:50% while in the overall workforce was
79%:21% (covering the Group's core and material business units in
Mainland China, and Hong Kong & Macau of China). The Group's
recruitment and promotion policy is underpinned by the principle of
appointment of the right person for the right position, in order to
achieve diversity across the workforce. The Board considers that the
current gender ratio of the workforce of the Group is appropriate for

its operations.
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Board refreshment €N
Board nomination EFEETRAZ

Nomination policy and process

Status update

RE8BERMER B E

Stage 1 + Look into future challenges, opportunities, business model and strategic goals Reviewed in FY2024
Preparation IRETARZEATHL B . W8 . EBETARE BE 2024 T F E 2R
H—IER + Identify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires Retail and China experience
s HAEEE S SRS NRBAER SENDECR

Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition
IR EEFEENK®REIA

Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s)
il E T B B T 1R E A B R A B IR

Propose the timeline for Board refreshment

BRREFGEMNGRHE

Technology and data application
R R0 S8 g R

Finance and governance

KR EIE
Gender and age diversity
PERIFDF#8Z T ik

Stage 2 - Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional consultants
Nomination BHEESEN A EEEBRSREA

HER + Consider a broad range of candidates who are in or outside of the Board's circle
?E% BZEEESEETNIMOREA

Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability
HEARREABBINFGEEEGHE

Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and function,
and committee membership

MEFERZMBES, OFAENERE, UREEGHESH

Nomination in FY2024

2024 T F IR
Search for INED candidates either
excel in China retail industry or
with financial expertise
MEREPEZTEERNTKEE
FAFOEIIIFRITES AE
Approached some candidates
and received their feedbacks

B BB A 2R 15 i I A HLE ()

Stage 3 - The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment FY2024 appointed Mr. Tang Ying-
Appointment  EBEEERBNRESHE Cheung, Eric
H=ER - Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as induction activities ~ 2024 M FESESBUETE
ST B S B0 S HE, AR BUEIE B Appointment letters

Publish an announcement, fulfil statutory filing requirements and issue letter SiTH )

: Onboard and re-election
of appointment [y
= b e 2
HEAS. TERHIEE PRI E HSER . I
Induction activities

Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general By = B

meeting and make adequate disclosure on the respective nomination process

AET—ERRAGEHEZNSIEIES, UNBEHRRBEFRIFHEARE
Note:  Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric obtained legal advice on 23 November 2023 from a qualified firm of BisE . EPIDESEAENR 20234 11 H 23 B B EMRAISE 3.09D R PT 5 & B 18 2 6017 LIS

solicitors as referred to in 3.09D of the Listing Rules. He has confirmed he understood his EEER. hEERTHESFEARLIEFNE T,

obligations as a director of the Company.

Management succession planning BIEEETE
Strategic talent identification and accelerated leadership Y % A F 58 A1l A0 10 2R
development — implemented a systematic and data-driven HFERBNOIA A A
approach to the talent identification process, we have successfully A7 UAYE (X il i %2

identified the Top 100 talents to assume critical leadership roles.

REGANA R — BREAFLN
I72 R, HMEINEAATI00H

HAE,

Driving sustainable succession planning — by identifying successors - HESN DI R AEARE ST B — T G I A B A U AR 1T

for critical roles, we mitigate potential leadership gaps and sustain g, RIBEERREEMEER. RIAORBFHHAEE
success by nurturing a pipeline of capable leaders who embody N|EE, FOBEEEA S EL#FTN.

our values, vision, and strategic direction.

Invest in talent management and differentiate us as an employer c MAAEBRWER, SRMEGREERE — FM
of choice - by establishing the CTF Academy, offering unique Bl X EERR, REBEFNSRES, TRAF
growth opportunities and recognising their potential through R R RERE D MMEEE, TET -6k
targeted development initiatives, we create an environment that EATZ2E, TFnEEMNBHENRR,

fosters talent engagement, job satisfaction, and loyalty.
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Director roles and functions

Y A ORI RE

Number of directors INED Executive directors

E5HH BUENTES ITES

Board of Directors B & 16 44% 56%
Nomination Committee It BT E & 7 71% 29%
Remuneration Committee il & E & 7 71% 29%
Audit Committee BIZEE T 5 100% 0%
Sustainability Committee OB R R EGET 4 75% 25%
Strategy and Transformation Committee SRISFIN L EE T 5 0% 100%

The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship with
each other and the membership of the board committees are set out
onp.72 - 85.

Executive directors
Chairman and Managing Director are Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent respectively. This segregation ensures
a balance of power and authority.
Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Board works effectively and sound corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.
Vice-chairmen Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng
Chi-Man, Sonia are delegated by the Chairman to assist in leading
the Group's strategic direction and driving the corporate
transformation.
Managing Director leads the management team to execute the
strategy agreed by the Board and is responsible for the overall

business and operations of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors
Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long-term value.
Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance and
risks of the Group.
Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.
INEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees and
undertake detailed governance work under the respective terms of
reference.
Being appointed for a term of not more than three years, subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
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Annual review on INEDs' independence

Based on the Nomination Committee's review of a number of factors:
Business relationship and transactions with the Group
Offices held in other companies, organisations and other
significant commitments
Cross-directorships or significant links with other directors through
involvement in other companies or bodies
Each INED's annual confirmation of independence received by
the Company
Years of service as INED

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from any
business or other relationship which could materially interfere with
the exercise of their judgement. Detailed elaboration on the Board's
assessment are made in the circular to shareholders in respect of the

INEDs to be re-elected in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Notwithstanding Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina is the daughter of
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, a former INED who retired within 2 years
prior to her appointment date of 1 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee believes that this fact should not be perceived to have a
negative impact on the independence of Ms. Fung given her attributes
and Dr. Fung's satisfaction of all independence criteria under 3.13 of
the Listing Rules throughout his tenure as an INED. The Stock
Exchange has also agreed with the Company's point of view on the
independence of Ms. Fung. For further details, please refer to the

Company's announcement dated 24 November 2022.

Although Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric is a former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu whose related entities have provided certain non-
audit services to the Group within 2 years prior to his appointment
date of 1 December 2023, the Nomination Committee believes that
his former role has no bearing on his independence as an INED given
the nature and materiality of these services provided to the Group
within the said 2-year period and that Mr. Tang was not involved in
these services. To the Company's best knowledge after making
relevant enquiries, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu did not provide any
audit, assurance, financial advisory or legal services of a material
amount to the persons referred to in Rule 3.13(3) of the Listing Rules
within the said 2-year period. Mr. Tang has satisfied all other
independence criteria set out in 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Stock
Exchange has also agreed with the Company's point of view on the
independence of Mr. Tang. For further details, please refer to the

Company's announcement dated 23 November 2023.
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Directors' time commitment

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors:

Directors' confirmation

Meeting attendance rate

Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings

EFEMNRERA

ERHUTZIREFHIGTS :

Participation in continuing professional development to keep

abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors' duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors, including

INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the Company's

affairs.

EENED
THHEE

TRIERINZRE

SHFFESRT R IAR G EEF R S8 6 0005

RESEERAE, ERHES(
IR BT 4G T T B B 0 T AO B it o

BEBIFNTES 2H

Number of meetings attended/ eligible to attend for FY2024
2024 B EELE/ GERHRTERY

Annual Continuing
General Board Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Sustainability professional
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee Committee  development
MEFAYR
RREAEXE EIEEE RBEFEE HFHEEE ELSEE SHE RBEZEUE
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry PrAHEL 1 4/4 2/2 2/2 - - v/
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEEEE 11 4/4 2/2 - - 11 v
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BEER L 11 4/4 - 2/2 - 11 v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRELE 1N 4/4 - - - 2/2 v/
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EDTE [ L 1N 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BIRERE 1/1 4/4 - - - - J/
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BIREELE 11 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter [t il 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRALE 11 4/4 - - - 1/1 v/

Independent Non-executive Directors BUENTES
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon b A 4/4 - 2/2 3/3 - v
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey 5t 1/1 4/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 - v/
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond fEEmL ” 4/4 22 22 33 . v
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily =YL 1N 4/4 2/2 2/2 - 2/2 4
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert BERELE 11 4/4 2/2 - 3/3 2/2 v/
Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina mIEE T 1/1 4/4 2/2 2/2 - - v/
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric* WOELE" - 1/1 - - 11 1/1 v/

Note: Bt St -
v All incumbent directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of them v 2RBEFEFERIAFEMNSICE, BEPRRSASEKRASIEREBE105EME

has fulfilled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p.105 organised by the Company.
# Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 December 2023

104 Governance

EEaVAN
E /0

BEE, 2ETENIER,

H2023F 2 A HRESEEFERE.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

BAXETREEEEIRAE



Continuing professional development

Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to driving
performance towards our strategic goals and exercising critical
oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the era
of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops on
themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where our
leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.

Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of other
advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board's hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors' training

records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

- Assist incoming directors to have a proper understanding on the
business and operations, strategies and competitive environment
of the Group, and directors' duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board roles,
expertise and experience, enabling them to make contributions as
early as possible to the Board, particularly on providing advice on

the strategies.

Induction activities guide

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on selected topics relating to potential contribution
expected from the new director.

Meet with our management teams and visit our facilities to
understand the Group's existing plans and needs.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

— Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Invite the new director to share on selected topic relating to

his/ her expertise topic in a Board and management seminar.
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Remuneration

Put in place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate
and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group
as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.

Offer fair and competitive level of rewards to ensure comparability

with the market competing for talents with similar leadership

W

P

et T EHREIGIE, ARSI BUENAD &S+ B 7 5 0
ESRGEE AT, s FF N R B AY & BIAD X8 B R 1S
BiIR, URARREAN @S HESNEEIS,

REATHNEBFNNER, BREMSRHEFEEE
HRERNOAAE, HFEBOLHE,

qualities.
Executive directors HITES
Fixed portion * Salaries, benefits and pension + Director's fee
Bl E 8 573 BEI#rE. @BAMRIKE EoE Rk
Variable portion Short-term incentives (STI) Long-term incentives (LTI)
FEE S o HA 22 REAEER
 Link to achievement level of the Group's annual * Link to achievement level of the Group's 3-year

business performance targets

ERNER B = F SRR A 0 B IR 003 AY 3R A

business performance targets
B 7IN6R [ B0 4F 2 SRR 48 30 B AR B 3 R 5 44 8
Payable in cash » Payable in a combination of cash and share awards

LAIR & 57 1t LATR A0 AR 10 22 BN B0 AR & T 202 A

Pre-set Group performance parameters and numerical targets approved by the Board
HEFTHFENNERERGUGEERNERET

Progressive payout ratio reference to performance achievement level to incentivise outstanding performance
152 BRAE U Y R I E IR I8 B0 R B S AT EE B, LABTRN B R IR

Minimum threshold set for achievement level of performance parameters and maximum payment limit
RERIERENZFRSRTRERME, RESZTIRE

Incentive-based, with a significant portion of the variable portion
correlated with the short-term profitability and long-term value of
the Company. Targeted remuneration structure consists of about
25% basic salaries, 25% STl and 50% LTI.

Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the Company
and interests of its shareholders.

Determined by the Remuneration Committee.

Independent non-executive directors

BEIAAN, BESLHAEZFEND RN SHIEHE
NENNEHREEHA, BRFMGSREIEHN25%E
INFRE . 25% S MR K2 50% REAZEREN

A5 i 1P B¢) 252 ) B 7K 22 B 2 3R RO IR R 2 #5840 o

BHMSEEERE,

BIUFATES

Fixed portion

& xE & 73

« Director's fee
EEOE

(Remark: Starting from FY2023, the remuneration of INEDs comprised fixed portion only in order to strengthen the independent roles of INEDs.)
(ffist : B2023 W ER, RNBABUFATESHNBUAC, BUFNTESHNFTHRLSEESN. )

Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and
independence in thinking.

Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board
committees they serve.

Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles,
responsibilities and time commitment.

Determined by the Board, after discussions in the Remuneration
Committee.

RIESENFHFMIRSINEEEBR Y EIGERNEIL
BENBSRESE,

HHRREFSESTHRFBRANIIFEMNIELL,
WRHEAR. SENFHRARMGEG R,

EHFMEEEWmE, HEFSFLRE,

More details on directors' remuneration for FY2024 are available on
p.200 of this annual report.
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BOARD OPERATIONS

Board independence

EEACpLE(E
T Lk

The Board has established the following mechanisms to enhance EFTRUNTHHAERBIIFATESNAR, LAE
the role of INEDs in order to obtain independent views and input NEBUHBNE R,

from them.

Composition of the Board and
board committees
EFEENEFTEGHEM

INEDs represents at least 1/3 of the Board
BUFNTESLEFEEL =N —

INEDs are appointed to board committees as far as practicable
HRORSEEUTFRITESFTNIAEETEES

Independence assessment upon
nomination and annual reviews
RE RV IR R
FE®ET

Strictly adhere to the nomination policy and the independence assessment criteria with regard to
the nomination and appointment of INEDs

BIEETARRIE RS EBEIIFAITERFIR S BURRIE TG 4R

Assess suitability of director candidates objectively based on their qualification and time
commitment, the Board's composition, skill matrix, the list of selection criteria, nomination policy
and the board diversity policy

RIEEFAZNEERRAGE. EFGHEN. REHEHS. BERERNEE. RIBRE
EFEEZANER, SHTGESAEREGHE

Assess annually by the Nomination Committee on the independence of all INEDs to ensure that

¥

they can continually exercise independent judgement, and also each director's time commitment to
the Company's affairs

REGEGEFNEMBEBEIIFNTESNELY, BREFUFETEEIAE, LA
ISE=E B S PN E SRS SN

INEDs' remuneration

BRI TE S HE

INEDs receive fixed fees for their role, no equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to INEDs as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence

BUFATESHERBICNEERNE, A0 EE T 5 4E U B0 DR R % 2 58 508
&, NEFEHNHERKRRRILZELSEHEOE I

Remuneration of INEDs is determined by the Board and subject to a regular review mechanism to
commensurate with their responsibilities and workload

BUFATESNFNOESTGREE, BAEMHRFTNEHEB S0 TFEEME

Board decision making
BEFETRR

INEDs are entitled to seek further information and documentation from the management on the
matters to be discussed at board meetings. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, they are
entitled to seek assistance from the Company Secretary and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company's expense
BUFATESERINESEEZ LA YIRNSFEOEEERINE—TER R,
HRAOBSEETHEREE, WET 0SS S KB R W42 05 6 155 5 5% 5 25008 11
BR, EHABRQERE

The chairman of the Board annually hold meetings with INEDs without the presence of other
directors to discuss major issues and any concerns

EFERTREGFAEMESAESHNBER TEBIIFNATESRITEE, WTREES
I8 X2 1F 0] ¢ &

Conflict management
(N §5:

Declaration of any actual and potential conflicts between their personal interests and duties as

an INED

BRGANGZRFABIIFATESNES 2 BREMERRZETESR

Abstain from voting on any board resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such
director or any of his/ her close associates has a material interest
WEAMNMEZESYEONEEREHRBARAEARTHEOSHATTHRENESEIR

EErE
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Communication and information support

Board communication

Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of strategy,
risk and performance.

Enable meeting efficiency with high-quality information.

Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from meetings
are followed up.

Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.

Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting scheduling and agenda planning

Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.
Reallocate the Board's time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according to
the Board priorities changing over time.

Include outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board
to chart the course ahead, and encourage interactions and
insights.

Board paper preparation

Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that needs to be taken
by the Board.

Being concise and focused on priorities, objectives and the
analytics based on facts.

Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.
Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider the
matters thoroughly before the meetings.

Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and

minutes record via Board meeting apps.
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Information updates between Board meetings

Monthly updates include:

- Consolidated financial summary against budget

- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.

- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements

Quarterly updates on the operational performance with

management analysis.

Knowledge about the future of our business and market, emerging

strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on p.105 about

the "continuing professional development".

Compliance and accountability

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for developing,
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance, the code of conduct and compliance manual

applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in this
"Corporate Governance Report". During the year ended
31 March 2024, the Company was in full compliance with all applicable
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules regarding the securities transactions by all the directors
and those employees who are likely to come across inside information
because of their duties. Having made specific enquiry of all our
directors and relevant employees, they confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code

and the Company's code of conduct during FY2024.
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Inside information disclosure
The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and

monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

Material matters concerning the business, finance and operations
are escalated to the Strategy and Transformation Committee in a
timely manner for them to judge whether inside information exists
and an announcement is required.

Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors'
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports, etc.
to see whether a material gap exists between the market

expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the
communication channels
Information used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.
Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnel are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.
Code of practices for investor communications:
- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement
- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information released
to the public
- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials
- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs for

future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. The directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Please see the section headed
"Independent Auditor's Report" on p.160 - 167.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that could
impact the Company's ability, favourably or unfavourably, to meet its
strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk management and
internal control framework to proactively manage risks, in line with
the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The Audit Committee
has reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy
of our risk management and internal control systems. Further details
are included under the section headed "Risk Management Report" on

p.120 - 144 in this annual report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-audit
services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services shall

be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated

firms for services rendered is listed as follows:
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FY2024 FY2023

Types of services HK$ million HK$ million
PR %55 KB BY BEET BEET
Audit and related services' EZ 2 ERA RS 8.1 7.0
Non-audit services? IETEIZ IR 2 383 25
1.4 95

1. Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected transactions
and tax compliance service

2. Non-audit services comprise cybersecurity and security operations centre service and other IT related
services provided to the Group. None of these services provided compromises the independence as
auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee
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Evaluation a1

Area of focus Purpose and approach Information source
REHE BiFFrat BRIz

Board process - Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time - Survey
BEEERER REFGWERGBEN, WEMRHERRH M&EhE

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation

RATIMBERNREER, WNSEHAXE. EhAERERFB AL
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in strategy
and risk landscape, or Board composition

BRENERRE. ¥ESGHEHADREXEENFETEERS
Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
EREF-REZNERNREERFEGS
Board structure - Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board - Benchmarking
EETRE committees to oversee all critical areas of governance HIEH R

AESENRESSEGZHBERNRERE, UREMAEREHNEGHE
Well-defined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
HiERTESTREEB 2 REERRSSE

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

BHREEEEE8FRE

Board composition + Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to - Survey

EFTHN achieve the Company's long-term goal and strategy BEhE
EFEZEENEENNS B EN, LLENREEN R BZR0RE - Benchmarking
Annual review by the Nomination Committee HIZ 5%
HieBEEgT TR

Director performance  + Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, + Benchmarking

EEE3 performance targets and financial returns HIEH R

HOTESHESRBER. GUBRNUBDRIRIER

INEDs' time commitment, contribution and independence
BITFNTESFHERBRA. SRAOBIIMT

Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

HHEWESEGNREEEGTF A

Director development  +  Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that they +  Survey

EETE stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market e
FEBHESNIAMAEE, BREAMHESENRENTGHIE DT T8

Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
%51 B A #Em SRS E Sl st S
Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HiEEE@EFIRE

Board leadership - Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of - INEDs' feedback

and strategies the Board BIFATEEHIR
BEETMHRERET BUFATESHEFSEERFEFEIRIT-RMAMER RE R

R BE - Open agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group

N ER B BT 35 E T AR R IR AR B 5T 5w

May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group's strategies, leadership of
the Board, performance of the management, etc.

OMEEZNSE, PINNAKERRE. EFTHEEEN. EEENRRES
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

A shareholders communication policy, which is available on the Group
website, sets out the key principles and practices for an effective
communication and engagement with shareholders and the
investment community for them to make an informed investment

decisions and exercise shareholders' rights in an informed manner.

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with two-way communication channels to
understand the Group's performance, strategies and prospects; and
also to express their views to our management and the Board on

various matters affecting the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed and was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders communication
policy during the year after the annual assessment based on a number

of factors:

Quality and timeliness of disclosures

Frequency of two-way investors communication

Convenience of communication channels or information platforms
Participation of the seasoned and well-trained management
Clarity of investors' understanding of the Group's strategies and
prospects

Reliability of performance guidance set by the management
Management's responses to the propositions of investors,
especially about corporate governance issues or the protection of
minority's interests

Compliance with obligations to handle or disclose inside

information
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Interactive engagement

We adhere to the principles of providing timely, transparent and
effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market regularly
informed of the Group's performance and prospects.

We welcome a two-way dialogue with capital market stakeholders
which include our valued shareholders to learn of market's views,
correct misperceptions, if any, and allow us an opportunity to
share a comprehensive overview of our business through
management's perspectives. This includes our views and
approaches towards growth and development as well as market
outlook. Our dedicated Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications team is fully committed to maintaining an open
and constructive dialogue with our stakeholders, and convey
timely corporate information to a diverse range of stakeholders,
including investors, media and the general public.

To ensure our stakeholders are well-informed about our business
and strategies, we hosted online and offline activities, including
post-results briefings, non-deal roadshows, visits to our production
sites and brick and mortar stores, as well as launch events of our
key collections. Our senior management also took an active role in
conducting regular virtual and physical meetings with institutional
investors and attending media interviews. These engagements
facilitate an open and constructive dialogue, as well as
comprehensive updates to our stakeholders, ensuring transparency

and effective communication.

8 o) . ) ]
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Engagements with investors and media
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We value feedback from the investment community. Our multiple
channels of communication and engagement help deepen our
understanding of their concerns and drive effective communications.
Key investors' concerns included the rationale of our retail network
management strategy, impact from macro-economic uncertainties,

progress and goals of our five strategic priorities, etc.

As part of best practice, we are continuously reviewing the depth
and breadth of our disclosure to enhance the quality and content
across our investor relations collaterals. This will help with
educating the investment community to better appreciate our
corporate narratives and investment proposition. Our commitment
to investor relations best practices and guidelines is also
demonstrated through our pledge to the Hong Kong Investor

Relations Association IR Pledge Program since 2021.

The Group is a constituent of key indices, including Hang Seng
Index, MSCI China Index, Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index, Dow Jones Sustainability Asia Pacific Index and FTSE4Good
Index. The Group has also been granted an 'A' rating (on a scale of
AAA-CCC) in the MSCI Rating Assessment and membership of the
"Sustainability Yearbook (China) 2023" of S&P Global. These

recognise our efforts on ESG.

In FY2024, the Group received various accolades in recognition of
our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor relations.

Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on p.8 — 11.

FMEARERNRE, HMERZRENBERRE
FEBEMMR T BESFARITIER, WEEFIE
B, REEFRINESETEHEERMNETZERREE
HEREBMEDR. ZEEEIRERNRNTE. BMA
KRBT B R B IR,

FREEBEMNN -, HMEFERSEKEFIRER
BEE, KnakMEEmEAEREMNNESRNA
5o B A KR E R B U M1 58 3 P 5 18 5% 6 2 &
FmMREMEE, HMAEHNIAITREERENRE
B, TE2021FESREBEREEMEBTHRE
BRAR A58l

REBMIEAIEE. MSCIHEIEH. EATFEERE
TEEH. ERRUSHEEETIXRESNERLEE
FHEEEFTSEFMA N R, REBTEMSCIFFRDH
FAEIAIRRAAAZECCCH ), AT IR O #F
ERREE(DER)2023)AREE, BEHEET
PMERE. $EREB LS.

2024 E, NEKEERSERIE, XYRMNED
FEBNREEHENTANAME 1. "2HESE
NMBEFXFERIAR B,

Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index
Series Member 2023-2024

Member of
Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices

Powered by the S&P Global CSA

MSCI
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FTSE4Good

Member of the S&P Global Sustainability
Yearbook (China) 2023
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Meetings by investor event in FY2024
2024 M EEEH(MREEFTHNNE)

44%

20%

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2024

2024 T EEREERF TS

One-on-one and group meetings

—s-RERSEE

23]

Non-deal roadshows

R ZBIE

19

Meeting and conference call
EHERETEE

Investor conference
REERAE

Non-deal roadshow
FLZARIE

C-level participation rate '

44%

Investor conferences

RESEHAST

10

1. Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
REEERIERFZIABRP D H

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2024 are set out below:
[R2024MFES R AXEREEGH !

JUNE 2023
2023%6H

Guotai Junan Securities Conference

ERESREENAE

116  Governance
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SEPTEMBER 2023
2023%9H

Nomura China Investor Forum 2023

FNREEHTE

Citi's 2023 GEMS Conference
HEREEHIE

Jefferies 4t Asia Forum
ERREEHE

30t CITIC CLSA Flagship Investors' Forum
P EERREEHIE

BofA Chinese Luxury & Consumer Trip
EZRREEHFAE

Goldman Sachs China+ Conference
EEREEHRAE

DECEMBER 2023
2023%12AH

Citi's Global Consumer Conference
HEREEHTE

MARCH 2024
2024%3AH

GF Securities Conference

ERAFREERAS

Jefferies 5% Asia Forum
EMREEHE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



Multiple channels of communication and engagement ZRENBEETH

Channels (KB

Analyst and media results

conferences

AMERGEINS

Held analyst and press conferences for interim and annual results.
HOPHAREFEENNITERMERLES

Hosted conference calls on announcements of quarterly key operational data
HTRFEIFEEEHE LS HENEFTES

Announcements, presentations and webcasts are available on the Group website

FEHAE. BRAOMBREFRESEREG

Annual general meeting

("AGM")
RRAEXS

Held face-to-face communication with shareholders in AGM

R RIEF X G ER RS XA

The Board and external auditors presented to answer the questions raised by shareholders
EFG R INEBIZEIET L F S % LA O] AR SRR R

Detailed explanation for each proposed resolution in the circular, with high approval rate on
resolutions passed

REBEFHTEAERZAS, LERESZERB

Active engagement
with analysts

Organised visits to our production facilities and POS for investors in FY2024
2024 M FECTHIREEIFTHMAEESRBRTEER

?ﬁri‘l;jir;l‘?eﬂ‘;il;;iﬂﬁﬂ! Invited investors to the launch events of our key product collections

= = N N

iR E ) BEREESHEFMESEmEE HiES
Arranged small group or one-on-one gatherings with prominent media in FY2024
2024 FE G HRESHFRIF/N\BE —H—RE
Handled enquires from investors. Received around 50 media interviews and enquires
BRIBREESH ., HEASOEREHMZE A
Over 20 research analysts cover our Company in their reports on a regular basis
B20BAANTEMR RS EMRBERRS

Corporate Announcements, annual and interim reports, results presentations and press releases

reporting NG ERPHRSE . FEMMANARE

ERBE

Quarterly voluntary announcements of key operational data

SN EPNGESCRIE ST G

Investor meetings,
conferences

and non-deal
roadshows
BEEEE.

M EMIEZABIE

Stayed connected with investors around the world through both virtual and physical events
in FY2024

L2024 BB R IEIBR L RE T IEHRIERSMMEIRE S RITHE

Executive directors responsible for different business areas attended meetings to address
investors' concerns

BERRRBEENNTESLHRESRNBERRESERITNEIR

Group website

SREAEW

Updated on results, quarterly announcements and corporate activities
EMEELNRE. TEASRERTIEN
Enriched content to demonstrate the Group's business initiatives

BHHEENST AR RERENRERE

Electronic communication

BFE

Email alert service

BH IR AR

Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications team: ir@chowtaifook.com (for
investors); media@chowtaifook.com (for media)
REERERTEENAEENENEE .

ir@chowtaifook.com( &% ); media@chowtaifook.com( & )
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Shareholder rights and other information
Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged to
participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint proxies to

attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting and put forward
proposals

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company's paid-up
capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition signed and deposited with
our company secretary at the Company's headquarters at 33/F, New
World Tower, 16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director
in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated
in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to our
company secretary at the Company's headquarters or at our Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior to the

date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications

Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy
Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company's profits.
No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.
Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of special

circumstances.
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Full year dividend payout ratio ™
EEREE ™

100.0% 92.9%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

—®— Full year dividend payout ratio
FHFIREE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1. Special dividend excluded

Constitutional documents

No change during the year.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$115.3 billion as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
HK$155.8 billion), based on the total number of 9,987,736,800 issued
shares and the closing price of HK$11.54 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report, the prescribed public float of not less
than 10.7% has been maintained, which is a lower minimum percentage
of public float accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange. On the
basis that Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held approximately 72.48% of
the total issued shares in the Company (based on the disclosure of
interests and the number of repurchased and cancelled shares of the
Company available on the Stock Exchange's website as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report), the public float
amounted to not more than approximately 27.52% of the total number

of issued shares in the Company.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIANBLEFE
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

EREERS

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them in
understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to manage
key risks and making risk-reward optimised business decisions for

business planning.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT ("ERM”)
FRAMEWORK

ERM is a much-needed core competency and essential tool that helps
the Group continually creates, sustains, and delivers stakeholder
value. We believe a structured approach and framework around ERM-
related processes and governance are critical to the success of our
ERM. Our ERM Framework is tailored to the circumstances and

business context of the Group, and comprises the following elements:

EFGRARE. AUNEAREERNBEERRCE
B, 2% FRGA U0 A 5N 5K B 80 E AR . Y ES
BRI E 1 Jm b LA K 4 5% 05 1R &1 F 8 11 =l ba 2 [o)
WMEIERIRR,

A 5 J B 7 BEAE 2

TREREEE-—BUENRZLENNEETE, G0
REBEAE AT ERNS . RN REE. HMBGE,
MtxEREEEBERENEBE, ARENTIEND
ERAEREREEN R, FMoldsmReEE
ERBREREEBRNRBEERESSE, WHMUT
BEREM :

Business Objective
and Strategy Setting

FEBERA
RESH E
Risk
Capability Building Risk Identification
Jo e S T Jae B st Al
RE 11
ERM Framework
Risk Culture & Risk Strategy
Risk Governance Model
Emergency iE # = I}ﬁ
Preparedness BIEIESNR (s Eiatl\ulatlon

2 = i g3 B ST 1 B B 5 B R 511G

R EiaER

Effectiveness and
Performance Tracking

RY A0 2R 35 1B M
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ERM FRAMEWORK OVERSIGHT

Risk culture & risk strategy

Our risk culture and risk strategy provide the overall direction and
consistent practices within the Group to achieve below objectives:

Balance business risks and returns and support risk-based decision-
making.

Facilitate the achievements of the Group's strategic goals through
better identification of sustainability-related opportunities
and threats.

Develop a common understanding of risk across different business
functions to manage risk cost-effectively on an enterprise-wide basis.

Commit to integrity, business ethics, and legal compliance.

We have a strong risk culture, shaped by leadership, effective
communication and appropriate policies and guidelines. We also
adopt regular steps to sustain our risk culture.

Risk appetite

On keeping with the Group's risk culture, and to reinforce the common
understanding of risk management and consistent risk assessment
practices across the Group, we define our risk appetite in a qualitative
manner. We only accept reasonable and manageable risks that are in
line with our strategy and capabilities. Taking account of concerns to
the Group's sustainable development by internal and external
stakeholders, our risk assessment tool enables the Group to fully
consider the financial and non-financial implications in the context of

its risk appetite.

Leadership 48& &

- Involve sustainability considerations and operational risk
management topics in business plans and business meeting agenda
e R HIES
AR EEEE

- Review and validate the ERM Framework regularly and lead by example
to demonstrate the right tone at the top
FHREENREBCFEREEER, WIASFRI, &I IEHE K @b
EIRE

Internal Communication [A &B & &

- Conduct workshops to promote the risk culture
R 915 B 5 LA M TR TR PR S AE

- Set clear escalation procedure for reporting risk issues
oL PR 25 L il T BA o 0] D SR AR e

- Set up grievance and whistleblowing channels to report
suspected fraud and misconduct

RUBFRERRE, NERRIRESFERAETH

Strong Risk Culture
1 £ B9 = B S 1k

Policies and Standards K% £0 £ |

- Establish Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, Whistleblowing Policy,

Anti-Money Laundering Policy, and Best Practice Principles for
Suppliers to reinforce our expected ethical values and conduct
HlE LTI REFMEBUR. BIRBUR. R TR EBUR & &R & £
BERE, LR MRS EEERST
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Risk Appetite Assessment Factors
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Risk governance model

Our risk governance model is designed to assist the Board of
Directors and Board Committees to carry out ongoing oversight and
monitoring on the effectiveness of our ERM system. The model defines
clear risk roles and structure to reinforce the risk-related

accountability and transparency across the Group.

We believe a well-coordinated integration of all the resources and
expertise necessary to support the governance, assurance of
performance, risk and compliance activities is critical for the Group to
meet its business objectives in the ever-changing business environment
and regulatory landscape. An integrated approach is adopted among
resources from 3 lines of defence within the Group to manage and
enhance risk management initiatives with adequate facilitation and
coordination.

I Report ¥R

-~
©
.Eg‘g

2
(©)

Strategy and

Transformation Committee

REEFINESSE

I Report R

Managing Director

ERQEE

Report Res I

EEE

B P
BANERE SR EEGRNESENE S SRR A
BENERRMCEAREERMONY. ZERTI
B 2 () L B 8 B RO 2R 4, LA D 36 7 S B B P 5 4
RS 35 2 B BA

HMECHBANBEMAZFEILS. BWRE. ARR
GRFBNERRFRNE, ENKEEAHIENE
ARBEERBEREMNREER. MRS RER
B =B ARETE R, 558 Fr ) 60 1 i AD fi 58 4 i 0 o
A b I TAF,

Board of Directors

I Assurance fR:E

Audit Committee
BRSEE

I Report R

Report ¥R

First Line of Defence

Coordination &
Implementation
174 37 B2 B il

Second Line of Defence

Third Line of Defence

HE—EWR BB E=ER
Facilitation Group level SKEIEMH: Coordination
12t Corporate Govgegr?a‘ncle Department 7@ Internal Audit and
Risk Owners REIRE Whistleblowing
JEBAIER S Segment level 2 EBEA: ) Officer
NEPEZ R ZRREE

Executive Office
1THED
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Roles

AE

Responsibilities
BT

Board of Direct
EEa

ors

Evaluate and determine the Group's risk appetite in achieving its strategic objectives
5T i Rz 788 TE 7N 6 (B 12 A R B8 B A 05 00 3L B s UF

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems

BRAKBER UANERSER AN ERE R R NPEITRR

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

el EEEERABRERG 2R EER AR

Strategy and Transformation Committee

RENNEESET

Review risk and control issues through regular reviews and reports coordinated by
Managing Director and senior management team
AEEHRELRENARESREELRSEEEBEBRAGENRS, W5 E R &
BIREEE

Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at group level
BEEEARREREEREATIRLES

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment

e B Jol B 2= 58 B S K R (2 E N IR IR 1R

Audit Committee

EREEYG

Oversee the internal audit function and the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board

NXEFSETHEENSHERAREERASEERRZ R BT R AT

Managing Dir
EEBIEE

ector

Confirm the results of the Group's annual principal risk assessment, and to arrange
and implement mitigation measures for high-risk issues, including material
sustainability topics

BRTERBLEISEBFLER, HESERER, AEFESUHFETREDBE,
57 HE K2 B Jifn i 1 18 ffe

Monitor the implementation and progress of risk management plans and oversee the
effectiveness of process controls

EREREEFEMNETBRREE, BEEREFRERNT

First Line of Defence — Risk Owners

?ﬁ‘*EiWﬁ%<—

EREAEREA

Manage, monitor, and report key risks in line with applicable policies and procedures
RIBEANBRAOER, B8I12. BRNRESHERR
Accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control

HANBREZREERBIMES
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Roles

AmE

Responsibilities
BT

Second Line of Defence — Corporate
Governance Department
EEMR — hEERE

Support Managing Director and senior management team on the risk and control
functions

YRHESREELRSEEEREKETE R E BT b

Provide guidance to establish, refine and monitor critical group policies, procedures,
and standards to reinforce risk management and internal control systems

HEE. AEREREENRBICR. BFREA, it EkREER AR
E ARG R HHE S

Facilitate internal and external communication on the Group's risk management, and
report effectively and regularly to the Group management on the progress and
effectiveness of the risk management initiatives

RESERRERE TFMNANSDRINEEE, AN TEHAOKEEIEEERSE
B fE b 1R TR I S B A Y

Coordinate and monitor governance, risk and compliance activities in collaboration
with risk owners

HERRKEBSESAGE, RENRREE. BROGIREGH

Second Line of Defence — Executive Office
BB — (TEED

Coordinate, drive and monitor the implementation of risk management and internal
control initiatives in business segments in accordance with the Group's strategy
IRESRERES, Wod. HEENWERABFBBPIATREREER A ETRE
Allocate resources to business segments for risk mitigation initiatives; provide
guidance and support to risk owners; and coordinate with business units to meet the
Group's risk management reporting requirements

15065 8B P9 60 @ B i S R E 1T B R B, WEERAER S ARSI
%, R SRR ED P A & 5k B JE b T e R F oK

Third Line of Defence — Internal Audit and
Whistleblowing Officer
FBoENEE — NSBEZNEERES

Internal Audit — Validate the effectiveness of risk controls through internal audit and
identify improvement opportunities as appropriate

NEpEZ — BREANEBEZRERREENEYE, THANGEFNIEHE
Whistleblowing Officer — Manage and investigate misconduct and fraud cases, and
review the effectiveness of remedial actions

HREE — BERAETAETARERIMN, WisT#HEITEIF Y
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I. BUSINESS OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY SETTING

Risks are inherent in our business activities and can relate to strategic
goals and business performance. We aim at integrating risk
management into the strategic planning and monitoring process,

resulting in a practical and continuous process.

Business strategy and risk management system integration
We understand that the Group operates in an ever-changing market
environment. In the face of frequent changes in the external
environment, including geographic and competitive market factors, as
well as the trend of increasing sustainability-related requirements, the
Group has to be vigilant in formulating strategic objectives in a timely
and agile manner in order to respond to the challenges and

opportunities arising from these changes.

The Group's risk management system is continuously intertwined with
the Group's strategic development and has been enhanced to identify
the prioritised issues in the business value chain. The business value
chain has been carefully analysed into various key areas under 5 major
management focuses to better align business objectives with
sustainability and risk management initiatives through an unified
language for effective communication. During the year, we actively
communicated with risk owners to confirm the updated risk factors
and management directions, forming a dynamic integral process that
resulted in enhanced management accountability and centralised

tracking of the effectiveness of control measures.

Business Landscape and Strategy

EBERERERRE
- Business value chain analysis
EBEEEEAN

+ Market update and impact assessment

- Sustainability trends and requirements
O R R B AR SR

- Industry benchmarking
TR

I S8 H BRI 5w il 5

HMERBETEFERS @M, HoaEERIEEEE IR
AR S T E b S A SRS 8 &R
B, REmp AR ENFERRRE.

S5 S ek B JBL B LR 0 1 )
HMEREAEHER NS LOTIRBET, ©E
EHNBEESUDEMERMISHFRE, URTH
BRREHEEEFAHRESNEY, KBSHARE
TR, K B R G I E SR B B LA A A 1k T AT
SIEM B R WIE.

SEREREERGTERKERE S RO R0 H
ABEERTHREEENFIHRFER. HMHERBEEER
BTN, NRSKEHRBIETARNEZEL, AE
EHR—HES TAEYBE, EfREMLREEEIRET
HEERLEREEBMIF. FR, HMEEER
EREAERIABEREIAENDRRRLEETME,
R EiE, Mg ErEREPRMETE
i 5 3 o

Risk Management Process

EIZERERE

- Risk identification and classification
JaR B 75 s K2 oy
+ Risk changes and mitigation

e R A 1K 2 E # T 3R

+ Enhanced management accountability
JIIE: A= L i

* Review and tracking of work plan and progress
TAEET e R K 2 IR e

+ Monitoring of control measure effectiveness

1 i At A 28 B

Major management focuses under business value chain EFEEET T EEEEIR

Business & Market
Development

FREERMIEE R

Branding & Product
o f8 K2 2 oo

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management

Governance &
Compliance

BIaREGH

Financial
BT 755

L 58 B2 2 E B 1
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2. RISK IDENTIFICATION

2. J, g w1

Precise risk identification allows us to manage the risk inventory more & G Rl B fr s M RE B A U E 12w e i &
effectively and understand its relationship with the business HEZBERE. BEREOXRENREER,

strategies, objectives, and performance.

RISK

Objective HIZ

IDENTIFICATION Immerse in business context and goals to manage risk inventory effectively

2 P 58 Al

RATBREFRERNER, BUEERREE

|

Risk Identification Channels 58 RIIR{E

il 7 &

Research & el Risk Worl.<shops Stakeholder
. . & Seminars Engagement
Benchmarking Process Review BB T (e Activities *
o Fr g jE e pr3 70 &= R
iff 55 40 %1 42 BUR B 72 B A & 7% 5% PR BERE2EEFE *
Data Strategic Internal & Whistleblowing
Tracking Planning Process External Audit Mechanism
IR IE Ht RIS IR B e NFISEIEIE:T 23 SRR
Internal Risks Emerging Risks ESG-related Risks
REHELS 7 B e e ESGHE B /= bz
Risk Inventory & & i& &
Risk Inventory Categories J& & ¥8 Al
Supply Chain &
Business & Market Branding & Operational Governance & Financial Risk
Development Risk Product Risk Management Risk Compliance Risk BB LR
EBR B h8 2 72 n 48 bR 5 e i £ EiakGRER R . T
15 3¢ % 48 3 B EEERERR

*

following QR code to access our report:

More details of our stakeholder engagement activities are included in our Sustainability Report. Please scan the

BREFNESRITHHIFE, NHRTFEIRRSN FiRENT _ERIARGRS:
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Main features of the risk identification framework JE iy ik 9] A 2R Y G B R B

Diversified risk identification
channels

S R 1K 60 Jm B e R SR B

To ensure the completeness of our risk inventory, we have established diversified risk
identification channels and with ongoing optimisation in our top-down and bottom-up risk
management approaches to identify internal, emerging, and ESG-related risks that might affect
the achievement of our business objectives and strategies

miEREIREEMNZEE, FMBUSHRAMNEARBHRE, UFEBVERMB LM T
RBTMmERRBRERFTISE, LAGH RO 88 & & % BEEH B R A SR B 60 A &L /T WA of 5
A8 % J 18 I B4 L B

Portfolio view of risks

% 4 & &

We continuously analyse for risk factors relevant to the Group's strategic and operational
realities and the business value chain to sort out the landscape of significant risks that the
Group may face. Risks are classified into five major categories, namely Business & Market
Development Risk, Branding & Product Risk, Supply Chain & Operational Management Risk,
Governance & Compliance Risk, Financial Risk, and subdivided them into different risk items
with enhanced risk descriptions to help define the risk events
HMFENTEENRREEESRBERIRYERBEEEZBERARRER, WIELE
EogAHMNELERER, UMENAEBRTHERE. oM kEao. LEREREE
EIE. BIoWGHE. UWBhXERRE, #MENNAERBIEEREBLBEER, AE
B E Fe El B S 1+

Risk inventory management

JE B% R E B 1E

We will perform a periodic review on the risk inventory in a centralised approach to ensure the
existing risks are still applicable and relevant and also identify the changes to the existing risks

M EHRERMREESEMHR, UEREERRINABEAEE, X5E AR A @R E &1L

Our risk inventory is also informed by the results of internal risk assessments and risk
assurance works, as well as insights from various industry sources

HMEIERIEEINSE N R A ERES TIFER, URKEBERAALHRRE

To ensure our ERM Framework incorporates the evolving risk landscape appropriately, our risk
inventory also addresses hot topics in risk management like strengthening ESG risk
consideration in supply chain management

TR P60 B 5 b B IR AR AR E B R K B L E BRI, MBI ERBEIRE
SEEEENAPMGER, FIU0HENREIEDFEMEESG mMRNEEE

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

Risk Management Report 127
RREIERS



3. RISK EVALUATION

The risk evaluation framework enables us to understand the

interdependencies between risks and their triggering impacts and to

3. Ja Fg BF Ak
E T LIEREGMEM THRERRELES I EZE M
FIME B RAF, Wl 4 B0 3 @ BS & 518 i A2 18 /R g

provide a basis for matching and prioritising risk response.

RISK
EVALUATION

AT

Brand Image
and Reputation
@R R
mEE

Operational
Impact

=4

e
SERE

Objective BHIE
Identify the root causes and assess relevant interdependencies

to risk impacts, informing the selection of risk response and resource allocation

i ) o g B0 AR 20 IR ) e 5 1 g 5 WA VAR B 1R, 4 35 422 e R 6 48 At Az B 30 R MR AR AL IR IR

|

Risk Evaluation Criteria & sF{hIEiHE

Legal and HealtMnMnk

Compliance Safety Protection Impact

E@&W&ﬂ%ﬁ% ﬁnﬁ%%7

Risk Evaluation Methodologies & Tools B iR I B

Qualitative Assessment

Quantitative Assessment

EEFFETIE EEFETIE
Interviews Workshops Survevs Sensitivity Financial Cost-Benefit Risk Assessment
o TiE tﬁp Fi%*ﬁyﬁ Analysis Models Analysis Matrix
e SEeEs BURESIT ISR AT YIRS 7 o AT 2 B 5 1ih %B P
Risk Assessment & [ 5 {th
Operational Level Entity Level Assessment
Assessment Assessment Result Review
2 JE @ 5T 1B 8 maTfh ML 4G RE R
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Main features of the risk evaluation framework JEL B A HE 2 ) T R B

Holistic risk assessment

=0 B R EE

The severity of risks is assessed at multiple levels by risk owners, Corporate Governance
Department, and senior management team and from holistic perspectives to ensure
comprehensive risk assessment

ERREREA. EREGHIsEEEERSRZEBAREEMAERRERIEREL,
VAT AY <2 T B0 Ja e 5 12 45 o

Risk owners in operational units are responsible to assess the risks individually at least once a
year. Corporate Governance Department supports risk owners and management in the process
of understanding the key considerations and feasible responses, and groups common risks
across operating units to assess the risk level collectively at group perspective
EESENUNERREESAGEEIELSSFEAFGER —IX, TRECPERREPZ
ERBAESSAREEEIERENEELIUTERER, 0KSEESTRHER @R
A, LATELASR B M AR — 5110 3 51 @ B A9 J& B 7k

The final assessment result is depicted on the risk heat map, which will be reviewed by senior
management team

RETHEREZERKEERBEREANE, TOSEEEBKES

Relevant and appropriate risk
evaluation criteria

15 BA F0 & & 09 /= B 5F 16 1R 4

The Group has developed a set of risk assessment criteria in line with its risk appetite focus to
comprehensively assess the severity and likelihood of the risk consequences
KEHRERFEERIABGNE T —ERRFGHER, N2BmFERERNEREEMD
BEM A

The assessment criteria take into account the impact of risks in different dimensions, including
brand image and reputation, operational impact, legal and compliance, health and safety,
environmental protection and financial impact, such that both financial and non-financial
consequences are considered when assessing risks

FEREEETREEARERENZE, OSnBPREBE,. BERE. ZEREGR.
BRERGE BERRELVBEZEHRE X8, BT EARE, 88= 82 RS2 AR
FEmER

In addition to the evaluation criteria for evaluating operational risks, we also use "importance
to stakeholders" as one of the criteria to prioritise the ESG-related risks. Both internal and
external stakeholders are engaged to identify and evaluate ESG-related risks which may have
significant impacts to our stakeholders

BR A EHE AR E MR K SE(E BERITN, B[ BTt EES M | 1FR5F1E ESGE R B g
BIRRFRIER Z —, BEENEAIEIFNE S EBANFH I MMELEE LR EN
ESG 1B R & b

The risk rating assessment results reflect the extent to which management needs to focus on
and address risk. The ratings are set with reference to the Group's acceptable level of risk
BB R EER, RMTEEEFRSHEIRERERBBREINE, RUFRGTERESRE
FofEZEmiEEF2E
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4. RISK MITIGATION AND CONTROL

The risk mitigation and internal control framework deals primarily with
risk reduction. The structure of our risk mitigation and control
framework is informed by principles outlined by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission's ("COSO")
Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

4. Ja By JE 5 42 1
mEESANASBEEERNEIZENRRERRR, T M
0 G B 30 A0 B R AR ZRIRIE 2 B8 T Commiittee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission([ COSO ])z R
B AR S EAR B R R HIE

Objective HIZ
Reduce the likelihood or impact of the risk
P {1 JE\ P 4] OT R T 2 HL R &

|

Internal Control System M 8B B% 1F R &%

Control Environment

Control Information & Communication

T HIR IR NEEEREE
. . . Quality
Commitment to Integrity Risk . . Internal External
. Information with L L
and Ethical Values Governance Model Data Analytics Communication Communication
BTRNEREEER El =y e WEA R EBEES A BB i 1@ Jh 8B i
Control Activities B 12 &l
Preventive Detective Corrective
Controls Controls Controls
T B 4 S ife 15 81 4 e Al 1E 4 15 it

l

Internal Control Assessment 5B B 15 5E 1t

Operational Units
Self-assessment
SEENKN BT
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Main features of the risk mitigation and control framework — Ja g1 8 35 S 425 i A 28 () 32 2245 B

Strong control environment

BREEHNRE

Promote honesty and integrity among our staff on a day-to-day basis

EHEEDDE THENERZWNE XL

Foster an environment in which our people are knowledgeable and committed to carrying out
internaJ control across the Group, and confirming the acknowledgement annually

BEEE TR BEAKEEFHTADBEE TENERE, TSFHEA8 TR

Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud Policy, Code of Conduct,
Whistleblowing Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, to enhance our commitment to integrity
and ethical values

HIE R SFE R AR STRI. BRERBUR R i BUR S BUR BRI, FELAND R M1 & 15 &
EE R E VDS

Effective risk & control
communication

AR EEEE

Quality Information with data analytics — We are dedicated to exercise deeper application of
data analytics to convert data to risk management information in order to identify control
weakness and evaluate the effectiveness of risk responses

HEAMEREBEEE — FMBNREEASEAN, FEEECARREREE, AH
Al B 1 55 36 T 5T 10 o B T B0 AY 21

Internal communication — We adopt both top-down and bottom-up approaches to ensure
management and risk owners are aware of risks that fall into their area of responsibility and risk
responses are consistently implemented. Top-down communication includes regular training,
town hall meetings and regular senior management meetings. Bottom-up communication
includes regular risk reports in management meetings as well as ongoing optimisation of the
reporting channel and follow-up process for employees to reflect fraud risk events

AEPER — FPEERB EM IR TmENGTE, BREEENRBRAERSAINER
HEHEAKER, TRREMBTERESER, B LM TFHREEEEEREBIN. 258
ERAETHNSEEREGR B TMEARAGBEHREEEREREXEARSFIE, T
BEYETIRMERERSEFN LRRERRERRE

External communication — We perform regular communications and risk surveys with external
stakeholders and risk experts to identify external events that might affect the achievement of
the Group's objectives

ShEDIEE — FMEINEBIE N E R AR B ERERETBE R, AR BEAI 0 e 2B/ IRAK
HEBRINEBE

Internal control assessment

P 8B B {2 5F 1

Operational units are responsible to perform an annual self-assessment and individual risk-
based reviews to assess their performance in promoting effective control practices and to
monitor store operational risks and irregularities

EEBENEE ?L'_fﬁ}gﬁﬁEWEE’UIHJJ—lBﬁIEE"]%ﬁ N HERERNEEERA
HHIR IR R BAIPT IS & 8 b K2 1E RSB 1R

Internal Audit is responsible to perform independent assessments of key control activities to
ensure compliance and conformity of internal control to pre-determined standards

NEPEZBEE LT EHRRERSE, NERNDEETERETRERE
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FY2024 principal risks

Through the application of the above business and strategy setting,
identification, evaluation, and mitigation and control frameworks, we

2024 A BUAR JE 3 208 B
75 M PR L USRS R SRS IR MR B R ME M A0 4
FIIESR, B 2024 R K ERBITE BN FESAR :

have identified and responded to the following principal risks in

FY2024:

Key areas of risk implication @l i 5/ £ + S & 15

Q @

© K I 6=

Damage to Declining customer Business interruption Legal disputes Underperforming Property and
brand reputation loyalty and failure and liabilities business profitability financial losses
mIgBEZE iR 25 8 A 2 e EE SR oP T Rz 2R3 ERAMNREE FHEN KRR XE B 7 R TSR 2K

Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend

2 B2 %5 7l EEEHRRBEESE B E R B S | B 8 54

Business & Risk of franchisee management Continuously review franchise business strategy and

Market D B2 7 & 1 JE Ry business model, implement optimisation work plan and

Development determine key management responsibilities under the

¥R EMIR In response to the high quality optimisation process

EEdg | development goal of the franchise HERIENE R R AL, SEHEELT
business, the Group is concerned TE5T 8 K i T;E HEETHNESEERE

about major scenarios such

as quality franchisee entry,
performance monitoring and
relationship management.
Inadequate management of
the above could impact the
Group's reputation and financial
performance

REGNEREFESEEH
RER, SEBATEENR
BHSIA. RIFBRERE

EEFELER, WEEAR
& DGR ESRERER
MR

Potential impact:
TR A

@L

Develop and optimise selection and evaluation
mechanisms, including thorough background checks on
key franchisees

ST XL R BV IR RO ST A B Al

HENERHEE

B 15 #4125 3610 8 i AT

Reaffirm the red lines policy in franchise business
management, and strengthen the compliance awareness
of franchisees through training and enforcement of
penalties

AR FBERERAMBE,
J&R &1 25 038 10 BR 7 5 AR = 5

055 i@ 15 5 K2 AT

The Group has established an independent mechanism,
including whistleblowing, store on-the-spot inspection
and data analytics, to enhance timely monitoring of the
operation of franchisees
KE DR IIE IS,
BTN,

BEER. PSHBEERY
LA 38 34 /10 B2 /8 BB K2 0 ) & 0 B 51
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Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
2 B 58 A1l TERMBERREEYE B 5 % JE #1115 i 2 2 8 54
Business & Risk of ineffective response to Modernise our brand image and marketing campaign for
Market changing market conditions iconic product collections to deepen our reach and
Development i7 R 15 2 1Y 8 $°K 2 @ & rapport with existing and new generations of customers
i R REmEER RIS EARIINEHEH,
BRE The Group's inability to effectively LATID IR ER B3 5 K2 F 85 iR &5 (R By 22
navigate and respond to the
dynamic market environment Accelerate the use of digital technology and data
and consumer sentiment may analytics to support business and market development,
result in brand image and including integrated impact analysis of product portfolio,
profitability deterioration distribution and store optimisation
N0ER 2 A BUES F i K2 8UR 72 A7 LA SZ 38 32 5 R h 15 3%
RERERIEN R L ES & B, BEENEHERES. BERMEBYRGEGHT
FimizRRAEE A, OIAE HE A
BEGHRER K E N 8
Refine management structure with clearer accountability,
Potential impact: empowering the senior executive team to communicate
BERE: major market updates, including competitors and consumer
N perceptions or actions, and potential hurdles of our business
g@g M plan rigorously and timely for necessary adjustments
TEEERBUE-—DHESTE, BESEEEERK
BB RFNEEFSHIZNMNG, SEHRFEHFRE
BEMBEZNITH, FHTE LABEERES, UIF
HH VA S R0 38 B
Business & Risk of product loss and Implement data analytics to continuously assess risk
Market noncompliance factors and levels of store operations, including irregular
Development ERiEXERAEGHER inventory movements and suspected noncompliance
K i issues in Mainland China
TR Risks of product loss and brand 175 18 EHE 2 AT 5 4B A 48 O[5 A St B P T R B (K 2R R Ik

image damage due to control
and compliance issues such as
staff misconduct, unauthorised
discounts and inappropriate
product descriptions

HREIAETHA. BRI
IRAEMmRAFEERES
HREE, S TEGEX
R o b8 T R Z 18 5 B By

Potential impact:
BrERE:

QR [y 62

T, BERETEEIRANAGHEEIR

Optimise store on-the-spot inspection mechanism,
including risk-based sampling rules, for timely detection
of red flags

BUHMERSEEHS, BIEERMEBGRRIZE, ILE
Rz 5 i 45 A R 1S 5

Institutionalise and optimise sales and marketing
management and procedures, covering customer service
and post-sales enquiries, timely review and execution of
marketing activities and product pricing updates
HEYREBHHEREHEERRFRRE, 8EEP
RAs. EEEH. RIFFHENTEHTIRERTE
BB

Enhance practices for appropriate product information
display and management
MaERRFAGENERLEEERER
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Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
| B %8 Rl TERBERREELE B 1= I T 1 1 it a2 iz 8 34
Branding & Risk of brand image and Monitor and uplift the quality of customer service continuously

Product reputation by improving sales service standardised processes and

oo 8 K2 7E oo fR iR TR R B & E g implementing regular training

Damage to brand image and
reputation due to public opinion
or media coverage arising from
customer complaints, infringement
of intellectual property rights,
and inappropriate behaviour of
the Group's representatives or
Key Opinion Leaders ("KOLs")

HERERF. ERAHEERE.
KETRFAA(KOL )R
ES1T, mal#EAREmoyR
ﬁggﬁfﬁﬁ ,%|ﬁnnﬁ2ﬁ/%

BETE

Potential impact:
BECE:

Q s

BERTEHERBRERER EHERIGIFEES
RieHEPRBEEE

Engage professional third-party team to investigate and
enforce infringement clues, and strengthen awareness
sharings on patents, trademarks and copyrights
SHEFFE=NEFHEESEARIEITHRE, M
MEAN. ARREBFESHNEENS

Review existing red-line standards for KOLs and platform
cooperation, promote enhancement plans, and strengthen
the monitoring mechanism of KOLs and platform cooperation

R RBERKOLR T & GIFALARIRE, STomRiEE B
ISR, W0 KOL Kz T & & 1F 8 & 13 # il

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
L e 2 A%
EEEIEE

Risk of inadequate supplier
management

HER &2 2R

In the face of elevating expectation
of key stakeholders over our
sustainable practices in the supply
chain, inadequate management
and disclosure on ESG practices
and performance of our key
material suppliers could be
detrimental to brand image

HEEZHFNEHEMEMR
i B o B 0T £ 48 3 e B R 1
2R, EHESRAME
FESCER R R EEM
KEAE, G AFMR G
IS

Potential impact:
BERE:

@)=

Review of critical suppliers and optimise the raw material
procurement management system against global leading
practices, integrating ESG factors into the mechanism
with phased approach

Bel RE R ER, RERERAEEERNEBHR
MERBEERSE, TRNBERMNAESGRER

Enhance risk assessment criteria for diamond raw material
suppliers with ESG hot topics e.g. anti-money laundering
and environmental and labour practice considerations to
strengthen supplier due diligence

N0 A BRA LS B | bR e R, AW R BEE .
REERETERFESCAMEENEZE, Nkt
EEEAERE

Identify, assess and monitor the supplier risks, including
conducting audits. Engage selected suppliers with risk
identified and corrective measures for noncompliance

st Al < 5T 1 RO B A AL L B ETELT‘T%%‘I'O B 32
TE 1 7 5 5 2 5 Al B G B K2 12 AR Al IE 15 i
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Risk category
| B %8 Rl

Key risk description
and potential impact

FTEmEHEREEESE

Controls & mitigation

B3 15 2 1 1 i

Risk trend

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
L 5 K2
EiEEIEE

Risk of customer privacy
breach

B B3 AL ) B

Risks of system security and
improper staff operation that lead
to leakage or misuse of customers'
personal information, or failure
to meet increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, resulting
in noncompliance penalties and
damages to the Group's reputation

HRERBERFAPNZIEZER
BETRFAEMENRE @&
AGEBMIRERRA, =¥
REETWE BB RENEEE
R, EHCARE R EES KK

mREZE

Potential impact:
BECE:

Establish the Privacy Governance Committee and appoint
a Data Protection Officer responsible for privacy-related
tasks, including formulating privacy management policy
and related documents

WIUELBEEEE, ISEEAGRREESER
BRI TIF, E145 & I REF & 18 BUR & A8 E X1

Observe relevant regulatory developments and perform
integrated impact analysis and prioritisation. Enable
timely tracking of mitigation progress with the
assistance of dashboard

HEBENZEZRERE, TETESUEREREBIRD
M, BNRERRTERIFRIRER TIFER

Conduct privacy impact analysis on proposed business
and operational changes and design and implement
corresponding system security controls in accordance
with compliance requirements
MEEREBR L EESVETABRE LN, Wi
BRERRFTREMBENRG S 2T

Raise staff awareness of personal data and privacy
protection through privacy training

EMEAFEEEI, Re 8 THREREABRAEL
T ENE#

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
3L e i A%

EEEEE

Risk of cyber threats
A4S < m b

Insufficient security controls on
the Group's e-tailling platforms
against increasing cyber threats
may expose the corporate network
to the possibility of intrusion for
unauthorised access to sensitive
information and insertion of
suspicious transactions, resulting
in system interruption or legal
and financial liabilities

EHREARENEREFIHET
B 8152 £ LAE B 18 10504
BEE, PREBBERIHR
N2 78 BU SR & 61 A2 JEE 1T O] &EE
Ro;, ENRGELEEEE
o HEARERMHEE

Potential impact:

2/ .
A

RO K

Develop and update cybersecurity policies and procedures
to stipulate clear accountability on cybersecurity governance
FIENEMASTEEREEFINARAKSSEEE
K2 B &5

Engage an external service provider to conduct 7x24 cyber
threat detection and monitoring with various technologies
for timely risk response to minimise the impact

B 58 S 8D AR 65 15 A A 2 R B AT EE 1T 7 X 24 18 A K2
ERERERHE, URIFESRREEREE

Obtain security standard certifications for critical systems
and conduct regular penetration testing
REARRGIE S 2R ENE R E ETTIZE AR

Enhance cybersecurity contingency capabilities continuously
by conducting regular simulations to rehearse the incident
recovery and business continuity plans, and providing
cybersecurity training to our staff

FERTHEST BT, BiEEHHSEHRIRES
R B IEEME ST I TR, A8 TiRHER
el
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Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
| B %8 Rl TERBERREELE B 1= I T 1 1 it | B i 34
Governance & Risk of employee fraudulent Uphold a culture of integrity for all employees through

Compliance activities continuous education

BiaRGHEER 8 T S i m fa BRFENEREMAEIMNENK

Employees engage in unauthorised
or unethical practices for personal
advantage, resulting in losses to
the Group

BIRTESEARNZMmR
FREEBN T NERIT
&, HATEAEX

Potential impact:
BECE:

R 3

Review the Group's policies and guidelines regularly,
including updating the Code of Conduct which requires
employees' confirmation and report of conflicts of
interest

EMREI KRB BORAES, BIEEMES TEMEE
BT RREHE TIT4 TR

Reinforce our identification of potential fraudulent
activities and control weaknesses through enhancement
of whistleblowing and follow up mechanisms,
highlighting key responsibilities and governance with
standardised classification and process
RTTERE R IRERE, e EEERTAaRE
TimiE, TR EAIREREEEENREREL

Set up reporting template and tools to enhance
management transparency and operational effectiveness

BUMSERR TRERRESEEBREREFRE

Governance &
Compliance

EiaRGRER

Anti-money laundering
compliance risk

8% G R b

Ineffective measures taken to
address anti-money laundering
regulatory requirements in our
operating regions increase the
risk of unintentional assistance to
money laundering activities and
result in losses from noncompliance
penalties

SEHRAAUEIREHSE
EhEHRARKEE S
K, 1800 e 5] 3F 80U 7 B ik
2% B B JE B K2 B HA G R
B B2 &1 18 2K

Potential impact:

BrEE

Q &«

Benchmark against best practices and establish relevant
guidelines to stipulate governance responsibilities

HIRREERLEUEREESINAEE S

Monitor the update of anti-money laundering laws and

regulations continuously and analyse the impact on the

Group's operation to ensure compliance with anti-money

laundering practices

—Irﬁf ERGRERMERAEMLARBEELE
ET T, NERKERRIER TIF TN ZGRRTF

Leverage on digital platforms to assist the frontline with
customer due diligence compliance procedures and
record keeping

EAS LT WA AITER
2RI IRTE

=HBEEG R

Risk level decreased during FY2024
2024 BB E A @ R TR

Risk level increased during FY2024
2024 B BUEF N @ B Ik _E T

Risk level remained broadly the same as FY2023
E2 2023 Bf ML E KE B /K F1EE
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Management for climate change risk

We adopt the integrated risk management approach to manage
sustainability-related risks and opportunities.

On climate change issues, as a responsible global citizen, we will not
only support a low-carbon future, but also work with the international
community to support climate change mitigation and adaptation
efforts and are focused on improving transparency. From 2020
onwards, we set our climate-related disclosures according to the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD").

During the period, we continued to monitor updates to the climate-
related disclosure requirements, analysed gaps with disclosure
requirements published by International Sustainability Standards
Board ("ISSB") to ensure compliance and proactively identifying
climate-related risks and opportunities in order to prepare the basis
for the Group's in-depth climate scenario analysis and financial impact

SRR B2 A R B B
HMRAGSAREEMEAEE U FERESE AR
R iB

EREEgESEL, IMFAEEEHNEROR, A8
EfFBm R, B8 mERAESEFZFERDE
FEREREHE TIF, WEIERS B IR HEE

RE. B2020F W MSERZEHYKGEEHETIF
A TCFD 1B B IERIF R BRI S RIRE

HAN R P @B R R BB B I EE R B, NTEE
PROJFFAE SIS R ERITE & ([ 1SSB | )3 fh 2 # B8 B R 118
PLZE B LATE fRE AR, 0 A5 Al 47 T B SRR A B B0 JeRL B RO A
B, HEEETRERBRBERAONTRMBERZETHER
Eit, HEPMZERFRZIERTREWOT

assessment. The consideration factors and framework are as follows:

Aspect Governance Eifi

Ll The Board of Directors has the highest

responsibility for climate-related issues

and the Sustainability Committee is delegated

for overseeing and managing ESG matters.

EETREERHRREEZENRSEE,
EETFEERSES TR EREEESGER,

il B -

Strategy & %

Regularly analyse climate-related physical
and transition risks and opportunities and
assess their financial impacts.

TE B 43 AT £ 5 1% 4 ) 61 B2 R % i L B A
HiE, REGHEMBYE.

L

N

v

.~ .

ll@

. ~
Y

>
n
O
[}
(2]
-+

Risk Management & I & 12

Integrated risk management approach are
adopted to ESG matters, including conducting
regular materiality assessments to analyse
stakeholders' views on climate-related issues and
determine possible management approaches.
INGEERIEEENREEESGCGER, BiEEH
EITES TG AT & ¥R 1R 18 B HRE
FRm@g, WRETTHREERRIE,

& wi

>
(4]
O
(0]
(2]
-+

Metrics And Targets 16 IRF1 B IR

Set a 10-year sustainability strategy and work

plan and committed to reduce GHG emissions

intensity by 15% by 2029, and will continue to

report on our performance and review.

ST TS ERRRIE R TIEstEl, K&

T_ZOZQfﬁH?ﬂnE:'l s S HERSUEE R IR 15 % 5
BRFEERBEMARERES BR.

® »!

k_rl

%g%’_m
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Risk Examples

2 B 5 1

Opportunity Examples
#iE Rl

Time horizon with regard to our business outlook
HERERBREEEZHHEER:

Short-, medium- and long-term are defined as less than 2 years, 2-6
years, and more than 6 years respectively

2. PIRERINAIADR2F. 2-6 FRIBIB6F

Physwal Risk E 8 2 b&
Extreme weather incidents such as

+ Capturing the market
preferences towards low
carbon products and
sustainability performance
transparency
T 12 1 5 T O E G AD
OHFEERAEYBERE
81 I 1

+ Improving business model
for energy and operating

flooding or heavy precipitation and
typhoon may lead to business
interruption

i 7K BY 2 7 RO RE a5 1R B 2K SR 55 14
IR ENRKZE

Increase in the number of annual hot
days may highlight the demand for air
conditioning and cooling systems for

production and operation efficiency
iﬂfﬁmmfgﬁlmiﬁﬂﬂﬂ—lﬁ‘égi‘mﬂﬂi oSt SR 1R I LA IR = A
ENEEHTRLARARFHK TRADIE B

Transitional Risk if & J& }&
Uplifting of regulatory requirements
in climate-related mitigation and
compliance cost
HSRIR BN R E SRR G R TES
Adoption of new green approaches may
induce challenges to existing production
and operational flows and require
investments in research and assets
RAMNEBERAEZTEZGERAN
EEF*U EERETRIE, IFESE
MARMNEEN@WETRE

E Please scan the QR code for details of our climate scenario analysis and relevant information in sustainability report.

RIRERATRIEHAENFRRRE M, SRUSEZRERS
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Emerging risk B B ) B

We are also concerned that the following emerging issues may have a MRS 2024 B BUAE = HA A T2 45 BRI LA T R B G RE A 1
long-term and significant impact on the Group during FY2024 period. THEERBRAYREREAZE, FMBAEHEBERE
We currently continue to monitor the development trend of the AR RES, TREETEEENITUIETSR

relevant risks and conduct impact analysis in a timely manner in order TE B W E S b,

to set up optimised mitigation measures as needed.

o w e X

(o 6=

Damage to Declining customer Business interruption Legal disputes Underperforming Property and
brand reputation loyalty and failure and liabilities business profitability financial losses
mEBEZE B 6 3 BT SR oP T Rz K3 ERA MR EE FBBENRERNE PSR S

Risk category Emerging issue description & potential impact Key areas of concern

JE B %8 Rl T L 5 RE fi o 2 i T EEEAERE

Governance & Carbon Tax Policy Development Keep abreast of the relevant regulatory developments
Compliance IR B RERE and requirements

BiaRGHREA BERTBREZRERRLER

The Group's overall business activities are affected
by the regulatory environment and requirements in
the market. In response to the global emphasis on
ESG issues and the development of carbon policies
in various countries, it is expected that Mainland
China may start to impose carbon tax, which will
lead to an increase in the Group's carbon emission
costs in the long run. In the meantime, the quality
and transparency of carbon data will have to be
enhanced under policy implementation, and the
trend of the Group's overall compliance costs will be
a matter of concern
SEEREBTNEMGEIAERRERTE, &
JEEBEESCHEEMNER L SENRBERE R,
TEHA oP [0 A b By A B UG BB R, RiEM S, HE
R B AR AR IB 0, [ 05 FE LR HE AT T A% 21 A
MBI EERIARERA, SEEESIEMNKE
AFERHIT

Potential impact:

\EE 7 B2 480 .
BrERE:

R &

Assess the potential impact of the carbon tax
policy on the entire business chain and relevant
key areas of concern

AR BEERERENEERE
K AHBEE R TR

Formulate appropriate targets and work plans
for the Group's emission reduction efforts

il E SR E R HE TIF80 G iE B AR R Tt &
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Risk category
e B %8 Rl

Emerging issue description & potential impact

MARERRREERE

Key areas of concern

ERERER R

Business & Market
Development
EREMIFERES

Geopolitical Tension

ith 4R BB 25k e

We are concerned about the commercial impact and
extended consequences of uncertain geopolitical
issues, including significant fluctuations in international
gold price and raw material supply

1M B E A T E 0 h AR I0E (K] 2= T 55 2R 0/ R R
LR IEPER, 611E = PR E 8 R R A K G i 21

P

rag =R
EwE

Potential impact
BHERE

QI 3

Consider to enhance the Group's mechanism
and system for collating and sharing macro
market information such that the Group has a
unified and efficient source of information for
impact analysis
ERGSETEREERAZRE MGG R
REHFEN, WBESKEAEHK -—RENEMIR
BNt &

Conduct scenario analysis of uncertain risks,
such as macroeconomic and geopolitical risks, in
order to explore and plan for better responses
to the stability of gold product supply and rapid
changes in the gold price

2 B BRI AR UG % A E MR RIET IS
=, RABRST ARSI EENERETE

Dedicated staff in business operations continue
to closely monitor the nature and extent of
geopolitical issues and analyse the relevant
areas and levels of impact within the Group
FBEENETEABFEE VIR TIMGRE
AR N e, 0T 6 B N 4B B R B EE B K2 UK
AR

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
e A

EEEIES

Artificial Intelligence (Al) Application
AL fEA

Al applications can support the enhancement of our
business processes, bringing automation and convenience.
However, if there is insufficient associated risk awareness
or a lack of monitoring for the use of Al technology,
there could be negative consequences affecting our
brand image and reputation, as well as incurring other
losses

AT SRRNEREXFRMEBRIERA, FXRE
B SEEAE, A, & AT 8 E AR
WA EHRZHE, T EREREERE
BERHEMEBERXZEEER

Potential impact
BHERE

ON @I W=

Monitor the development of Al as well as the
trends of relevant laws and regulations
MIALERENEREREREZENERE L
i)

Analyse the tendency, feasibility and risks
associated with the application of Al in the
Group's business
AMALBEREERBERA L@@, o
171 K2 4B B @ B

Explore related risk management processes to
better assess relevant costs and benefits of
applications

MRARST B @R EIRT R, IWEBEFIMmET
JiEE A B0 RY 7 8 7 93 AT

Consider the Group's capacity enhancement
needs in the application and management of Al
and related technologies, and conduct relevant
training

E RSB A L BE R 18 BB 1 i A 2 B 18
IFHENRATS, WETERAEI
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5. EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE
TRACKING

The Board acknowledges it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. On
behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee oversees the internal audit
function and reviews the adequacy and continued effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function. The Board and the Audit
Committee acknowledge that our risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

To support the effective review, Senior Management Team, Internal
Audit, and Whistleblowing Officer will capture and align information
for reporting at a level that is consistent with Audit Committee's

oversight responsibilities as illustrated below:

Process used to review the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems and the internal
audit function

5. O 22 B 1B HiE

EFEQARNHEHAABNREERANBPEERABRS, I1H
f&kﬂw%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ$o$@§%§ﬁ§§$ﬁw

BD 25 5T I AE 2 AR 5 AN ER B Bl B TR K2 N BB B I R AR
RNBEAHESSEARTEEYN. EFTRELS
EERA, AEEERNBEERGSEEEMIFHEB
REEEMSERFERNAER, MERERAEEEX
Bk E R ey Bk 1F G I M AR R H B R o

ATZHFAEYHRS, FESEEEEK. NBHEZR
AREENTHEERCETRERSE JHEARKER
BEEHMNETRS, BERBERUTERRA :

iy ek R B HE K 9 R B R R AT e 9 AT
W RE A Rk BT AR Fy

Board of Directors

o

f

Report on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
MEREEMNANBEERANEIEELRS

(© 3 times or more per year

=3 P/ N-1Ab S o

Audit Committee

BEZEEE

! |

Report on cases of misconduct
and fraudulent behaviour

RABTANERTABRELRS
(® 3 times or more per year
TEIRFEIAL

Whistleblowing Officer

140 Governance

EEaVAN
E /0

Report on significant audit
findings and control deficiencies

MEREZERNEERRZ EIFHRES
(© 3 times or more per year
BEIRFIAL

Internal Audit
BHEEE A &8 3

Report on principal risks and the approach
to address risk and control deficiencies

HRESEBAEHERREERRFIAFHRS
(® 3 times or more per year
HEIRFEIAL

Senior Management Team

SESEEEERK

I

Report on progress and effectiveness of risk
management practices at operational level

TEE B R E R TIEREE R SFE RS
O Monthly
#A

Management in Operational Units

EEEUEEE
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Those who enforce the review the effectiveness of our risk i & J& Faz 457 B S N # B 42 & &8 S N 3 3%
management and internal control systems and the internal ~— BRBEA 20 AT AN B

audit function

Audit Committee
BEnEe8

As part of the Audit Committee's oversight responsibilities with regard to the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, the Audit Committee will:
FAERSEGHANSETHEAIMENEESEN—8n, S&EE8
— Review the annual audit plan
HERFEE LT
— Receive periodic reports on the results of the Internal Audit's work
BIWARNBEZ LIFERAOERRS
— Monitor management's responsiveness to the Internal Audit's findings and recommendations
RREBEHANDEZERTVERK O IE

— Review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of

2

o

the internal audit function

BTN EPE AN EIR. 8 TEFEAER IR T2 SN RER R T

Internal Audit
M 3B E %

Internal Audit plays a crucial role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group

NEPE ZEHRANRE AN B E G L8 & B 55

To provide an independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems, Internal Audit:

HAMEREENABRERAKE S AN AIIRMEIISENIRE, NEBEZ :

— Has unfettered access to all necessary information, people, records, and outsourced operations
across the Group, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance, risk management, and
control processes that management has put into place
OERARHENERL FTERKEENMEUNSHER. BEAERA L. S0P HEE, X
HEFesEREERTHELR. AREERRERRFZAY

— Adopts a risk-based approach, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are considered
within the scope of the audit
RAERRERA L, BRREZEENTEIBTENREISENEX@R

— Engages an independent consulting firm to assist the internal audit service to further strengthen
the flexibility and independence of the internal audit function

SISW AR A S E ) N ERE 2 R, i — 5 1038 N BB 35 51 Ml AR B0 2B )E MEAD T8 Y1 T

Senior Management
Team

SEEEEEBEK

Departments at Group's second line of defence support senior management team to assist the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the Group's risk appetite, the Group's ERM
Framework, and the governance model that supports it

KERE_HMREBMXESEEEBE, UMNESSETHERNEE @ R KT 2 E R EEE

RTEERRENEEEE

Detailed responsibilities include:

BHRETIFEE

— Review significant risk exposures and the steps that management has taken to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report such exposures
metEXEEARERERER . @8, MR EHF0HR S A 6 E AT ERELK 25 B

— Review significant risk and compliance issues as well as material internal control defects identified,
together with management's responses and follow-up to these reports
G EARABNGHEFEEREAPRETRE, UREEREHIEFRS IO ERIETH

— Review the scope of planned risk management and compliance activities

ERFESNRRERENGHRITINITIFERE
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Tools used to review the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems and the internal

audit function

i el R B L R 9 B R R T e 9 AT
W RE A Rk BT T A

Frequency

IRE

Content covered during FY2024
R2024 B EERZFINE

Audit Committee
Reports
ERSEERS

3 times or more
per year

BF IR L

Assurance on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems

IR B b T K2 N B AR AR A AU R R

Whistleblowing
Reports
ERETRS

3 times or more
per year

BF IR L

Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management

BMEASRERTANER, LAREEERIEN

Anti-fraud culture building programme and training

SEUL AR R 5T 8l R 15 3

Internal Audit
Reports

R &P F LIRS

3 times or more
per year

BF IR L

Significant audit findings and control deficiencies

BEANEFTHROEERE

Progress of remedial measures implemented by management

&I JE AT AU A 5 =

Review on the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting and
compliance with prevailing regulations

BT NERE AR RS R R SA R IBAT AR G EIR

Senior Management

3 times or more

Principal risks identified at the group level and the related mitigation

Team Reports per year measures, including the approach to resolve material internal control defects
SESEEEEK BE3IRF AL LA 6K (B /& T 58 Al 00 2 2 @ B LA K2 18 B E ST HE i, £ 15 R R R EE N BB B T dR AR
BRE 817 iE
Review on the resources, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
BEHRBE. WEZRVBERSHENER. BETEERER, ARG
£
Control Self- Annually Scope and quality of the management's ongoing monitoring of risks and the
assessment and BF internal control systems
Management EEERFERESRRLASBEERANSHENRER
Confirmation Management's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
MNEBEEE BT E Group's policies including the Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, and Anti-
EEEERE Money Laundering Policy

EEEETEAERENREERABR, REEREELET. REFH
R R [ e # BUR

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would

have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk

BERSEGRER MRS, AREF TN 2024 W IF
ERABEXNNEEMENEEEREERNIBEERGR
BIRY SRRz 7 B MR R AR 2 2

management and internal control systems of the Group for FY2024.
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6. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

By their nature, most crises are unpredictable, but we believe it is
possible to determine activities and areas that may be particularly
prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these areas is key to
ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the impact of adverse
events, aid recovery and support business continuity. Set out below

are the pre-crisis measures that help us maintain an appropriate level

of preparedness to respond to crises:

=Y

BRENE E2EEARMNE, BHMEETAAE DR
MNEZBABRIITENF S, HMBHHHZ2FRE
FREREERMEME RATUEBRIMEBEE
BRI ED. BEANSEAEEMEOZE. AEHERI
BXRBEEER. TXEINL MBI ANIENM,
T BN R AP 1 I 2 fh LA TE S B

Crisis Management
Team ("CMT")
Je 1 & 12 B Bk

Composition

Led by Vice-chairmen and Managing Director, staffed with Crisis

iahE Coordinator, Chief Officers and Leaders from the Group's corporate function
units and market segments
HEIETRRESRCERE, VEEEEHmAE. BEEERE AR
BRERAE S PIMIZ N EEIEE A
Other personnel from varying disciplines and regions would be identified on
an as-needed basis
RERTEBYREMERBIENIBENASNA

Functions Identify areas of concern

HE RE A Al FERITHEE

Assess the impact of the identified concerns

AR TEEN TR

Devise strategies and response plans to overcome crises
il T PR B8 A0 4 51 8 LA IR 7B 1

Maintain and monitor cases for tracking and improvements
A S8 RO B P B 3R LA AT IB Bt K2 1B 1K

Crisis Management
Documentation
Guidelines and
Response Plans
EREERENMHESIR
JiE 15t 8l

Crisis Register and
Management Manual
o 50 M 2
B F it

Provide an overall coordinated approach and guidelines for crisis response
and provide a consistent crisis management process across the Group
REmEEEESNEE NIt RIES], REERE 0B EIRRERF
Set out the definition of a crisis and triggering events, categorisation of crises,
the activation guideline, the composition and roles of the Crisis Management
Team, and the crisis communication and reporting protocol
HIEHELBESHNES. BN, MBIES. BHEEBEKRNGS
168 Rz Bl 5 LA K2 16 g 3 ¥R A0 BB ¥R AR AR

Tailored standard
operation procedures,
response plans and
playbooks

TE il R BE R AR AR Fr
fiE 151 S A0 B B F it

Identify critical crisis situations, with step-by-step instructions for
responding to specific crises

sl ES BN, JHEASEEHNEE D RER

Crisis Management
Training and Simulation

JE B 5 12 15 3l 2 i AR

Instruction-based
training

BER I HIE

Aim to increase staff's capability in recognising crisis warning signs and
enhance staff's ability of comprehensive and effective assessment and
management before, during and after a crisis
EERASTIHMNEHERRRERBLENA. P, ERIFZEAMEN
BIET1E K B 18 2 fE

Provide our staff an initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources

METRHEEHEERNTIAREHEBEERREREIR

Workshop-based
simulation
TR
1 5k 8 &Y 5l 4R

Aim to validate the crisis management plan and the capability of the CMT

& TE I 51l 7B 1 & T2 51 81l 59 pY A0 1B 1 B 1R [ X ) e

Allow the CMT to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during
a crisis scenario

EOHEREERNYEREHIG R TRIEEEIRVEBHRDEE
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7. RISK CAPABILITY BUILDING

We continuously review and enhance our risk management framework
by embedding an appropriate capability development plan to ensure
effective and efficient support to the Board to perform risk oversight
and sustain business resilience. We identified the following capability
enhancement focuses in prior year, covering the areas of governance
and collaboration, processes, tools and information. The enhancement
plan is carried out by phases and set out below is the summary of the

achievements for this year.

7. JE B A AR ) b

He P 455 468 A 5 A0 10 96 R (3 /L B 5 1 AE 2R K2 B R i &
BIRE1EE R5TE], URRBNASYIM I EEEEST
Joal B B R EHT SRS M. Foqf B Ria Al L LA T TR
THEH, BEEBERBE. fife. TENGEEF R,
RIASTEINERIETT, LTE2RFERMRBE,

Capability
enhancement area

RENNEKER

Targets for enhancements

BHBIE

FY2024 tasks and achievements
2024 B £ FE B9 T 1F F2 R SR

Risk governance and
collaboration

JE B ' ) A2 1% [

Apply consistently the risk management
framework to the Group's businesses
IS R B 56 5 B i JiE A el B i BEAE 2R
Strengthen the Group's crisis management
mechanism

YR E B IR

Through the analysis of the Group's value chain, we have
closely aligned the business objectives and related
sustainability and risk management initiatives. In addition, the
crisis governance structure was established to enhance the
Group's overall risk management efforts with optimised crisis
response procedures

BIREKEEEE N, PSR B IR A8 R O 1 3
EREREETIFEELE, Wb, MEIX TEHEIGR
B, MINBrHEREANEFREASREREERERE

P
He

Risk management
process and
standard

JE| i & 12 it A R
2L

Develop and optimise business continuity
plans

il T Rz 18 11 3% 55 3 48 M 5t &l

Revise Group policies and standards
for high-risk issues
SRR EIEE T KBRS LE

The continuity plan of information system failures has been
optimised to maintain the Group's business resilience. We have
also conducted enhancements of high-risk matters, including
uplifted supplier due diligence in line with industry standards
for diamond raw material procurement on anti-money
laundering, environmental and labour practice considerations
BB T B AR A PR B 48 E ST &I LAMERF SR B SR )
s FMERESSERSFRETTENY, RERBOR
BEREE, RITEREERER. BREHETIERES LN
I ERN RS

Risk management
tools and
technologies
EREETIAER
Bk

Strengthen key risk monitoring indicators
S 1Y £ 5 b BRI B LS IR
Elevate store risk validation approach
and detection capability

N0 P9 I o B i 58 77 5% R 1R 80 e

We have reduced the number of false alarms through data
analysis and improved the efficiency of the Group's alert handling.
We have also strengthened the risk detection capability by
applying data analytics to select stores for inspection
FHEBSEATEMERZRENER, R THEREER
BRIBE ; BT &R PY S mRiERlge ], EAEUR
ARG ETEE

Risk information and
communication

5 b (5 B R &

Optimise the communication process
for risk identification and communication
18 1 30 17 [ B 58 Rl Rz 58 R B¢ 1
JEFE

We have assisted the Group's management in collating the
risk universe in the key business scenarios, formulating
enhancement plans and following up on the progress; also
worked with the management to understand and analyse
major risk changes for aligning enhancement direction
FMHBNEEEEERETEERERRESE KR, §E
B TFstEIRERIRE ; MEEEEXR THREZNITE
KEpggr, LAEREBLTFME

144 Governance

EEaVAN
E /0

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBEHRESEARAS



DIRECTORS" REPORT

Rekaie]

o

.IIIn

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
jewellery products, including gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery
and gold jewellery and products, as well as the distribution of various
watch brands. The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for FY2024 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on p.168.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.30
per share for FY2024, amounting to approximately HK$2,996.3 million.
Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.25 per share paid in
December 2023, the total distribution of dividend by the Company
for FY2024 will be HK$0.55 per share. Such payment of dividend will
be subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 24 July
2024 and is payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Friday, 2 August 2024. The payment date of the final dividend is
expected to be on or about 20 August 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on p.268.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$57 million (31 March 2023: HK$104 million).
Details of the Company's reserves are set out in the note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.171.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business and operations for the year, an
analysis using financial key performance indicators as well as a
discussion on the likely future developments, are provided throughout
this annual report, particularly in the "Chairman's Statement”,

"Strategic Report", and "Management Discussion and Analysis".

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties is

mentioned in the "Risk Management Report".

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations is mentioned in
the "Corporate Governance Report”, "Independent Auditor's Report”,

and "Sustainability Report".

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with its

stakeholders are detailed in the "Sustainability Report".

CORPORATE CULTURE

The link between corporate culture and the Group's business
objectives; the implementation of the desired corporate culture into
the Group's daily operations; and the assessment of the progress and
success of such implementation, are elaborated in various sections of

this annual report and the "Sustainability Report".

"Chairman's Statement" and "Strategic Report" discuss the Group's
vision, purpose and the alignment of business objectives mainly

related to the values delivered to our customers and the industry.

"Corporate Governance Report" and "Risk Management Report"
discuss the tone at the top and the implementation of desired culture

in the Board and the risk management systems.

"Sustainability Report" contains a more detailed presentation on the
implementation of desired corporate culture into the Group's daily
operations and the linkage between corporate culture to

sustainability objectives.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company purchased some of its shares on the Stock Exchange and
these shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company during the
year. These share purchases were made with a view to benefit

shareholders as a whole by enhancing the value of the shares of the

e A

F NS KRN EN 5 R I AR & IR SRR B 5E 29,

5 O e I ol o 2

RABRBMIMBEEES TR, BEALICKREN
?%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂxﬁj‘o BEZERNHEAERRES KL SHAK

NEESERRRZ G,

Company.
Aggregate
Price paid per share (HK$) consideration
Number of shares Bz IHER(ET) (before expenses) (HK$)
bought back Highest Lowest @@ )
[EER R EE =11 =113 (i)
November 2023 20238118 4,890,600 11.28 11.00 54,301,756
December 2023 2023412 H 7,372,600 11.28 10.12 80,021,572
12,263,200 134,323,328

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the

laws of the Cayman Islands.

TERMINATION OF SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted on 28 July 2021, with the
purpose to attract skilled and experienced personnel, incentivise them
to remain with the Group and motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board
may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the share option
scheme to the directors of the Company (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), the directors of the Company's subsidiaries, the employees
of the Group and any consultants engaged by any member of the
Group who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group. For other details of the
share option scheme, please refer to the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

The share option scheme was terminated with effect from 7 July 2023
upon the adoption of the share award scheme. No options have been
granted, exercised or cancelled since the adoption of the share option
scheme on 28 July 2021. As at 1 April 2023 and immediately before the
termination of the share option scheme on 7 July 2023, 1,000,000,000

options were available for grant under such scheme mandate.
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SHARE SCHEMES

Key terms of the share award scheme

JBe 43 w1 ]

Je 3 % Bl st ) A 32 2K

Date of adoption

PR4N B HA 7 July 2023 2023 7H7H
Life period 10 years from 7 July 2023 B20234F7H7 st 104F
A HA

Eligible participants
a2 HEE

o= >

(i) Directors and employees of the Company
or its subsidiaries; and

(ii) Any other person who is granted share
awards as an inducement to enter into an
employment or engagement contract with
any of these companies

(i) RABYMWBATNESERREES ; &

(i) HESERENZEFQT I REIERES
#1181 A 0 AR N B ELAR A £

Purpose

B

(i) To recognise and reward contribution of
grantees to the growth and development
of the Group and to incentivise and
motivate them to further contribute
towards the growth and expansion of the
Group; and

(i) To attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group

(i) RERBWMERAREAFKEERIEROERE
PRIELE BB RN, K2 4% 55 BN AD IRURN 10 17 it — 25
MARERRRERRBERMBMEEM ; &

(i) HMAKEE-THFRERIIGEEAL

Scheme mandate

ST 8l 1% 1

Maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares are
available for issue, which represents 5.01% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company
(excluding treasury shares, if any) as at the
date of this annual report

BZO%{7500,000,000 @A, 1GARER
HEARQAS ERTEER( A EOETR
i, WA HK5.01%

Individual limit on entitlement

18 AR LR

Maximum 1.00% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if
any) within the 12 months' period up to the
date of grant of any share awards

REZTORMERBELBEHIERN12E 8 M
N, REAHTATEETEER(AEEEOEE
FRM, 10F )HH1.00%

Vesting period
&7 & 1A

Minimum 12 months' period after the date of
grant, except for prescribed circumstances

BEHOBEFEDS2@A, HEEEERRI

Purchase price

BEEE

Grantees are not required to pay any grant or
purchase price for accepting the share awards
granted

AR N T IR R 15 0 BT T 1% R 1) 22 B S (TR (T 12
oy i B

Performance targets

FERVEERES

Possible performance targets related to
financial and non-financial parameters of the
Group and/ or individual performance
indicators, as specified in the notice of grant
to each grantee

AR AFR @RISR, BN ER B A
R AP IE IR K / = 1B A S I8 IR AE B 0 0T AE
|y eR

Clawback mechanism

(o) 40 ¢ 7

To be triggered in case of any misconduct
committed by the grantee or there is any
material misstatement(s) in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company

FEARBAFBEDRETRIRQSEGE W
AT EREGRIROVE 5T 8%

Details of the share award scheme are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 15 June 2023.
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Granting of share awards

B 0y 5% Jih

Number of share awards during the financial year

U ESL S B A A 3 22 R 8 B
Unvested at
Unvested at Lapsed/ 31 March
Note 1 April 2023 Granted Vested cancelled 2024
iR2023 % iR2024 £
4A18 3A31H
Name of grantees REAEE Bt &£ ik 63 & (=38 BERE 2XW/ 3 EN )
Directors - 3
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERAE L ) - 335,600 - - 335,600
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy HEELE ) - 244,800 - - 244,800
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia WBEEL L (1) - 208,400 - - 208,400
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent EEESE (1) - 391,200 - - 391,200
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B3 75 fall 8 1 (1) - 109,800 - - 109,800
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRERIZ L (1) - 95,200 - - 95,200
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton R R BE S 4E (@) - 227,200 - - 227,200
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Fman R E (1) - 173,600 - - 173,600
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BirAETE (1) - 165,800 - - 165,800
- 1,951,600 - - 1,951,600
Employees =]
Senior management members SREEAE (1) - 166,600 - - 166,600
Total st - 2,118,200 - - 2,118,200
% of weighted average number LEZTSER (2) 0.02%
of ordinary shares in issue (RBLIEE 17
(excluding treasury shares, B, WE )k
if any) EEHAIE Nt
Available for future grant under 1R YR &1 2| 1% fEPR 28 (3) 497,881,800
the scheme mandate limit o HEET

Date of grant: 10 August 2023, at nil consideration

Date of vesting: 1 July 2026, subject to fulfilment of performance targets and other requirements
Fair value of share awards as at the date of grant: HK$12.680 each

Closing price immediately before the date of grant: HK$12.800 per share

Fair value of share awards is determined based on the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant without taking into consideration the vesting conditions of the share awards. The
Group has adopted the accounting standard in accordance with IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment,
details of which are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements

Performance targets are related to financial, non-financial parameters of the Group and/ or individual
performance indicators.

This percentage represents the number of shares that may be issued under the share awards granted
during the reporting period, divided by 9,996,454,344 (being the weighted average number of shares in
issue (excluding treasury shares, if any) for this reporting period).

The number of options and awards available for grant under the scheme mandate of all share schemes
of the Company was 1,000,000,000 (being the number of options available for grant under the share
option scheme prior to its termination) as at 1 April 2023 and 497,881,800 (being the number of awards
available for grant under the share award scheme) as at 31 March 2024.
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DIRECTORS  INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Long position in shares and underlying shares

N T8 IR Y RE A
I TBE A7y B AH o] J 403 1) B A

The Company's register recorded Shares held Underlying shares
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO B 5 B2 17 18 A A 152 % of
IRIRE 5 R A S 1R 5 58 352 IR A E Personal Spouse Corporate Unvested issued
7 2 ] B 5E i Fi § 5T 8 interests interests interests share share
BA (AR EEER awards Total capital
As at 31 March 2024 HEHT
it20245%3H31H 7 53 )& Bz 17 22 @ a5t BRAEstk
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry RAEL 420,000 335,600 755,600 0.01%
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEELE 244,800 244,800 0.00%
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia WYL 208,400 208,400 0.00%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent |RELE 12,000 391,200 403,200 0.00%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B0l 1+ 20,000 109,800 129,800 0.00%
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRI S 95,200 95,200 0.00%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BBIRERSE A 4,800 227,200 232,000 0.00%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Nt e 23,600 173,600 197,200 0.00%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRASLE 12,000 165,800 177,800 0.00%
1. These shares are beneficially-owned by a company wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian 1. ZERNBDESHIE I SEREN RO EFalES
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN F= B RO W I 1 RE 55
SECURITIES
Long position in shares By B4 B
The Company's register recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO Number of shares held
1R U5 58 95 B2 HA &5 1% 151 58 336 1 #3 & /I 2 5] 50 Mt T 8k 5 8% Fit 5 i 12 82
Beneficial Corporate % of issued
As at 31 March 2024 interests interests Total share capital
220245 3H31H HialgEa EEELR a5t HERTRAEILE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 7,239,320,185" 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 7,239,320,185" 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 7,239,320,185 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart &} # {8 402,000 506,860,572 2 507,262,572 5.08%
Cheng Yu Wai 8345 1% 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%
Yueford Corporation 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%

As at 31 March 2024, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively
and accordingly each of them is deemed to have an interest in 7,239,320,185 shares of the Company
held by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

As at 31 March 2024, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart held more than one-third of the total shares in each
of Yueford Corporation and Manor Investment Holdings Ltd and accordingly he is deemed to have an
interest in the 506,541,354 shares of the Company held by Yueford Corporation and the 319,218 shares
of the Company held by Manor Investment Holdings Ltd

Save as disclosed in the two tables above, the Company is not aware

of any person who had an interest or short position in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations as at 31 March 2024 which should be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Listing Rules or as otherwise notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina

Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric (appointed with effect from
1 December 2023)

In accordance with Articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, Mr. Cheng Ping-Hej,
Hamilton, Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert and
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric will retire at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
any of the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent
companies was a party and in which a director of the Company or the
director's connected party had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following ongoing transactions carried out by the Group with

connected persons are subject to annual reporting requirement under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These transactions are governed by

respective master or framework agreements which have an initial

term of not more than 3 years and, subject to compliance with the

Listing Rules, will be renewed automatically for another 3 years upon

expiry unless terminated earlier in accordance with the relevant

master or framework agreements.
Lease of premises

Name of counterparties

RAHTBE

CTFE
RXEEE

R 45 ) 52 5

TGS [ B B A\ LT

BHUABHNFERREE. 2FXAXEKRE

EAMTEE, Mk H’]%ﬂﬁ“fﬁﬁﬁfiﬂ F, RIREAH
RO ERBSERRATZ LSS, EET EMEAFEIRT
BRmEEEEE=F,

i

NwWD NWDS

iR TR HHAREE

FILAT @R Z R8T EmE R

Gl iEZR

Main purposes of the leases

Standalone retail shops,

residential and office uses

Offices and standalone

retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters

operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
MEEEHE REBHEIITES. REBEWAZER RPEANMEERE
EERMAEAE BUITEE B E% E 1B
Master/ framework agreement date 28/11/2011 28/4/2020 22/3/2012
G/ ER B
Next renewal date 31/3/2026 30/6/2026 30/6/2026
TIREE B
FY2024 (HK$ million)
2024 EFERE(BEBIT)
Annual cap approved 188 217 85
EHEFE R
Actual amount incurred 107 19 36
BERTLEH
Annual cap approved (HK$ million)
EitEFE FIR(B&EBT)
FY2025 189 217 98
2025 T
FY2026 189 217 108
2026 BT &
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Sale and purchase of goods and services

Name of counterparties

ZHEBE

S P B i R AR B

NCE

NWD
it R IR

Major types of goods and services

EmRRBENESER

Polishing, processing and handling of
gemstones for the Group, and
provision of related technology,
related assets and other
ancillary services, products
and devices

H/INEEEAM . MIRERE,
e fUBR . 1B EED
HhBEERK. ZERRIA

Collaboration on and marketing of
customer loyalty programmes,
including distribution of loyalty
points to and redemption of
loyalty points from customers of
the Group in respect of such
customer loyalty programmes

EFEEREFEBHGIFREH,
BREEAMGERE P,
MARKEEFE MRS 7]

GERERD

Master/ framework agreement date 29/1/2016 8/6/2021
e/ ERR B
Last renewal date 31/3/2024" 31/3/2024"
FIREEHH
FY2024 (HK$ million)
2024 M E(BEETT)
Annual cap approved 155 450
EHtEFE R
Actual amount incurred 39 35
BRTLETH
Note: B &E
1. These agreements have been renewed on 31 March 2024 for another three years. As all the applicable 1. EEMBEER2024F38 N OEH=F, BREUERBEREOHRN, BEETE

percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) of the annual caps in respect of the
transactions under these agreements for the renewed term are expected to be less than 0.1% on an

annual basis, such renewed agreements will be fully exempt from shareholders' approval, annual review BEXR,

and all disclosure requirements upon their renewal.
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Relationships between counterparties BLAZ By ¥ )5 1Y B AR

The Company's substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, has shareholding RATFEBRRRCTF Capital R EXIEHIRLN G FFER
interests in the counterparties to the Company's continuing EZ AR AB P EE RN R
connected transactions disclosed above.

72.48% 81.03%

The Company CTF Holding 2

"2 8] B K18 15 B2

40.00% | 20.00% 100.00%
NCE ¢ CTFE?
BXEER
45.24%
NWD 4
R EE R
74.99%
NWDS*®
MtFEES
Notes: Bt &t -
1. Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 1. Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
2. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited 2. BAXB(ER)BRAS
3. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited 3. BX\ELEARAE
4.  New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17) 4. HMERFRERLSRHITIE:17)
5. New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825) 5. MttREEPEERLS( MM 825)
6. New Cutting Edge Limited, an associate of CTF Capital under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules 6. New Cutting Edge Limited, 1R M RAISE 14A 1415 % CTF Capital (BB A
7. The approximate percentages of shareholding, directly or indirectly held, are shown for reference only 7. BASRBSL(ERAMBEE)EHRSE, UR\RBENNRE, tTEBEHERS

to illustrate the relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the chart above R E AR O HAB T AT AR LG LB A R, ARV R BT A
is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at the date of
this annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.

154 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
FEIYN

&8 AXBHESEERAS



Internal control on continuing connected transactions
The Group maintains a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for
the negotiation with counterparties regarding the continuing

connected transaction arrangements of the Group.

(a) For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time of
entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be followed.
The Group will obtain comparison from relevant market
information from the market or independent valuers and with

rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by the Group.

(b) For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as the
case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group offers
or is willing to offer to independent customers around the time of

transaction will apply.

(c) For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to compare
with the prices and terms offered in the market. If there is no
sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will make
reference to the reasonable costs for developing or providing
such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable profit margin

that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either

equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the review of the Strategy and
Transformation Committee to ensure that those transactions are
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of our shareholders as a whole, pursuant to Rule 14A55 of
the Listing Rules. Our internal audit team will further select samples
from those transactions and compare them with similar types of
transactions entered into by the Group with independent third parties

during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review procedures
in order to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information" and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules" issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Strategy and Transformation Committee, the internal audit team and
the auditor of the Company were reported to the independent non-
executive directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by
the Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are

applicable.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 38 to the financial statements include
transactions that constitute connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for which the disclosure requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 82.0% of
the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 71.2% of the Group's total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the directors'
knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder who to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2024 held any interest in any

of the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company's Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/ she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/ her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in

respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors' liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for

the directors.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the share award
scheme and the share option scheme (which has been terminated
with effect from 7 July 2023) adopted by the Company, neither the
Company nor any of its holding companies or its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate as at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting period.
None of the Directors and their nominees (if any) held shares or
debentures under such arrangement other than as disclosed in this

annual report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the share award
scheme and the share option scheme (which has been terminated
with effect from 7 July 2023) adopted by the Company, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or subsisted as at

the end of the reporting period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$34.5 million (FY2023: HK$47.7 million).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this

annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 13 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEETR S

i
pwc iR R RE

To the Members of

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited HAXEKESERIRQGINE
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RHASESHMATIHERZ )

OPINION pEd

What we have audited A C I N EE

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery BAXEHRESEARAS(ATEME &8 |)REHE
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), NE( LATHTE S8 )IEHARFE168E267BHES
which are set out on pages 168 to 267, comprise: WksHRE, 815

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024; - R2024FE3A3THHGLESIERIRE ;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other - BHEZHLEFENGSEGRAEMEEIRERE ;
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then - HEZHLEFENGEGERDZEME ;
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; - BHEZHUEFENGEHREREER &
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising - RERBHERNEE, ABEBEXEFBERERREMR

material accounting policy information and other explanatory EBEER.
information.
Our opinion A Y =

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and HMBR, ZFECUBRIERIF(BERVBFERSEGS
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 HRYEBEmMPERRMET HHRER2024F3H31H
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its NG BEREREREZA EFENGSVBERER
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with mERERE, TEBEREE(QSRG KK ERTE S
IFRS Accounting Standards and have been properly prepared in o

compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ("IESBA Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to existence and

valuation of inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuep)

[67 5t 7 T 2R TR can)

Key Audit Matter
FRESSER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HMAESHNAHARESFRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZEFERRIGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$64,647.0
million as at 31 March 2024 which mainly comprised of gem-set,
platinum and k-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost
includes cost of gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to
the risk of changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable
value of inventories was based on significant estimates and
judgements made by management in respect of, amongst others,
the economic conditions, marketability of products and the forecast
market price of gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the
jewellery products.

B2 RiRE IR R EE 23,

2024%F3H31H, E&£ENNFERIERG4647.08EE T,
THOFEERR., HERKEEM. ESEMRERRER,
FENGEAMNNETSREFEMNS P 2REE, FEMAPRK
BnkRkEE. NEREGZAAR, SHEEEENERYE., &
BEAR(HPaE )EFRL. ERNSEINEERAREIE
REERNES. HEREANBEAMGESIEYEXGE R
i, AT FE ] &5 FE,

We understood and evaluated management's key controls
over inventory existence and valuation.

We obtained an understanding of the management's internal
control and assessment process of impairment of inventories
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud.

We validated management's controls over existence by
attending cycle physical counts at selected points-of-sale
("POS") throughout the year to observe the count
procedures at POS. We also inspected a selection of daily
physical count reports and the reconciliation to daily ending
inventories record in the inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities and
logistics and distribution centres.

M THRRTFGEREEHFEC FEERGENFERZE T,

HMTHEEENFERNENABRERTGERE, &
i858 s 5 A 1 E 14 B0 A2 LA R B & A & k& (K 3= 617K
T, BIunE . EE M. SHANEEHEE R Eo 5K
FIEUEE, SFHEXERNES AR,

HMZEEEEHFRAERENAZARERNERER
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162 Financials
B %

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBEHRESEARAS



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuep)

[oH] 5t 7 T 2R TR can)

Key Audit Matter
FRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEPRENAHARESFHETER

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFEMRIGE(E)

We selected samples of gem-set jewellery products, comprising
items of different nature, for the gemmological appraisal carried
out by the independent professional gemmologist engaged by
management to verify their authenticity and to assess their
condition and valuation. We evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist, understood their scope of work and observed
their examination process. We have assessed whether the
selected gem-set jewellery products were recorded at the lower
of cost and net realisable value by comparing the results of
gemmological appraisal reports and their costs.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories assessed
by management with reference to, amongst others, the market
price movement of the materials and the subsequent selling
prices of similar products, on a sample basis.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment of inventories in the context of IFRS Accounting
Standards disclosure requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable by the
available evidence.

M EEEER 7 BRE B 6 AR to( PTRIR B WM E A B 8RR ),
HERESENEBEUSEOERETRETNG, UZEH
EEMRIGHERERGEE, RMNEHBEIEGERN
THE. BENREEMEMFHTG. W THRETFEENE
REFGERE, RMHEBTAEERNNEIKRETE
MEMEREDRE N RNETEER, ALK EER

G AR T S IR FEME PHRBEE AR
HMS2R(EDEF )METEEREHRERERKE
BEE, MASTEERENGHNFEITEEFE,

HMRERM RS G ENNRER EFHREEE
HEARNKERE RN,

RIEHPHETRRERF, AMBREEANTRBRZET
B rHEMERIGE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (conminueD)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (conTinuED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor's report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

iroiEm R A MEEm

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3H31HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Bt & BEEx BEET

Revenue - 4 108,713.0 94,684 .4
Cost of goods sold #H & Ay 7 (86,428.0) (73,512.9)
Gross profit EF 22,285.0 211715
Other income E A A 5 689.6 733.3
Selling and distribution costs I8 K2 9 88 AY 7K (9,513.2) (9,974.3)
General and administrative expenses — R RITE RS (3,787.0) (3,721.4)
Other gains and losses H A &5 K &1 6 (330.4) (317.8)
Other expenses HLAth i 52 7 (74.3) (87.5)
Share of (losses)/ profits of associates AMEBEA T Z(EE )/ & (19.9) 03
Interest income Fl B WA 8 183.1 2278
Finance costs Rl & Y 7K 8 (704.6) (585.4)
Profit before taxation B& 2 A ig 9 8,728.3 7,446.5
Taxation pseai=] 1 (2,121.1) (1,957.0)
Profit for the year FE iRl 6,607.2 5,489.5
Other comprehensive income/ (expense) Hihgmils/ (%)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: AEEHABEEEZHIES

— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme - EMstEESREA st E 8.8 515
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to BEZOTRE B A A A E

profit or loss: EmfIIEE :

— exchange differences arising on translation - BREEIERTEL 2 (597.8) (1,726.7)

of foreign operations [ 57 = 81

Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHMSEM: (589.0) (1,675.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year FESENEEE 6,018.2 3,814.3
Profit for the year attributable to: INTF&RABIEEZER :

Shareholders of the Company PN 6,499.3 5,384.4

Non-controlling interests IR 107.9 105.1

6,607.2 5,489.5

Total comprehensive income for the year INTERAEGEEFELE

attributable to: RE

Shareholders of the Company PINZNST ;23] 5,944.0 3,778.1

Non-controlling interests E 1 AR #E 7 74.2 36.2

6,018.2 3,814.3

Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted SRE - ERxREgEE 12 HK65.0 cents j&{ll  HK53.8 cents i1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
in e BRI R

At 31 March 2024 11R2024%3H31H

2024 2023
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Bt cE BREx BEET
Non-current assets EREMEE
Property, plant and equipment . BB L% E 14 4,526.8 5,144 .4
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 1,781.9 1,696.4
Investment properties KEYH 16 292.3 3231
Other intangible assets HAhME & = 17 25.0 66.3
Jewellery collectibles TRE 2k 18 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits TEffTRIEREMIEE 19 370.4 3463
Financial assets at fair value through KA RETTAEBTER 62.9 64.6
profit or loss S E
Investments in associates REBENTZKE 20 49.8 695
Amounts due from associates JE WS B S N TR I8 20 40.0 41.6
Loan receivables A EEEN 21 6.7 85
Deferred tax assets IEIE R IE & 22 960.7 792.9
9,636.6 10,073.7
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 23 64,647.0 59,2904
Trade and other receivables B 5 K ELAD E Rk 18 19 6,825.0 6,192.9
Amounts due from associates N AN BN 20 1.7 14
Amounts due from non-controlling TEWI BT BN SIAEIERE AR 5R 24 41 =
shareholders of subsidiaries ENIC]
Loan receivables i AVEEEN 21 1.9 20
Taxation recoverable oJ I B F 18 7.3 363
Short-term bank deposits HARITE R 25 - 38.8
Cash and cash equivalents HERIEEEBM 25 7,695.4 11,695.0
79,182.4 77,266.8
Current liabilities nREARE
Trade and other payables B 5 % EAih fE T 218 26 30,529.6 30,088.9
Amounts due to associates fEfTER S 2\ Bl 18 20 21 -
Amounts due to non-controlling Ji& 17 Bt 8 2 Bl JE IR AR A& 5R 24 152.1 524
shareholders of subsidiaries Bz
Taxation payable & {1 %3 18 905.0 825.1
Bank borrowings HR1TE MR 27 793.6 4,366.8
Gold loans A 28 24,487.8 15,085.6
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15 650.2 602.7
57,520.4 51,021.5
Net current assets REIEEIFEE 21,662.0 26,2453
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLTIERE 31,298.6 36,319.0
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2024 2023

Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Bt & BRERX BRET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEMR 27 3,342.3 1,488.1
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 617.0 563.0
Retirement benefit obligations 1B PIAE R 7R 42 36 173.3 185.2
Deferred tax liabilities EER I A & 22 348.7 645.2
Other liabilities HihaE& 71.7 777
4,553.0 2,959.2
Net assets EEFE 26,745.6 33,359.8
Share capital A& 7K 29 9,987.7 10,000.0
Reserves 5 15,727.3 22,3974
Equity attributable to shareholders of KABIERELERS 25,715.0 32,3974

the Company

Non-controlling interests EERER 1,030.6 9624
26,745.6 33,359.8

The consolidated financial statements on p.168 to 267 were approved EFEFETMR2024F6R 13 HEMIERTIEZEHRFE168F
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 June 2024 207 BZ G HBHME, WHINTFTARES .
and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
ERAEEL HAERLE EPimBREE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BF BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

\ 7

N

m B 7R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE 20243831 HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KRR RAEL
Statutory  Share-based Non-
Share Share Special surplus payments  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
2 RitEE  HAUBE EERREHE ROGHEER 2 REER  REEW &t FRRER @3t
HK$ million ~ HK$million ~ HK$milion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmillon ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion  HKS million
BEET BEEnr GEEx 2 GEBnr  GEEn  GEEn  GEEn  EEEn  EEER EEER
Notes (note a) (note b)
Wit (Mita)  (Mztb)
At April 2022 R2022%4818 10,0000 8987 24995 18525 - 9141 174545 336193 9354 345547
Profit for the year EERR = = - - - - 53844 53844 1051 54895
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEMLE(HS )/ K& = = = = = (16578) 515 (1606.3) (689) (16752
income for the year
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FELE(HY ) NEES = = = = = (16578) 54359 37781 362 38143
income for the year
Capital contribution from non-controlling MBS ERRRLE - - - - - - - - 686 68
shareholders of subsidiaries
Deregistration of subsidiaries SHNELNE = = = = (13) 13 - 16 16
Transfers g - - 3306 - - (3309)
Dividends i35) 13 - (8987) - - - - (41013)  (50000) (794)  (50794)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3F 318 10,000.0 - 24995 21831 - (745.0) 184598 323974 9624 333598
Profit for the year EERH - - - - - - 84993 6499.3 1079 6,607.2
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEMEE(EY )/ Wik - - - - - (564.1) 8.8 (555.3) (337) (589.0)
income for the year
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FELH(ES ) NEES - - - - - (564.1) 65081 59440 742 6,018.2
income for the year
Employees' share-based payments fE &R RE - - - - 6.0 - - 6.0 - 6.0
Cancellation of buy-back shares SHEOERR (123) - - - - - (1226 (1349) - (1349)
Capital contribution from non-controlling MBS FERRRLE - - - - - - - - 254 254
shareholders of subsidiaries
Deregistration of subsidiaries SHNELS - - - - - - - - 86 86
Transfers i - - - 3306 - - (330.6) - - -
Dividends ®E 13 - - - - - - (124975)  (12.497.5) (40.0)  (12,537.5)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F38 318 9,981.7 - 24995 25137 6.0 (1309.) 120172 257150 10306 26,7456
Notes: B 5E
(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (ii) (a) *FRIfGEMRIE (i) 0PI IR 38 585 2 Rt BB (i) 72 16 AR IR FE B 42 I T 5 B /& 2 S B AR 1Y

the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control,

and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control
pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011

(b

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China,

the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund.
Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory

financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used
to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of

capitalisation issue.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

m7_|_ O IEE_I_Z })Z”:..E%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3H31HILFE

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Operating activities BEFEH
Profit before taxation B A2 i it A 8,728.3 7/446.5
Adjustments for: MTISIEFHER
Interest income 2 WA (256.4) (301.2)
Interest expenses BB s 704.6 5854
Loss allowance recognised/ (written back) on B EHMEWRIEEIERE 2 8.4 (1.9)
trade and other receivables T/ (#mE )
Recognition of allowance on inventories FEREESR 139.4 144
Write off of inventories T‘j’f]ﬁﬂfﬁ - 4.6
Fair value change of gold loans BEEEERL A EE D 3,757.4 1,546.0
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment L ESN JFEF' R EITE 1,350.6 1,271.7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHESEIRE 867.7 886.1
Depreciation of investment properties KEMETE 25.7 19.8
Amortisation of other intangible assets HLfh 4 J & 7 1 8 41.3 427
Share of losses/ (profits) of an associate AME—FKBEN NS ZzEE/ (EN) 19.9 (0.3)
Reversal of impairment of property, plant and M. BB KR EIRE [T - (0.3)
equipment
Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets FRAREERERD - (15.0)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEMZHE. BERREIEE 51.7 435
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets 7 & 150 FA M & EE B I 2 (14.1) (14.9)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary 5EiH — Bt E 2 Bl p R 27 2.7
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE IR A3 R AR B B 8.0 8.9
Employee's share-based payments 1& B IR 17 ¥R Bl 6.0 -
Net exchange difference [EXRZEZFE 49.9 80.5
Operating cash flows before movements in BEERESHEIZ 15,4911 11,619.2
working capital FERTRSE
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories (Note) TFERD /(18 )EE) 86.7 (5,346.5)
Increase in deposits and trade and other receivables KNENE S5 };’zﬁﬂﬂruﬂl X I8 180 (860.4) (704.7)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5K EAth fE T s IE 0 1,385.6 6,705.0
Increase in amounts due to associates JE 11 Bt & X B R IR B 0 2.1 -
Increase in amounts due from non-controlling JiE WPt J&8 2 & JE 15 A AR FR FR 18 (4.1) -
shareholders of subsidiaries B0
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling i 11 Bf & 22 B AR 45 A AR SRR IR 1M11.7 -
shareholders of subsidiaries B0
Defined benefits paid B 17 & g1 IR 48 (11.1) (11.3)
Cash generated from operations REMRRE 16,201.6 12,2617
Interest received EF & 72.8 73.0
Income tax paid: ETF{ER
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - 58N1E (129.6) (381.3)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax - hE NI EREREZ (2,273.0) (1,845.7)
in Mainland China RN
— Macau complementary tax - WP AR (20.1) (31.6)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions - HihSE iR 2 18 (16.1) (10.2)
Net cash generated from operating activities SETFHMEREFHR 13,835.6 10,065.9
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2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BEET
Investing activities REEE
Interest received B IF & 183.8 228.0
Withdrawal/ (placement) of short-term bank deposits 2/ (78 ) HRTER 38.8 (38.8)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEYE. MBEEEE (893.0) (1,879.3)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEYE. BB RRERMRIE (70.2) (102.3)
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE. BT ERIE 12.5 40.9
plant and equipment
Receipts of loan receivables 2 A fE I & =R 1.7 16
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value R 2 Bt AR RS ZE - (36.1)
through profit or loss
Capital contribution to an associate B—ZRPEQTEE (5.0 -
Repayment from/ (advance to) associates BEQSNER/ (MBE A B RR) 10.9 (2.3)
Dividend received from an associate B —FREENTIHKRE 3.9 6.0
Net cash used in investing activities REEHNMAREFSHE (716.6) (1,782.3)
Financing activities il & iE &
Interest paid EfAR (665.6) (600.5)
Bank borrowings raised EEERITER 7,900.7 7,890.3
Repayment of bank borrowings EIRIRITER (9,650.0) (11,106.0)
Repayment of gold loans EBEEEEE (915.7) (957.1)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities ZfHEBBERESB D (842.2) (913.9)
Capital contribution from non-controlling NG [RS8 e Bk} 25.4 68.6
shareholders of subsidiaries
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders EETEA SRR (10.3) (6.7)
of subsidiaries B 24 3R
Dividends paid EfMERER (12,537.5) (5,079.4)
Cancellation of buy-back shares = &4 o] 8 AR 1Y (134.9) =
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEHFARESREHE (16,830.1) (10,704.7)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEMRLIFHE (3,711.1) (2,421.1)
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERESEEM 11,695.0 14,9422
at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHFAE (288.5) (826.1)
Cash and cash equivalents FRMUNRERESEEM 7,695.4 11,695.0
at the end of the year
Note:  As at 31 March 2024, inventories as per the consolidated statement of financial position increased izt : R2024%3A31H, HREMBRIRKRNFER2023F3H318BM5,356.68
HK$5,356.6 million from 31 March 2023. The net cash inflow from the decrease in inventories BB, StAFNRNES/ BENSSELFH. FHRELREARMAELN

amounting to HK$86.7 million was arrived at after accounting for the non-cash movements in

inventories arising from net gold loans raised/ repaid, inventory impairment and currency

realignment during the year.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the "Company", and its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as the "Group") was
incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange") since 15 December 2011. Its immediate holding
company and its ultimate holding company are Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 39. The address of registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of principal place of business is 33/F, New
World Tower, 16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities (the "Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain

assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair values.

Financials

R
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements

in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires management to

exercise their judgement in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher

degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are especially significant to

the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

note 3.

(a)

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments which are first effective for their

annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2023.

IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2
(Amendments)

IAS 8 (Amendments)

Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities

IAS 12 (Amendments)

arising from a Single
Transaction

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The application of the above new and amended
IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/ or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

2. iﬁAnfﬂﬁ{mzu\wEg(%)

2.1

G BRI K B ] 2 HE )
MEMSEHRTBERS s ERNGS I
REBERAETHESHGE, AETIEE
EEBAERAKREBNZSFERBREDEL
HlE. AT MBERETD W R e E N FE,
EMEERSNEEIES R REENS
BER P aE 3R EE o

(a) 7INER B BR4A B 57 5T K2 45 12 5T #E Al

REBEEEALTR 2023548185
16 B0 F = 3R 5 HA B B R AR S HE Al K 12

TR,
ERGEEAEIRE  BHBOREE
BRI R S G5 R
ERASE25(BETR)
H&%Zﬁﬁﬁlﬁa 8 9% gt a st HER
(B3I )
B S St HERIE 128 HE—-XZEEM
(B3I ) BEKARE
BHRNIEERIE
ERTERSGEN RBEY
BT %

1S 7N 5F 2 & A _E D155 5T 2 AR 2 5T B R AT
BRSGTEAERAFERBEFE
INERE 2 TR s i R Ak K2 / s AR
ZE R MRRRE I 2 R B I
BHEXLE,

175

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE R M EE



2.

176

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

(a)

Financials

R

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group upon initial application.

Upon the application of the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences
arising from right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately, which have been reflected in the
reconciliation disclosed in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. However, they
did not have any material impact on the overall
deferred tax balances presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the
related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under IAS 12.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2024
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New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 March 2024 reporting period and
have not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

New standards, amendments and

improvements to existing standards

IAS 1 (Amendments) @ Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current

IAS 1 (Amendments)®  Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

IAS 7 and IFRS 7

(Amendments) @

Supplier Finance

IAS 21 (Amendments) @ Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of

(Amendments) () Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
(Amendments) © Leaseback

(i) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
(i) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

(iii) The original effective date of 1 January 2016 has been postponed until
future announcement by the IASB

2.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Financials

R

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group:
has power over the entity;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity; and

has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an entity, it has power over the
entity when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the entity unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an
entity are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group's holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders' meetings.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

Annual Report 2024
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Subsidiaries (Continued)
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of

financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (c) below),

after initially being recognised at cost.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

Financials

R

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount

of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in note 2.6.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d)

Annual Report 2024
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Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the

Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of

equity as specified/ permitted by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.3

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a

subsidiary comprises the:
fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business
equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the

acquired entity's net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Financials

R
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.3

24

Business Combination (Continued)

The excess of the:
consideration transferred;

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in

profit or loss as a gain on acquisition of subsidiaries.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or
a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EBE )
U TFIES

PREEGEUIE ;

REREEEREMIFEREDRSER ; &

3107 5 i S A2 USU I 8 8 ) R 4 S ISLE B A
NRE

SREWETHEANEEFENL RERER
REE IR, it £l 5 &R AS BT ISR 3= 05 ol
WMAlEEFENARE, BRERGES—
TR ST S B Jag 2 B WS ot B 938 S 1R i B 0 o

i EE BN EHEEEIELE, BRIE
HTEHEBRERFR TR BMMNEE, TR
IRz ERIEEEERNZE, BREE
VR EERBES R RAANESEEE
HEHRA R, syA MBI REDNETME &,
“*"EZ%‘:Enﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]‘:é&ﬂff?i?ﬁﬁzﬁ NV

1 S 75 3R
ﬁABﬁJ’_" Y 3] B % & 132 AY 7N 18 0 bR ORL1E 21 BR o
MBS EREOREMR, MfEQIH%
T\ABEALSHE IR BUER B EE AR,

R EBEEMEAIREMREZHBHEE
W BB R EE B RE NN R ERE
Tﬁﬁ_l_ REHRFEE(DEHE )RESA

FIMANZREE, AIARKEZFRERR
Hx,_\Hﬂ’fﬁ"BﬁJ% VBl Z R EEATRIE R

183
IRE R M EE



2.

184

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.5 Foreign currencies translation

(a)

Financials

R

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates ("the functional
currency"). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is
the Company's functional and presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. Foreign
exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss on a net basis within other gains and losses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rates at the date when fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.5 Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

(c)

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of the reporting period;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of
the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or

loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and

translated at the closing rate.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conminuep)

2.5

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the

company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and is not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in an associate that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

the end of each reporting period.

Financials
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conrinuep)

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

2.8

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also
entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or

the termination of a contract.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply all attached conditions and the grants will be

received.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended

to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as other liabilities and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Note 5 provides further information on how the

Group accounts for government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

For other accounting policies are included in accompanying

notes.

Annual Report 2024

2024 F5R

2.

R E RS B (e

2.7 4R# &M T H

2.8

ERSEBENBEEERHNTENTRED
HRAEH, BEREREFRIFEEVEE
BREENGEERE, AHEMEETHES
EEEME, WEMBRZERSEHFR,
NEBIMNET AT SRERAENTES
FER(GINKENZIESH ) FTIXHEBERE
B TH,

BT Aol

BN SR [ 5 ER (R 3R 588 T ST 46 5 660 B 2
e, WEKGWRZERL, ABULR
T BB o

Bl py 7K A B B BUAT 4 A 1S P 35 HA RSO 5E B AR
Bm AR, EZREMENNREES,

BREBEYSR. BB K 8B R I&
FROEEPHNHEMEE, WKHEREER
BHEEERSEAFHASTAED, &S
HAEREEARBUTH S SHA B,

FREEEMZ Y EENMENIFALE TR
% [ BN 055 B 5 I B 17 B B 42 A8 R R IS B E U
BURT A A, 7S OT USCHR A ) 72 18 2 B 5o

HLth & 5+ BUR H AL BiE BT T &t o

187

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IRE R M EE



188

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement

in applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity
and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that carry a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are listed below with references in the

notes to the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates Notes

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and 14 and 15
right-of-use assets

(b)  Valuation of inventories 23

Financials
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Accounting Policy
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance and
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions.
Executive Committee, which has been identified as being the
chief operating decision maker, consists of executive directors

of the Company.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of

trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the "CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The Group's
reportable and operating segments for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023 included two segments, namely (i)
business in the Mainland China and (ii) business in Hong Kong

& Macau of China and other markets.

Annual Report 2024
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a)  Analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable segment

For the year ended 31 March

4. BEFE NG R0

(a) #5752 3% 73 AR ) 23 79 AR 45 [ 4% S

V&S Vi
BHEIANEALEE

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
o A it hEEE. PEIRMA RS @st
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET HEET BEBT BEBT HEET
Revenue e
External sales INRIHE
— Retail -5 38,580.4 37,2285 16,239.0 11,565.5 54,819.4 48,794.0
— Wholesale (note i) — #EFCHMIEE) 51,117.6 44,3945 2,776.0 14959 53,893.6 45,8904
Segment/ Group revenue NE/ KEERES 89,698.0 81,623.0 19,015.0 13,0614 108,713.0 94,6844
Inter-segment sales (note ii) NEPMEIHE( BiEEii) - = 906.1 3,274.0 906.1 3,274.0
89,698.0 81,623.0 19,9211 16,3354 109,619.1 97,9584
Adjusted gross profit SHRBER 20,137.5 19,039.6 4,626.1 3,683.6 24,763.6 22,723.2
(before elimination) ( HaH | )
Inter-segment eliminations 73 5 [ fi 2 - = 10.4 (321.8) 10.4 (321.8)
Adjusted gross profit EREEERN 20,137.5 19,039.6 4,636.5 3,361.8 24,774.0 22,4014
Other income HARBLA 553.8 559.2 135.8 1741 689.6 7333
Selling and distribution costs B € K2 4 8H Y 7K E] (10,182.0) (10,811.8) (3,118.2) (2,8839)  (13,300.2) (13,695.7)
and general and —MRRATH X
administrative expenses
Core operating profit FEEE RN 10,509.3 8,787.0 1,654.1 652.0 12,163.4 9,439.0
(segment result) (NEBRE)
Unrealised loss on gold BEBERAREEER (2,489.0) (1,229.9)
(note iii) ( piEEEiii)
Others (note iv) EAth( ft&Fiv ) (424.6) (405.0)
Interest income R B WA 183.1 2278
Finance costs EIR=45/IN (704.6) (585.4)
Profit before taxation B %6 il i Al 8,728.3 74465
Other segment information FAFEES
included in measurement of BRI EPEE)
core operating profit sHEREM
(segment result): NEEH
Concessionaire fees =BT AY 1,874.3 1,874.4 12.2 1.2 1,886.5 1,885.6
Operating lease rentals in AEYFELES 193.0 159.3 267.4 188.9 460.4 348.2
respect of rented premises HEEE
Staff costs B TR 3,924.4 3,938.1 1,453.9 1,337.1 5,378.3 52752
Depreciation and amortisation — #78 Kz f# 84 1,600.9 1,500.1 684.4 720.2 2,285.3 2,220.3
Notes: P SE -
(i)  Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to franchisees (i) HEBERF|ISHER S . 4 T I0 8 K 52 84 78 00 & R R 12 HLAR
and retailers and provision of services to franchisees. 570 B B A o

(ii

Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(i

A fair value loss arising from gold loans of HK$3,757.4 million (2023: fair value loss
of HK$1,546.0 million) was recorded, as disclosed in Note 9 of which fair value loss
of HK$2,489.0 million (2023: fair value loss of HK$1,229.9 million) has not yet been
realised due to timing difference in the recognition of the impact of changes in gold
price between gold loans (short position) and gold inventories (long position).

(iv) Others represent other gains and losses, other expenses and share of profits of an
associate.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(CONTINUED)

(a)  Analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable segment (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group's accounting policies described

above. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross profit

generated from each segment without allocation of

unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold. Core operating profit

represents the profit generated from each segment

without allocation of unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold,

other gains and losses, other expenses, share of profits

of an associate, interest income and finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

(b)  Analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
reportable segment

As at 31 March

Segment assets

BB NI E R e

(a)
WEI LR NE D

Fe T 5L e o ¥ ) O3 B AS A B SE R

] £ $7 4> 8 (0 & 51 B B LA B ik 7 6% B 0
BHBKEE, SAEENEERARES

RGBSR )/ WEEal

BNE

BRTEEBIER

TEREBANEAERNEESRER(EIR)
/W, Hfb s R s, B2 Afih—
KE QT A NEWARBENRETS
NEFTELEREAN, A ESEFERRE
R LAFE IR B 2 RIF ST GBI EH 2R %,

=R
R3A31H

EPEE

$e ] 52 o a3 1 AR 5 B E K

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
o E A i hEEFE. PERMAREMAIE st
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
Property, plant and equipment M. MR Ke&E 3,771.5 4,316.0 755.3 8284 4526.8 51444
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 622.7 774.3 1,159.2 9221 1,781.9 1,696.4
Investment properties L7 128.2 148.0 164.1 1751 292.3 3231
Other intangible assets HALE Y & = 18.8 49.8 6.2 16.5 25.0 66.3
Jewellery collectibles BRE BRI - - 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits BitREREMEE 221.3 2241 1491 1222 370.4 346.3
Inventories 7E 45,084.2 40,158.6 19,562.8 19,131.8 64,647.0 59,2904
Trade and other receivables B 5 R Hfth fE IR IR 5,769.1 5,640.9 1,055.9 5520 6,825.0 6,192.9
Taxation recoverable of 187 [o] #3188 - - 7.3 36.3 7.3 36.3
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITEN - - - 38.8 - 38.8
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEFE 3,212.8 8,288.1 4,482.6 3,406.9 7,695.4 11,695.0
Total segment assets BaEpEE 58,828.6 59,599.8 28,862.6 26,750.2 87,691.2 86,350.0
Unallocated: RAER :
Financial assets at fair value B nEst ABTEN 62.9 64.6
through profit or loss THEE
Investments in associates REBENTZRE 91.5 1225
and amounts due from e E N
associates RIE
Amounts due from & WL Bff J& 2 B 4.1 -
non-controlling shareholders E AR A R IR
of subsidiaries
Loan receivables E=EN 8.6 10.5
Deferred tax assets I 3 K2 15 &5 7 960.7 792.9
Total assets mEE 88,819.0 87,340.5
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SERA S o1 B R

(CONTINUED)
(b)  Analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by (b) % n] & i o dh oy 0 A AR 1B E
reportable segment (Continued SRR e S
As at 31 March K3A31H
Segment liabilities NERIE
Hong Kong & Macau of China
Mainland China and other markets Total
DEEE. DEIRMR
o & A it Hihiiz st
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BE#ET BEET BEET
Taxation payables FE T K 18 (647.9) (688.5) (257.1) (136 é) (905.0) (825.1)
Bank borrowings RITER - = (4,135.9) (5,854.9) (4,135.9) (5,854.9)
Gold loans =HEEE (19,727.1) (12,737.7) (4,760.7) (2,347.9) (24,487.8) (15,085.6)
Lease liabilities HEaE (499.3) (639.3) (767.9) (526.4) (1,267.2) (1,165.7)
Total segment liabilities EamaE (49,699.1) (42,608.3) (11,626.4) (10,411.9) (61,325.5) (53,020.2)
Unallocated: AR EL
Amounts due to associates & T H%M NSIENIE| (2.1) =
Amount due to non-controlling & 7 Bff /& 22 =] E 12 (152.1) (52.4)
shareholders of subsidiaries i N
Retirement benefits iR i@ ) 7 48 (173.3) (185.2)
obligations
Deferred tax liabilities IESEf I8 & & (348.7) (645.2)
Other liabilities HihEE (71.7) (77.7)
Total liabilities wmaE (62,073.4) (53,980.7)
(c)  Analysis of the Group's assets by geographical () 4% b A7 B ) o 19 A 4 [ 28 20 A
area
The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan iU SIS PREKEIERENE E( AEHE
receivables, deposits, amounts due from associates, EWER. Efffie. BRBHE LGB,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and RARBEFARGNS/MEERIELERIRE
deferred tax assets, by geographical areas are as follows: BT
As at 31 March K3A31H
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET
Mainland China o & A i 4,946.7 5,739.6
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets hEEFE. PEIEMREMTE 3,382.4 3,224.7
8,329.1 8,964.3
192 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Disaggregation of revenue

Accounting Policy

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
goods and the provision of services in the ordinary

course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred or provided to the customer, at
the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

(a) Sales of goods — Retail
The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling
jewellery products and watches. Revenue from
the sales of goods is recognised when the
product is transferred to the customer who takes

delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from
retail customers immediately. The payment is
usually settled in cash, by credit cards, by means
of electronic payments or settled indirectly

through retail malls.

(b) Sales of goods — Customers loyalty

programme

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group's customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the products supplied and the
award credits granted. Revenue is not recognised
at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is
deferred and recognised as revenue when the
cash coupons or points are redeemed and the

Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Annual Report 2024
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MREEENRE. EHARAEF2MT
GEYEERRTERIGEE,

(b) HEEm - EFEMESTE
IRIBINER B = 5 8 6 E 51 8l 5] B & 12
MBFFRECERHEARAZSTE
XEXR7, BEWE BBz A2
BERMESR G TEEEREZH
ﬁmo=$@7mﬁﬁmﬁﬁ“%h
S - MBEEERESFVENER
T&$EIE@ﬁﬁ% S EFTT &
Euu\qu'. gE\o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 193
HRE IS ERER A EE



4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

194

(CONTINUED)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

Financials

R

(b)

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty
programme (Continued)

Accumulated experience is used to estimate the
forfeiture of award credits as breakage which is
recognised as contract liabilities. The expected
breakage amount is recognised as revenue in
proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by
the customers or when the likelihood of the

customer exercising its rights becomes remote.

Sales of goods — Wholesale to
franchisees/ retailers and Jewellery
trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
jewellery products in the wholesale market. Sales
are recognised when control of the products is
transferred to franchisees/ retailers and jewellery
trading customers. The franchisees/ retailers and
jewellery trading customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the franchisees'/ retailers' and jewellery
trading customers' acceptance of the products.
Control is transferred when the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the franchisees/ retailers and jewellery trading
customers, and either the franchisees/ retailers
and jewellery trading customers have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
franchisees/ retailers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the

franchisees/ retailers.

(c)

HEEm - TR BHES(8)

RSB R et SR G 5t BB B
BRERNAE TEEARGHE
B, MU RAEEHKBREFITHEE
A B8 U 8Y = 5 A8 K T RE 1T 15 4 Al B
132 L 151 B 570 4% B SR B o

HEEm - AMNEF/ THE
MERKEEZZ

NEBEHIERRALFENIGHEZ E I
HEnR, HEREoKEZHRHEEBERE
MR/ NHERKNE S5 E P i i#
o MBF/ NEBERKEEZEF
HEEERNRERBRAEEERE
B, BiRBRENFHMIEREN
HE/ nHERKEEZEPENE
oo A5 R 12 il # B R 10 05 8 4% 08 IK
REMRRELENRRB/ NHEER
KEZEZEF, BNEE/ n#EER
GhEBSEFRBHEGHAEMNE
. HEWRXEEH. ¥REEES
B RS P A AR A B 2R o

GRBEIMRMNER/ NHEERE
BEEE o ETINERE/ DEE
Al 52 7 15 < 0 8 R o
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(CONTINUED)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

(d) Service income from franchisees
The Group provides services to franchisees under
fixed-price contracts. Revenue from providing
services is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

Revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided because the customer receives and uses
the benefits simultaneously.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on a
payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset
is recognised. If the payments exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time and over time in the

following major product categories:

For the year ended 31 March

(d) B0 i AR %5 UL
7 6 8 152 ) 72 1A 5 A0 10 10 88 7 4Rt
AR o 32 1L AR 75 6 A TE AR 5 12 1t
Bt MR R AR

ERFRHRSHARERDREMAKN
AR 5 105 1% 7 $2 15 B AR 75 48 8RB EE ) e
w, AeEEPEFESZRERN.

& PR IE T R R 52 T B E & Fo
fis) 7 £ B $2 15 60 AR %548 1R 1 SR 8
BT A G4 E . finl T 7 i T 52
HERE, AIERGHEE,

KREEREZEEGREBRE —SHRER—
BEBAMMTENER%, TSEGREAND
T 3

#ESAMHLEE

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRERT BRET
At a point in time IRFE—BES

Retail sales FEHE 54,819.4 48,794.0
Wholesale to franchisees/ retailers EIN0ERRE / NiEEHEE 52,937.8 449345
Jewellery trading BREE 5 511.2 360.2

Over time R—EREF R A
Service income from franchisees 3R B 10 82 7 B AR RS LU 444.6 595.7
108,713.0 94,684 .4

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 195

IRE R M EE



4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
The following are the major product categories of the
Group's revenue excluding jewellery trading and service

income from franchisees:

For the year ended 31 March

4. BEFE NG R0

(d)

2% SERE A a0
UTAREESEHA AQEREZE S REKE
MBEFERRBRA N ESERLEA -

#EIAMHLEE

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery ThEER. HERKEEM 14,479.9 16,705.3
Gold jewellery and products =ML ED 88,322.1 72,094.0
Watches ik 4,955.2 4,929.2
107,757.2 93,7285

5.

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group in both years.

OTHER INCOME

MEFEN, BEEANERESGHREERE R
BE10% LA ko

EE]

5. HAtk A

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Commission income B3O8 A 148.2 1245
Government grants (note) AT 478 B (B & ) 181.2 202.4
Other income from franchisees 3R B0 8 i B E AR IA 160.5 195.0
Rental income HEBUA 36.6 37.0
Interest income from trade receivables RNV EN RSN 72.8 73.0
Interest income from loan receivables JiEe W& FRBT R 2 A 0.5 0.4
Others HAh 89.8 101.0
689.6 7333
Note:  Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government, no wage MisE: MREFTEFERMAELENI HENREES |, #E20244383181LF
subsidies (2023: HK$27.7 million) related to the Employment Support Scheme were B, WA RS DT EMA( 20234 : 2775 BB ).
recognised in the year ended 31 March 2024.
Government subsidies of HK$181.1 million (2023: HK$174.5 million) granted to HZE2024F3HINBLEFE, BHERETDE N il E 2 5160 BUT 4 86
subsidiaries in Mainland China and government subsidies of HK$0.1 million (2023: HK$0.2 1811 EHEBIT( 20234 1745 & BT )IARE THLE AR EH EL
million) granted to subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognised in the year ended SIBATHAE 0.1 B & B IT( 20234 : 0.2 B AETT )
31 March 2024.
196 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HAth t K s 48

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BE#ET
Net foreign exchange loss [ 7 18 1F 2R (288.7) (328.3)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEMZE. KB KRR EREE (51.7) (43.5)
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets 7 & 50 A HE & B I 14.1 14.9
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 551k J &5 J A8 BA 61 7E & 1B 2 - 32.8
Reversal of impairment of property, MEEL RS R 5% 1R E RS ] (Bff5E14) - 03
plant and equipment (note 14)
Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets (note 15) fF S &R E R LI ( Bf5E15) - 15.0
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary i —=TE QSN EE (2.7) (2.7)
Others HA (1.4) (6.3)
(330.4) (317.8)
7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HABA 3L
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEE BRET
Donation B 34.5 477
Amortisation of other intangible asset HAh Y & 7 i 39.8 39.8
74.3 87.5
Annual Report 2024 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 197
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8.

INTEREST INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Accounting Policy

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains and losses on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is included
in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

8.

HE MO K il A

&t BUR

A2 UA

R EE A B ARG E R E Z TR S BAS
AZFEEN A RBEWERERFERD,

157 18 88 AY 7N 51 88 B 5 R S BN B fE A B IR
MEESTE, RiBmERAEMmEA.

FrFIR & B 18 Ak 00 Rl E Z RV B A K,
MBWAGZ2IR/MERA, EQEMAIRBA
AIET AEMBIA

MEWARERNEXERAEZESRIE ZRAAES
Bi5h, HERLRGEEBEENERIEZEKRI,
MEE JEYTE%nﬁ’,éE, ERNRERAREMEE
FAREE(OMRERREE ).

& & ALK

ET&)FQHSZE%\ BRGETECEBEEN —KR
5 7E & & RN S 2 AL K2 56 R B LATE LR E A ig

FHEMFHABRNERL, CERBEEETE

ERESHEUNTEREARNHENEE,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of EREERBIEFCEREESZHAIZ B RIRE T
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying M ZREKA, BREERE R Z 57K
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for BBk
capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which HMMEENRNREEE ZHBANXZHE,
they are incurred.
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Interest income from AERBLA
— banks - tR1T 183.1 227.8
Finance costs on il & RY 7K
—gold loans - =5EB8 357.3 251.9
— bank borrowings - IRITER 296.8 2943
— lease liabilities -HE&aE 50.5 392
704.6 585.4
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

0. BrHHET 4 Al

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BRiEnER 20/ (5tA ) -
after charging/ (crediting):
Directors' remuneration (note 10) EEWES(KMEE10) 181.1 197.0
Staff's retirement benefits 8 TR 48 A 5+ & it 7% 787.2 7931
scheme contributions
Staff costs 8 T Ay 7K 4,410.0 42851
5,378.3 5,275.2
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 17 & p¥ 7N fife 52 4 B 52 82,441.0 68,9654
Concessionaire fees EE DAY 1,886.5 1,885.6
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises AMYEEEHERS 460.4 3482
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M. BB KRR HITE 1,350.6 12717
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEITS 867.7 886.1
Depreciation of investment properties REMERTE 25.7 19.8
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note) EL{ih 48 7 18 22 i H ( Bt 5F ) 41.3 427
Recognition of allowances on inventories FERHEER 139.4 14.4
(included in cost of goods sold) (ST ASHERRA )
Loss allowance recognised/ (written back) on BoaREMERRIEEERE 2 8.4 (1.9)
trade and other receivables W/ (0 )
Fair value loss arising from gold loans EEEENAAERBIR 3,757.4 1,546.0
(included in cost of goods sold) (ST ASHERRA )
Donations (included in other expenses) BR(ETARMESZA) 345 477
Auditors' remuneration for the Company's auditor 12 BB B <& T 7 2 2] 4% BLER
— audit and related services — " B 8 B AR % 8.1 7.0
— non-audit services — EZBUR S 3.3 25
Auditor's remuneration for other auditors 12 BB B <& 7 H 1% BLET
— audit and related services — "B 8 B AR % 4.2 91

Note:

Amortisation of HK$39.8 million (2023: HK$39.8 million) related to HEARTS ON FIRE was

Bt EE

included in note 7 "Other Expenses" and the remaining amount of HK$1.5 million (2023

HK$2.9 million) was included in general and administrative expenses.

10. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

10.

EAHEARTS ON FIREABION#IE39.8 H@iE( 20234 : 39.8 H&EEIT)
SHABEE 7] HfbpAsk |, MEREA1.5 B MBIT(20234 : 2.9 @B A
STA—RRITHMAY.

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

Directors' fees ok 7.0 6.7
Other emoluments to directors BEENEMBE

— salaries and other benefits - FEREMER 35.9 40.1

— performance-based bonus - BERAT 130.3 1432

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — 1B fiK 4@ Kl 51 B i 70 7.9 7.0

181.1 197.0
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10. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (conminuep)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and

the chief executives of the Company are as follows:

10 FEH . A7 BON B K b B4

KREBEOANTES R RETEASSZ (&
BT

2024 2023
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
Director's and other  Performance scheme Director's and other  Performance scheme
fee benefits ~ based bonus  contributions Total fee benefits  based bonus  contributions Total
HER BIRER HER BRiER
B3N HitgH BEAL Bl @t 30k HitigR B atBIRER @5t
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS million HKS million HK$ million HKS million
EEY 0 BE#En EEY 0 BE#En BE# BEEL BEET B8R BEET BE#En
(note i) (note i)
(M) (Bigti)
Executive directors: WTES:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BraEt 0.2 6.6 209 07 284 02 65 16.6 07 240
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy B fBE4E 0.2 40 14.5 18 205 02 36 104 13 155
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BERUL 0.2 34 11 07 15.4 02 30 77 05 14
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRERE 0.2 64 217 0.6 289 02 63 165 06 236
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEBEL 02 27 125 15 16.9 02 27 82 11 122
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson PREXE 0.2 24 83 0.1 1.0 02 23 59 01 85
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamitton BB BB 4E %4 02 a7 16.2 19 20 02 37 121 16 176
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter REBEE 0.2 34 125 0.3 16.4 02 34 94 03 133
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRAxE 0.2 33 126 0.3 16.4 02 32 94 03 131
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong (note i) BR1 8 554 ( Kt ii) - - - - - 02 54 391 05 452
Independent non-executive  FIIEH{TES
directors:
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon ~ BD 88 754 0.9 - - - 0.9 09 - 14 - 23
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey RfREEE 0.8 - - - 0.8 08 - 14 - 22
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EREL 08 - - - 0.8 08 - 14 - 22
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily BDEEUL 0.8 - - - 0.8 08 - 13 - 21
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert BRBiL 08 - - - 0.8 08 = 10 = 18
Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina IEE S T MEtii) 0.8 - - - 038 03 = = = 03
(note i)
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric BWELE(MEEiv) 03 - - - 03 - - - - =
(note iv)
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor EE A ET(MEy) - - - - - 03 - 14 - 17
(note v)
Total @t 70 35.9 1303 79 1811 67 401 1432 70 1970
Notes B E -

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results and

directors' performance decided by the remuneration committee of the Company.

(i) Resigned with effect from 31 March 2023.

(i) Appointed with effect from 1 December 2022

(iv) Appointed with effect from 1 December 2023

(v) Retired upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 27 July 2022

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were mainly

for their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments of the

non-executive directors and independent non-executive

directors shown above were mainly for their services as

directors of the Company.

200 Financials
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(i) EBRANEALDHFMEESHALBENNBREREELIRNEEE,

(i) B202343A31HiLE T,
(iii) B2022& 1281 BRBSE,
(iv) B2023% 12 A1 BRESE,

(v) f82022457A27 BRITHRRBFXGHERERE,
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10. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (conTiNuED)

Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2023:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are included

above.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the
directors have waived any emoluments during the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in "Profile of Directors

and Senior Management" section fell within the following
bands:

10.

B AT B B a0

T4 de e B 4 A
REREHEATOBERATESES( 20234 .
BE), REFHEERR L

HE2024F3H31HKR2023F3A3NHLEFE,
REBMERRANSEEFRESTHAEBF AT R
EMEAL(BEES. RETRABRES )XfT
B, LATEARBHER B E R RSIRFNANE
A TN 55 B By B 48 B, B £ 20245 3H31H K
2023 3H3THIEFE, WEEMESEBRMEM
Fr Mo

RPN
REIKEERAEREMSATOMEI, SRE
BAS(EERR EFREHREBASHN | &)
MBI F T EE -

Number of individuals

REHE

2024 2023

HK$nil — HK$1,000,000 FHITTE 1,000,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T ZE 2,000,000 T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8L ZE 2,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 5L Z& 3,000,000 & 7T 4 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& 7T E 3,500,000 8 7T 4 5
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 8 5L E 4,000,000 & 7T 2 =
12 12
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1.

TAXATION

Accounting Policy

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

B IH

& at BUOR

INHA 22 BT 15 B0 57 th BY 4T 92 22 7N A i SR A IS 12 48
RtEBERAZRESAETNECTRIE, TEEEY
I 1 2= BRAD R 8 A 2 B IR A 1R B AU IR SE AR IR &
ERBREEHMAR,

Bl EA PR 15 2

BNEAPF 1S Sz HARIR AN A 5], EIff 8 25 R E
NEEERELEBRBEWARERRBSHRE
BB ERGE R A E, S5 ENER
A0 855 25 Il 5 MR PIT AR R 841 15 D5 TE B4 5 12 3 A2 2% 51K
L, I RE R R B = © B O AR 1 52 R AE T TE 61
BB, NEERBEERAUTRDIRAEENTE
HA (B (B (45 T fo] & AE 58 24 6 78R A B8 2 (R 3R B iR 1R
TIRME ), stEERIERER,

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BRET
The taxation charge comprises: MIRE S 545 -
Current tax: BUHARR IR -
Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") in b E RN ETER 1,518.1 1,319.9
Mainland China
Hong Kong Profits Tax EiBNER 270.3 2535
Macau complementary tax VR PY BT 15 4 TR AR 59.9 29.3
Taxation in other jurisdictions HAh S A [E 2 18 21.6 12.7
1,869.9 1,615.4
Under/ (over) provision in prior years: BEFEREAR/ (BEHEE):
EIT in Mainland China o [ A B 1 SE PS4 31.3 86.3
Hong Kong Profits Tax BT (35.4) 25.8
Taxation in other jurisdictions HAh S A & 2 18 0.9 -
(3.2) 1121
Deferred tax charge (note 22) IEIERRIE RS2 ( PffsE22) 16.5 364
Withholding tax * e * 237.9 1931
21211 1,957.0

202

*  Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income from

Mainland China subsidiaries

Financials
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II.  TAXATION (conmiNuED) 1. B
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated i fEFE N, BRSBTS E SRR A T
assessable profit for both years. 16. 5% MEFHE,
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the "EIT Law") of the RIEPEABRLME(] NDEERERERES
People's Republic of China ("PRC") and Implementation htn 4B BRI, o B A 3 BT JE jﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬂ%25 0%
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25.0% for both years.
For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they IR2N 81 E T op B A i B JE 2 S14E A A of B A 3 75 AP
are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the BRIRIAEE . W1EFENIEARERER15.0%,
development of the western part of Mainland China. The
applicable tax rate is 15.0% for both years.
Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum w8 FE A, WP P 1S 4 T A 0 42 1 5 I8 SR A i A
progressive rate of 12.0% on the estimated assessable profit for NEE R *ﬁt 12.0% 518,
both years.
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FNRIRT B o] ARG IR TR A PRIGANERNEARI0 T
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as follows:
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Profit before taxation B A Al iz Al 8,728.3 7/446.5
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: RERAMEREFENRIE . 1,815.1 1,648.9
(Mainland China: 25.0%; Hong Kong, China: (hERD : 25.0% ; PEIEE : 16.5% ;
16.5%; Macau, China: 12.0%) dI[ERRPY : 12.0% )
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for Aol AR 2 94.6 27.9
tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBANR B ZE (19.5) (12.9)
tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEEENREE 12.3 295
Utilisation of tax losses previously Ef) FH 5t Al 7 B 50 B A 1R s 18 (18.5) (12.1)
not recognised
Tax effect of temporary differences IRERE IS ERNRIEE (7.7) (34.9)
not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives HTHENMKEASIRIEAR KR (59.6) (48.2)
granted to certain subsidiaries in BEMNREE
Mainland China
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of o [ A dh B a8 2 S 7k 7 R i A FE H0 AR 251.6 215.4
subsidiaries in Mainland China
(Over)/ under provision in prior years BAFEE(BEREE ) BELAR (3.2) 121
Withholding tax * fair * 237.9 1931
Tax credit MIEiER (187.2) (171.1)
Others HAh 5.3 93
Taxation charge for the year FARIEL 2,1211 1,957.0

Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income from

Mainland China subsidiaries.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

204

Accounting Policy

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

profit attributable to shareholders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the

year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential

ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

The calculation of the basic earings per share for the year is

based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company for the year and on the number of
9,996,454,344 (2023: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

share as there was no potential ordinary shares dilution during

both years.
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13. DIVIDENDS

Accounting Policy

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

13. B

&t BUOR

PSR S BRel 2 Bl B S IR B S #R & HA /R I 7k 72
RZEMREER(ECEERERBAOBEREL
BIRE EH o

2024 2023
HK cents per HK cents per
share HK$ million share HK$ million
sREMD BEER sSRED BEET
Dividends paid and recognised R N 52 171 K2 T 3 4 3 IR
as distribution during the year ZE
For current year: IREFE
— Interim dividends - PHIRE 25.0 2,497.5 22.0 2,200.0
For prior year: EFE
— Final dividends - REIRE 28.0 2,800.0 28.0 2,800.0
— Special dividends - BRI R 72.0 7,200.0 - -
12,497.5 5,000.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK30.0 cents per share (2023: a final dividend of HK28.0
cents per share and a special dividend of HK72.0 cents per
share), totalling HK$2,996.3 million (2023: HK$10,000.0 million)
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 have been
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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14.

206

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting Policy

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction in progress) are stated at historical cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land Over the lease term
Buildings 5%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33'/ %
20%-33/ %

25%

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Financials
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administration purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2024
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14.

208

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Ciritical Accounting Estimates

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value
of asset can be supported by its recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group's reported financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change
in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge

to the consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, after reviewing the
business environment as well as the Group's strategies and
past performance of its cash-generating units, management
concluded that there was no impairment of property, plant
and equipment (2023: reversal of HK$0.3 million) and right-of-
use assets (2023: reversal of HK$15.0 million) respectively.
Management believe that any reasonably possible changes in
the assumptions used in the impairment reviews would not
affect management's view on impairment at 31 March 2024. A
discount rate of 18.0% (2023: 18.0%) has been applied.

Financials
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M 2 "
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y. W7 Bk i can
(CONTINUED)
Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plant and  fixtures and improve- Motor Construction
buildings machinery equipment ments vehicles  in progress Total
. HE
TmREF WERER EHEREE MERERE SE wEIE ast
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BHEEBT BHEET BEET BEET BRET BERET BERET
Cost (L7
At 1 April 2022 R2022%4H1H 4,342.3 608.7 3,774.8 4,0331 64.8 19.2 12,9429
Currency realignment B (284.1) (44.4) (142.5) (280.2) (34) (9.3) (763.9)
Additions fi=T Al 3.3 747.2 736.9 42 409.9 1,936.6
Transfer g E 164.8 15.7 04 8.7 - (189.6) -
Disposals & - (12.1) (299.4) (153.4) (2.4) (10.5) (477.8)
Net transferred to FEEEREE (318.4) = = = = = (318.4)
investment properties
At 31 March 2023 R2023%F3H31H 3,911.7 599.2 4,080.5 4,345.1 63.2 319.7 13,319.4
Currency realignment B R (118.1) (20.2) (74.4) (141.9) (1.6) (11.0) (367.2)
Additions =1 - 22.2 336.1 365.1 3.5 230.3 957.2
Transfer = 57.9 0.2 0.6 0.3 - (59.0) -
Disposals e (8.2) (4.4) (206.5) (257.8) (1.3) - (478.2)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3H31H 3,843.3 597.0 4136.3 4,310.8 63.8 480.0 13,431.2
Accumulated depreciation BsHFERIRE
and impairment
At 1 April 2022 R2022%F4H1H 15753 3054 2,735.9 3,2385 49.0 - 7,904.1
Currency realignment B R R (104.9) (22.1) (76.3) (223.8) (2.5) = (429.6)
Depreciation provided FRITERH 197.9 54.0 573.8 439.6 64 - 1,271.7
for the year
Impairment reversed A R E B B (0.3) = = = = = (0.3)
for the year
Eliminated on disposals i ES il £ - (6.6) (246.5) (138.3) (2.0) = (393.4)
Transferred to investment — ##:E E 1 E Y (177.5) = = = = = (177.5)
properties
At 31 March 2023 R202343H31H 1,490.5 330.7 2,986.9 3,316.0 50.9 - 8,175.0
Currency realignment B R B (45.2) (11.1) (42.3) (107.5) (1.1) - (207.2)
Depreciation provided FRNITERH 188.6 50.9 611.2 494.5 5.4 - 1,350.6
for the year
Eliminated on disposals H E5 il £ (5.9) (3.6) (180.7) (222.6) (1.2) - (414.0)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F3H31H 1,628.0 366.9 3,375.1 3,480.4 54.0 - 8,904.4
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3H31H 2,215.3 230.1 761.2 830.4 9.8 480.0 4,526.8
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3H31H 24212 268.5 1,093.6 1,0291 12.3 319.7 5144 .4

The carrying values of the Group's properties (including

construction in progress) are analysed as follows:

REEMF(LFEEZTR FREEATOT -

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

In Mainland China JR e | A 3 2,418.4 24399
In Hong Kong, China RPEEE 276.9 301.0
2,695.3 2,740.9
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

Accounting Policy

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES conminuep)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party

financing was received,

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
subsidiaries of the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:
the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;
any initial direct costs; and
restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over

the underlying asset's useful life.
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15.

212

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES conminuep)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their

nature.

An amendment to IFRS 16 "COVID-19-related rent
concessions" was issued in June 2020 and is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
This amendment allows a lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification. Such
practical expedient has been applied to all rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic,

only if all of the following conditions are met:

The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

There is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

Ciritical Accounting Estimates

The Group reviews right-of-use assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether an impairment has occurred typically
requires various estimates and assumptions, for details, please

refer to critical accounting estimate in note 14.

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES conminuep)

15, fdff FHIHE 5 2 I AHL 55

B 1F ca)

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) ARG W25 R 100 2 1 32 Y 4 AR
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows REMBERRRBTREAEGHNERTT

the following amounts relating to leases:

Leasehold land/

land use rights Office,

(note i) warehouse and

HE LI/ others
Right-of-use assets 4 it {55 FA A Retail stores WMAZE. BERE Total
EHEEE (BigEi) ZEE R HAih st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEET
At 1 April 2022 R2022% 4818 5691 10274 822 1,678.7
Currency realignment B R (11.9) (34.3) (1.8) (48.0)
Additions =1 - 925.7 721 997.8
Depreciation provided for the year (note ii) FERNITERE(KMEE) (20.2) (811.1) (54.8) (886.1)
Impairment reversed for the year (note iii) FNRERE M) 14.3 0.7 = 15.0
Surrender BRE - (28.7) (0.6) (29.3)
Modification 18357 - (31.7) = (31.7)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3H31H 551.3 1,048.0 971 1,696.4
Currency realignment & MR R (5.1) (19.9) (3.3) (28.3)
Additions wE - 9721 108.2 1,080.3
Depreciation provided for the year (note ii) FNTERE(HEE) (20.2) (782.4) (65.1) (867.7)
Surrender RE - (51.6) (4.3) (55.9)
Modification 1&5T - (19.9) (23.0) (42.9)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3H31H 526.0 1,146.3 109.6 1,781.9
Lease liabilities HK$ million
HEAE BEET
At 1 April 2022 R2022%4H1H 1194.5
Currency realignment B R (35.2)
Lease payment MH&EMRIE (953.1)
Interest expenses Y=Yz 39.2
Additions e 996.2
Surrender BEE (44.2)
Modification 1&5T (31.7)
At 31 March 2023 JR2023% 3 H31H 1,165.7
Currency realignment BHETRE (22.8)
Lease payment HERIE (892.7)
Interest expenses AR 50.5
Additions wE 1,079.4
Surrender Jiah=1 (70.0)
Modification &5T (42.9)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3H31H 1,267.2
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES conminuep)

(a)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

15 fifi FHAE A & ML B o)

(a)

TR & St B R 0 3R T A B B L)

At 31 March 2024
k2024 3H31H

At 31 March 2023
R2023fFE3H31H

HK$ million HK$ million
BEERX BEET

Lease liabilities HERE
Current mEn 650.2 602.7
Non-current JEmEN 617.0 563.0
1,267.2 1165.7

214

Notes:
(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China government and
leasehold land in Hong Kong

(i) The amount was charged to selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses,

(i

The amount was recognised in other gains and losses.

The Group considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit. Management
performed impairment assessments for the retail stores
that had impairment indicator. The carrying amount of
the retail store asset is written down to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is in excess of its
estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the
recoverable amounts were based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections
based on the management's forecasts covering the
remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions
such as change in revenue, change in operating cost and

change in gross profit.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group has no
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (2023:
reversal of HK$0.3 million) and right of-use assets (2023:
reversal of HK$15.0 million), respectively in other gains

and losses (as shown in note 6).

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES conminuep)

15, i RS & M LS A6 e

(b)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) T %7 G 48 £ 2R B R 1Y 4 A
statement of profit or loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the e e R AR~ A & R A 7 S E R AT
following amounts relating to the leases which are not BREGHEAE 16 FERVN TN T -
capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16:
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BEET
Expense relating to short-term leases EIFGHAFE & B R B R 2 460.4 348.2
(included in selling and distribution costs (ST ATHE R 7 88 pY AN LA K2
and general and administrative expenses) —RRITHRX )
Expense relating to variable lease st A\EEBBRIFHES 1,886.5 1,885.6
payments not included in lease liabilities NN
(included in selling and distribution costs) (GTAHER M)
2,346.9 2,233.8
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended HE2024F3ANHEFERENEERD
31 March 2024 was HK$3,239.6 million (2023: HK$3,186.9 48 %8 43,239.68 & B JL( 20234 ; 3,186.9
million). BEET ).
() The Group’s leasing activities and how they are (c) AR Z R B 75 8 S H A IR 7
accounted for
The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and KEETESHEZRTFES. MAEREE,
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically entered for MESHBERER BEERFZEERE
fixed periods of six months to five years, but may have XL, MEOTREE A T ATl 2 E 48 1= 4
extension options as described below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and MERKBERMNBEERZ, E8SEAE
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. B0 1% 3R B2 5% 14 o FH B 17 5% A il 10 1E o] 22 3,
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other HHEAFARNMEEESZ P K KSR
than the security interests in the leased assets that are whRob, FHEEEARTNEE R AIFRE,
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
(d) Variable lease payments (d) FEIFLE T2

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

condition that triggers those payments occurs.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES conminuep)

(e) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor. In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or
not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be

extended (or not terminated).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Accounting Policy
Investment properties are properties held for long-term rental

yields and are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner's occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for subsequent

accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line basis over 20 years for building element or

lease term for land element.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

Financials
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16.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES continuED) 6. &YX

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEX BEET
Cost RY 7R
At 1 April R4818 441.8 305.7
Currency realignment £ s R (5.3) (1.9)
Net transferred from property, plant and equipment FEEME. BERRE - 138.0
At 31 March R3A31H 436.5 441.8
Accumulated depreciation REHE
At 1 April R4H1H 118.7 102.0
Currency realignment R R (0.2) (0.2)
Depreciation provided for the year FRITERME 25.7 19.8
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EREYE. BERRHE - (2.9)
At 31 March R3IA31H 144.2 18.7
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March R3A31H 292.3 3231
(@ Amounts recognised in consolidated statement (a) BRI E W) 36N &5 B 1H £ R AR Y
of profit or loss for investment properties 4%
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRET BEET
Rental income from operating leases EEMEEET A 22.6 20.6
Direct operating expenses from property EEHESWARNMEL 23.3 19.3
that generated rental income BREERX
Direct operating expenses from property RAELEHEEWRAREZ 6.7 33
that not generated rental income BREERX
(b)  Fair value hierarchy (b) 2 AMEFEH
The fair value measurement of the Group's investment REBRBSHARREMERNL B ER
properties at the end of the reporting period have been NHR=TELREHFR(KMEES4), 2nEFE
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy (note B JE 4k 70 #0248 2 & 1l 18 5 947 op 152 A 6° o A
34). The level into which a fair value measurement is BB RENESHEREEE,
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique.
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conminuED)

16.

S a-C/EICD

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (continued (b) 2~ fefd %5 S ca)
Details of the Group's investment properties and NEERSHRESHARNRENFEFER A
information about the fair value hierarchy at the end of NREFRFERIT
each reporting period are as follows:
Fair value hierarchy Fair value
NARBEFR NRE
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRET BERET
At 31 March R3A31H
Industrial property units IR EE BT Level 3 397.0 410.3
located in Hong Kong, China LE: K] B4
Commercial property units AL o B A 4 ) 7 5 Level 3 224.9 2424
located in Mainland China LRV B=

218

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of

the reporting period.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during
the period (2023: nil).

Valuation process and techniques used to
determine level 3 fair values

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's investment
properties at the end of every financial year. As at 31 March
2024, the fair values of the investment properties located in
Mainland China and Hong Kong have been determined by
Shenzhen Zhonghengxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. and
Knight Frank Petty Limited respectively.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of
the properties are assessed and capitalised at the market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as
well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate is determined by
reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties in the same location
and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors

specific to the Group's investment properties.

Fair value was determined by applying the market approach
by making reference to the comparable sales transactions
as available in the markets, where comparison was made
based on prices realised on actual sales and/ or asking

prices of comparable properties.

Financials
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16.
(c)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTinuED)

Valuation process and techniques used to
determine level 3 fair values Continued)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the

highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

16. &Y a)

(c)

HEE S AN U E A R
s

RETEZEMERNLALEBE, ZFEMELHK
EkEFERERARE B AIE,

Valuation Range of inputs Relationship of unobservable
Description techniques Unobservable inputs (probability-weighted average) inputs to fair value
AOHRGABRR
ik HEFE FOBEHABRE BABSHE(RE - MEFH) MAEZRIR
2024 2023
Industrial property units Income approach Capitalisation rate 4.0% 38%  The higher the capitalisation rate,
- Hong Kong, China the lower the fair value
TEMREN - PETHE A B E B ENS, 2nERR
Monthly market rent HK$11.8 p.s.f. HK$11.3 psf.  The higher the price per
square feet, the higher
the fair value
BAMEAE =L YRR SFRREBHES, ArEHS
1.8 N.3BT
Commercial property units Income approach Capitalisation rate 5.9% 53%  The higher the capitalisation rate,
—Mainland China the lower the fair value
BRMFEN - PENM PN B E B NS, 2nERR
Monthly market rent HK$358.8 p.s.m. HK$389.9 p.s.m.  The higher the price per
square feet, the higher
the fair value
BAMEAE BERR YRRk S8FRREBHES, ArEHS
358.8 389 98T
Commercial property units Market approach Market sale rate N/A HK$38,838.9 p.sm.  The higher the market price,
—Mainland China per square meter, the higher the fair value
taking into account of
individual factors
such as location
and size, etc.
BRMFEN - PENM fim% BYRRMEEE iE F YRR WMHEEBHE, aaEHE
(25t RITER 38,838.9 87T
KINEFRIRE )
(d) Leasing arrangements (d) FHELHE

The investment properties are leased to tenants under

operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the
end of these leases. Expectations about the future
residual values are reflected in the fair value of the

properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of

investment properties, refer to note 30.
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7. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HAth P & &
Accounting Policy 5 BUR
Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured initially BMENINEREEYNBIRA KRGS, F0RE
at cost or, if acquired in a business combination, fair value BEeHhWE, IIRKEBBHEEARETE, B
at the acquisition date. An intangible asset with a finite 5 BR O {8 A 4F BA B 2 & 2 S B T {52 AR A HA AT LA
useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful B EEE, 1B Ay KRR 5t H K R 5T RE
life and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and IR IR o
accumulated impairment losses.
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRET BERET
Cost Y 7K
At 1 April and 31 March R4H1BKR3A31H 472.9 4729
Accumulated amortisation RetH
At 1 April R4H18 406.6 363.9
Amortisation provided for the year N 2K 12 1 1.3 42.7
At 31 March R3A31H 447.9 406.6
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March R3IA31H 25.0 66.3

18.

220

The other intangible assets are comprised mainly the
brandname and trademarks identified in the acquisition of
HEARTS ON FIRE, amortised with useful life of 6 to 15 years.

JEWELLERY COLLECTIBLES

Accounting Policy

Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current assets at
cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Jewellery
collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in

the period in which the item is derecognised.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set jewellery
collectibles held by the Group which are designated not for
sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at least
equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of the
reporting period.

Financials
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19, 52 5y Je Ho Aty S5 IR
INCLUDING PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS A 45 TR 3 e ©AY 4% 4

Accounting Policy Al BUR

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods BABKWRIBEEMR —REKRAEPHES Ry
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. RBERBEMENES Z2MRIE, 85 ERIE—K
They are generally due for settlement between 30 and 180 R30BE180H 2 #&E T, WIL=EBP N RAENE,

days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of BLEKARBEREYIRERGNEED, RIESE
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain BEERMELS, KA REER, NEBE
significant financing components, when they are recognised BEZBRUMRBHNENANERGHARERE,
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the I ELA8 LAE BRI 2= A s Y N5t & . AR N ER
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore MR ERRASR A, F2 BbME 33,

measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See note 33 for a description of the

Group's impairment policies.

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BEET
Trade receivables B 5 E R IE 2,919.1 3,228.0
Less: Loss allowance o B R R (22.5) (14.6)
2,896.6 3,2134
Prepayments to suppliers [a] i & 7 8 1 ZR 18 820.6 610.9
Deposits Bftis® 727.4 416.2
Other tax recoverables (note) ELAth BT Y2 (o] %2 18 ( Bff 5 ) 2,609.3 2,210.1
Others HAih 141.5 88.6
7195.4 6,539.2
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRET BEET
Non-current portion FEREE 370.4 346.3
Current portion mENEL 6,825.0 6,192.9
7195.4 6,539.2
Note:  Other tax recoverables mainly refer to Value Added Tax ("VAT") levied at the Group's Bitst . Efthar ol i1 £ Sk ch E N i i E AT I B E R . PR 0N IR G &
sales in Mainland China. Input VAT on purchases can be deducted from output VAT Mo B EfTIE RIS E R 0 R, 1511018 B R 4 86 1R 18 (B 1 62 o 40 IRt
payable. The VAT recoverable is the net difference between output VAT and deductible HIBERKIFEH,
input VAT.
As at 31 March 2024, trade receivables of HK$61.5 million R2024F3H31H, BEZERARIBEGICBEEBT
(2023: HK$21.7 million) are due from entities in which certain (2023 - 21.78@Bx )RKBERL GETEE(IN
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the RANBIRR FAEDRT ZER,
Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. 58 5y B¢ HoAth JE Y gk IR
INCLUDING PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS A4 AT 3T Je O A % 4 )
(CONTINUED)
The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly cash sales and AEEHEERENHENRSHERGHRHE
credit card sales. Sales to certain customers are on credit with wmE, MEETESAHSAUARHEEI, E&8H
credit period up to 6 months. For sales through concessionaire RZTROMEA, REENHEMS, N&EEB KU
counters, the Group usually allows 30 days credit period to ZEREWAMIELAE T30 NS &R,
these receivables.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented INTHIREFZAMES], RIS HARKEZEUL
based on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period: TIERERE DT -
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BEET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 2,471.0 3,027.9
31 to 90 days 31290H 390.2 144.4
91 to 180 days 912180 H 28.7 243
Over 180 days 180 HIA L 29.2 314
2,919.1 3,228.0

222

As at 31 March 2024, included in the trade receivable balances
are receivables of HK$844.3 million (2023: HK$1,110.7 million)
carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from 6.9% to 9.4% (2023:
6.9% to 9.4%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all trade receivables.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the

reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, a loss allowance of
HK$8.4 million is recognised (2023: HK$1.9 million is written
back) based on expected credit loss. During the year ended 31
March 2024, no loss allowance is written off (2023: HK$47.1
million). Information about the impairment of trade receivables

and the Group's exposure to credit risk are set out in note 33.

Financials
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 20. A A F ZARE /

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ (TO) ASSOCIATES e/ CEAST ) B 2N W] R IH
(a) Investments in associates (a) AWEAFAZRE
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
At 1 April R4818 69.5 775
Currency realignment EM P (0.9) (2.3)
Capital contribution = 5.0 -
Share of (losses)/ profits FEL( &8 )/ & A (19.9) 03
Dividends received B R (3.9) (6.0)
At 31 March K3F31H 49.8 69.5
Details of the associates of the Group are as follows: REBBFIBE L SIFEHINWT
Place of incorporation/ Proportion of Proportion of
establishment and ownership interest voting rights held
Name of companies principal place of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
SEMALIL/ RE LMD B R REEFRIGHEAR R ER B R i
NEEH TEEEMY 2315411 BERLH FEEK
2024 2023 2024 2023
Beijing Wolafei Jewellery Mainland China 35.0% 35.0% 40.0% 40.0%  Manufacturing of jewellery products
Company Limited o B A it hEEREE

ITRENGFEHERAT

Group Program Limited British Virgin Islands 23.6% 330% 33.3% 333%  Operating a customer loyalty scheme
("BVI" in Hong Kong and Mainland China
REHEARES FRE 18 R o B N 41032 {F
EPRHEE
New Cutting Edge Limited BVI 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0%  R&D and production of all
RBHEARES jewellery-related business

FEREERFRNEREE

Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating a shopping complex
Hong Kong Goods Centre hE A in Mainland China
Company Limited IR E A EE B PIL

wYlEERAXEEEPLERAT

Shenzhen Yungi Xingchen Mainland China 9.2% 9.2% 1.1% 111%  Data analytics platform
Technology Company Limited oh & (A At gENTEE
RINTHEME RS
BIREEAT
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ (TO) ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

[nvestments in associates (Continued)

Each individual associate does not have a significant

financial impact on the Group's results and financial

/z_\\

Zl
g
I
-

TR E 2 Rl Z B E cao
SERBE AT ENNEBORERY B
MR IR E AR B, 85 F = A K B

position. Aggregate financial information of associates ENCIZUBERGEUT
that are individually immaterial is as follows:
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Aggregate carrying amount of BRIANEEXNBE S 2 REAE 49.8 695
individually immaterial associates
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: REEEFT L 7 ZE 4858 .
(Losses)/ profits from continuing operations FESEERN(EE )/ R (19.9) 0.3
Other comprehensive expense HAth 2 /b s (0.9) (2.3)
Total comprehensive expense SHEMZEER (20.8) (20)

224

The Group had discontinued recognising its share of
losses of associates because its cumulative share of
losses in the associates had exceeded the investment
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The
Group will not resume recognition of its share of any
future profits in the associates until its share of such
profits equals the cumulative share of losses not

recognised in past years.

Financials
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ (TO) ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

The amounts of unrecognised share of profits/ (losses) of

the associates for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

(a) MBtEAFRZHE 8
FRNERSTHIREREGTHE NaERN/ (&
B)EHEWT

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET BERET

Unrecognised share of profits/ (losses) RERELEE N THERN / (EE) 2.4 (48.0)
of associates

Accumulated unrecognised share of REtREREGLEE A BlEE (153.8) (156.2)

losses of associates

21.

(b)  Amounts due from/ (to) associates
As at 31 March 2024, the carrying value of amounts due
from associates is HK$41.7 million (2023: HK$53.0 million)
of which HK$40.0 million (2023: HK$40.0 million) is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
term. The remaining HK$1.7 million (2023: HK$13.0 million)
bears interest at 4.2% (2023: 4.2% to 7.8%) per annum
and will be repaid to the Group by instalments until 30
September 2024. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying value
of amounts due to associates of HK$2.1 million (2023: nil)
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment

term.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loan receivables represent loans to staff. Loan receivables are
classified as current or non-current assets based on contractual
terms and taking into account the timing of recovery as
expected by the management. There was no amount due but
unpaid, nor any loss allowance made against the principal
amount of HK$8.6 million (2023: HK$10.5 million) or interest on
these loans at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying amount

of the related loan on an individual basis.
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22.

226

DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting Policy

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Financials
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292. DEFERRED TAXATION (continuED) 22 I ZE R TH (41)

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities AT R NE B R i 1 F Z &K B 2 R FIEE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the MIA(EE ) BENURERZE
current and prior years:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
EERREE EERESE
Withholding
Fair value tax on
change of undistributed
unsettled profits of Depreciation
Unrealised ~ Amortisation gold loans subsidiaries  Amortisation of
profit on and in Mainland Lease in Mainland and right-of-use
inventories  depreciation China liabilities Others China  depreciation assets Total
DA
RS ] PERLNE
&z BEfEl LEARRK fERIE
RERER  BEREE  AAEEE HE&E At @RzEOR  BERAE BERE @t

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE#n BE#L BE#n BE#L BRER BE#n BEEL BE#n BEEL

At 1 April 2022 fR2022%4A18 (2110) (824) (867) (196.2) (1626) 6968 W4 1879 307.2
Currency realignment EHRR 105 04 6.7 87 98 (505) (164) (90) (39.8)
(Credit)/ charge to profit or (5TA)/ ORRBH(MEN) (494) 84 (1273) (281) (483) 2547 300 357 364
loss (note 11)
Utilised during the year ENFER = = = = = (4515) = = (4515)
At 31 March 2023 fR2023E3A 310 (309.9) (73.6) (207.3) (215.6) (2011) 410.2 235.0 2146 (147.7)
Currency realignment BHRR 42 - 7.2 55 59 (14.1) (8.1) (5.5) (4.9)
(Credit)/ charge to profit or (5tA)/ DBRBE( HEE1) (37.3) 160 (190.7) (20,0 294 2516* (534) 207 165
loss (note 11)
Utilised during the year ENFER - - - - - (475.9) - - (475.9)
At 31 March 2024 R2024E3A 318 (343.0) (57.6) (390.8) (230.1) (165.6) 7.8 1735 298 (612.0)
*  Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to * REDPBELERERE, BH2008FE1818#E, JLFH D E KM E QS ERIK
foreign investors in respect of profits eared by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. ERABEMREESIRRE, HAMKI10% 280K,
Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain WRKEES THBASRST@EAMBATNHERSGEREN IR E, &
subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these FZEMBLBEAEIEERES% HMIRMTREZ EIOR,

subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for LATE % 2t B %5 3R & A& P 1F W O 3 7R IR 45 8%
financial reporting purposes: T
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Before offsetting fEsH I
Deferred tax assets iR 3E 7 I8 & 7 (1,187.1) (1,007.5)
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERR IH B & 575.1 859.8
(612.0) (147.7)
After offsetting fEiHE
Deferred tax assets 1 E G T8 & 2 (960.7) (792.9)
Deferred tax liabilities IRIER THE & 348.7 645.2
(612.0) (147.7)
Annual Report 2024 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 227
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION coNntinuep) 22. IE FE L IH ()
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BOGEUNEHMEREERHEMAEREEER
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets ESEFTIS IR R B — I U B, IESERIRE ERE
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred ICREEGE =
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
At 31 March 2024, the Group had tax losses of HK$1,269.8 R2024F3H31H, REBKREDRAIRILERIEE
million (2023: HK$1,224.1 million) not recognised as deferred tax ENRIEEEA1,269. 8T & B T( 20234 : 1,224.1
assets. Tax effect of such tax losses as at 31 March 2024 was BEBIT ), ZMIAEEBR20244F 3 A 31 BRI
HK$259.7 million (2023: HK$251.2 million). BEE250 7EEBIT( 20234 : 25128 EEIT )o
The aging of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is as follows: R B AN RERRIEFHEERRBIOT
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERX BE#ET
0-5 years 0-5%F 134.2 139.8
11-15 years 11-15 £ 374.6 3525
Unlimited KRB FIR 761.0 731.8
1,269.8 1,224.1
At 31 March 2024, the Group had deductible temporary [R2024%F3HA31H, NREEREDRRIELRIAE
differences of HK$11.1 million (2023: HK$13.8 million) not ENTNREREZEEAN 1B EET(20234F ;
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such deductible 13.8B&EBIT ), Lo EEMEZERK 202443
temporary differences as at 31 March 2024 was HK$1.8 million A3HNKREE R 1.8E&EE(20234F : 238
(2023: HK$2.3 million). BRI )
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5.0% (2023: RIFEDE T EFERIE, $E A AT E NS850
5.0%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits B 2008 F 1A 1 HEMMEBGNEEIRR B EH
earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January 2008 5.0%(20234F : 5.0% )z K., RIESE IR
onwards. Based on the dividend distribution plan of the EnikstEl, R2024F3A3THKIRE GEA G
management, retained profits as at 31 March 2024 amounting 343488 & B (20234 : 8,203.285 & BT )
to HK$3,434.8 million (2023: HK$8,203.2 million) will be HOERERFEFRERRENIK, MR FREBENSIHE
distributed as dividend in the foreseeable future, while the 1,050.6 8 & B ju( 20234 : 1,519.3 83 & #E ot ) B
remaining retained profits amounting to HK$1,050.6 million REFEREER ERTRME.
(2023: HK$1,519.3 million) has been set aside for local operation
and business development.
228 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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23. INVENTORIES

Accounting Policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Cost is calculated using specific
identification basis for gem-set jewellery, platinum and k-gold
jewellery (finished goods), gold jewellery and products selling
at fixed price and watches; and weighted average for other
inventories. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

Ciritical Accounting Estimates

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group's policy to
review the net realisable value of inventories periodically with
reference to current market situation and conditions of the
items. The assessment of net realisable value of inventories
was based on economic conditions, marketability of products
and the forecast market price of gold, platinum and
gemstones used to make the jewellery products. The Group's
management also engaged an independent professional
gemmologist to perform valuation and assess conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set
jewellery with reference to international diamond prices, its
expertise and the current market situation. The Group
reassessed the estimation at the end of each reporting period.
As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$64,647.0 million (net of allowances of HK$251.0 million)
(2023: carrying amount of HK$59,290.4 million (net of
allowances of HK$112.7 million)). Allowances on inventories of
HK$139.4 million (2023: HK$14.4 million) were charged in
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2024.
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23. INVENTORIES (continueD) 23. 1 B s

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEX BEET

Raw materials for: EEUTERREMA
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery hEER. IHERKEEM 11,721.9 12,240.2
Gold jewellery and products =EEMMNER 2,899.5 2,503.8
14,621.4 14,744.0

Finished goods: Hiyoo :

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery REER. HERKEEM 17,104.3 19,521.8
Gold jewellery and products BB E @ 31,158.5 23,2483
Watches 5 5% 1,709.2 1,657.9
49,972.0 44,428.0
Packaging materials B 53.6 118.4
64,647.0 59,2904

24,

230

Inventories recognised as cost of goods sold during the year
ended 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$82,441.0 million (2023:
HK$68,965.4 million).

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to
HK$139.4 million (2023: HK$14.4 million). These were included
in "cost of goods sold" in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ (TO) NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Financials
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25. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Accounting Policy

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, bank deposits with
maturities of three months or less carry interest at the
prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to 5.60% (2023:
0.01% to 5.00%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was no bank
deposit with maturity of more than three months (2023: carry
interest at the prevailing market rate from 1.45% to 5.09% per

annum).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
and short-term bank deposits denominated in RMB were
HK$4,278.4 million (2023: HK$8,451.7 million) in which
HK$3,236.8 million (2023: HK$8,318.2 million) were held by the
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China. The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in Mainland China and
the Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct

business in foreign currency.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. 515 B HAb REAS R
Accounting Policy & RHEUR
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZETREVNREEL RN ERE P REBEKN
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which ERLRBRREMBE, %58 EEE,
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid FEABRAEHE7XEIBORXRAXT. BZARE
between 7 and 180 days of recognition. Trade and other ftERIRZ27 HREBE, BRIFT R IFAR R
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is SHENRZBEARNEIH, EENGEQ R E#ESR
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are HiZ A8 MRA B IE R BN AR 8,
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRER BEER
Trade payables B 5 fE T 5RIR 1,041.2 992.6
Contract liabilities GRaE 2,148.2 21384
Deposits received from franchisees and customers ENIEEDSE RN 24,827.5 24,567.8
Accruals fEst & F 1,074.9 1,108.3
Accrued staff costs st 8 Ty 7K 560.1 629.2
Other tax payables ELAh T R IR 692.5 4888
Interest payables &R 2 104.0 68.9
Others HAh 81.2 94.9
30,529.6 30,088.9

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China for
the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and

interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from
its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each

reporting period:

B /10 88 78 K2 R &5 USLEN B 15 5 = 545 0P (B (A 3th 10 B2 r
RBNEFEEREMM2RE, ZRRABERER
-

NEE-REERERRSHNEEMNANF7HE
180HAF, UTHRIRBEFRBHM NSRS H
TRE B 57 & T IR B AR B AT

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEERT BEET

0 to 30 days OZE30H 1,028.9 984.1
31to 90 days 31Z90H 7.5 34
91 to 180 days 91%&180H 4.2 2.0
Over 180 days 180 B IA L 0.6 3.1
1,041.2 992.6
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES conminuep)

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

26. & 5y o H A AT 3R TE (s

REBEERB T ERBEECHANRE !

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BERET
Contract liabilities: GHRIAE .
Customer loyalty programme EERHE S 395.4 360.0
Receipts in advance T8 I FR I8 1,752.8 1,778.4
2,148.2 2,138.4
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied TEREIRENEATERER
performance obligations:
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BEET
Expected to be recognised within one year T HA S — 4 N 7 58 1,752.5 1,854.4
Expected to be recognised after one year TEHARS — F &2 T 3R 395.7 284.0
2,148.2 21384

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to

performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

TEREINBFINSHNEEARNRS PRI E
FREHRURMRBEFEEENNBASEZEEH

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEREET BEET

Revenue recognised that was included in STAFYIGHIABEEHRMAERR
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year:

— Customer loyalty programme - BEFBWESE 360.0 335.4

— Receipts in advance - Bl Ig 1,410.8 15384

1,770.8 1,873.8
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27.

BANK BORROWINGS

Accounting Policy

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the

period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,

is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

27.

AT H X

fratEcR
BERRANNAEARE(OREEETRZ R )iE

o BEREZ RN KGE, WHORZZ K
ZEFMEARIREREOSHRLEEZR, MRER
HRAERANRERES NSRS, EERRA D]
REEPN N EEPIRIHIBER T, MR E M EST
THERNERRERZAMR, EIFELT,
Z B FR IR E = 2 B G KB AR B, AR IR R
TEZERREAETEB A EWRNHFRLT, Z
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S ELAE A Rl & HA RS P 7 LA R

ECHAPEENREMBRER. BUHERE, B85
G BRERP AR, 2IHREEGS —
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FEMIFR £ EEZY FRENEE )2 BHEH,
{8 7 O T AR 4 Al E Y AR o

BN BRRENBE, AN B R ER
RBEREZEELEEERSHERD> T —EHR
BRIk o

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Unsecured bank loans ERITER
The carrying amounts are repayable *: RREER TIIHARE R
Within one year —FN 793.6 4,366.8
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLALE, BABIRWE 3,342.3 1882
two years
More than two years, but not exceeding mAELA L, B8R0 F - 1,299.9
five years
4,135.9 5,854.9
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements 2 HA TR IR T LA B K 174 5 P 6 51 &1 30 B B 4 1R iR o
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranging from IRITERIEHFEMNMESTE, FAXRRZTEBIRITRE

234

0.7% to 0.8% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR")
or fixed interest rate at 3.8% (2023: 0.6% to 0.8% over HIBOR)

per annum.
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (conTinuED)

As at 31 March 2024, the range of interest rates on the bank
borrowings were 3.8% to 5.6% (2023: 3.8% to 4.2%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated

in the following currency:

27.

RATE Km0

[20243H31H, ARRTERNFENRNF
3.8%%E5.6%(20234F : 3.8%F4.2% )o

IRTERREER A TERE :

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEX BEBET

BT 2,536.8 5,854.9
AR 1,599.1 -
4135.9 5,854.9

28. GOLD LOANS

Accounting Policy

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the gold loans
form part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold are

classified as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value

gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

28.

wma i E

AP EUR
MUEEEENEEEEEREARE AR
HEMBE, IaEEEEANEE —EXZ@E
RALMTETREZGHEN. FUNEREEEIR
HEEEENBRARARET ABRENE &,

EEEENNEYEERFTRETRNER. R
R R m R R E A R E s B R IF R A B
EEAORLEERERNES.

or loss does not include any interest charged on these

liabilities.

ENEEBEENERARESFESESHEBIK
BB, ZREANERITER, MEMKIEER

Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in

gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent

borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged to = BB,
gold prices.
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BEET
Financial liabilities at fair value BARESFAEZNERMEAE
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BIANESEEN=EE 4,760.7 2,347.9
Liabilities at fair value through BAREFABEZNEE
profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold FUEREEEEENESEE 19,7271 12,737.7
24,487.8 15,085.6
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28. GOLD LOANS (continuED)

As at 31 March 2024, the gold loans carried fixed interest rates
of 0.8% to 2.0% (2023: 0.8% to 1.9%) per annum, with original
maturity of 2 to 6 months (2023: 2 to é months) from date of

inception.

The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the

following currencies:

28 HEEMEE @)

12202456 3A31H, EEEERFMNE08%E2.0%
(20234 : 0.8%ZE1.9% )ME EFFE5TR, REH

HaEtraR2ZE6M@AH(2023

ﬂi 5 2261@% )o

EREEQAREBERIUNTERE

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEx BEET
Us$ ETT 4,760.7 2,347.9
RMB NG 19,727 1 12,7377
24,487.8 15,085.6

Movement in gold loans: REEEZEE
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERX BEET
At 1 April R4818 15,085.6 15,720.6
Currency realignment B MR R (436.4) (928.7)
Net drawdown/ (repayment) of gold loans NEEEEFERN/ (EE)K 6,996.9 (295.2)

by physical gold inventories EEREEFE

Repayment of gold loans by cash NIRSEENE=2EE (915.7) (957.1)
Fair value loss arising from gold loans EEEENANRBEEE 3,757.4 1,546.0
At 31 March R3IA31H 24,487.8 15,085.6

236 Financials
B %

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

BEAXEREREERAE



29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. kA&

Accounting Policy AT BUR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs SRR ERED, BB ATHARYERE
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are 5| 302 i 18 AY 7N TE #E 2 o 51| 7% P S SR IR 2 R (40
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. BRAZIE )o
2024 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
213 8 H &8 Biz&E &8
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET
Authorised ordinary shares of EEEBREEI1EITZ 50,000,000,000 50,000.0  50,000,000,000 50,000.0
HK$1 each: TE A

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares BEZE{TNRHAEEREE

of HK$1 each: 1Tz EEE

At 1 April R4818 10,000,000,000 10,000.0 10,000,000,000 10,000.0
Cancellation of buy-back of shares =1 88 (o] B8 A% 1y (12,263,200) (12.3) = =
At 31 March R3H31H 9,987,736,800 9,987.7  10,000,000,000 10,000.0
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company bought HZE2024F3HNBUEFE, KAsallLAGERN T
back and cancelled a total of 12,263,200 shares at an aggregate 1012 TEN 28T, BAGEKIOBKRMASZ)
consideration (before expenses) of HK$134.3 million on the 13438 BB TR B oBELETEHEG R
Stock Exchange at share price ranging from HK$10.12 to 12,263,200%, # £2023F383MHIEFE,
HK$11.28. There was no change in the Company's authorised, NEIZEE . BT EUE I A A 58
issued and fully paid capital during the year ended 31 March
2023.
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within six months to five years. The leases have varying terms,

escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of

the leases are renegotiated.

30. HH &K

A AR AR RLA
REEREF TN EE AT AES AT E
B MAERBE, BERIUEREREMER.
ZEBEEARNKR. NBRRRESER, @i
B, AEHREERERE.

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Minimum lease payments under TR IR B R 2 e 50 8 B HH AR D =
non-cancellable operating leases of IRIE A O] 3 (S EFEE
rented premises not recognised in REEEMRIDT :
the financial statements are as follows:
Within one year — &N 30.1 31.6

The Group as lessor

The investment properties are leased to tenants under leases

with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing

arrangements, refer to note 16.

A B2 B AE 2 AL

REVMFREEHESETEE, EATERER,
BRBESZHINEE, F2RME 16,

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of HEREMFENREBWESTRUOT :

investment properties are as follows:

Within one year —F RN 19.8 19.2
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEFLF(OEEREME) 5.0 24.0
24.8 432

31.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31 BEARKIE
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BRET BERET
Capital expenditure contracted but not TUCEEME. BB KRR FHEEEFTH{ER 1.7 137.0

provided for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

A= B2
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32.

33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt

and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings,
gold loans and equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained

profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings

and gold loans.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Policy

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income ("OCI")

or through profit or loss); and
those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair

value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Debt investments are reclassified when and only when
the Group's business model for managing those assets

changes.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

240

Accounting Policy (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains and losses in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

Accounting Policy (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

De

bt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends

on

the Group's business model for managing the asset

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are

three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Annual Report 2024
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains and losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains
and losses. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains and
losses and impairment expenses are presented as

separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains

and losses in the period in which it arises.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

242

Accounting Policy (Continued)

(d)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether

there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial

recognition of the receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime expected credit losses.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or the
proceeds receivables are not settled in accordance with
the terms stipulated in the agreements, management
considers these receivables as underperforming or non-
performing and impairment is measured as lifetime

expected credit loss.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNnuED) 33. &/ L Hwo
The Group holds the following financial instruments: KREBFEINTERM TR
Categories of financial instruments S i T 2 il
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
15 188 84 RY 2N 51 2 EAanEEN
tHEE/(BE) =MEER/(ABfE) @st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET BEET
As 31 March 2024 k2024 3H31H
Financial assets eEE
Financial assets at fair value RARETABTZHERE ZE - 62.9 62.9
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates JE U B S N T 18 4.7 - 1.7
Amounts due from non-controlling JE ST B B8 2 S JE 15 AR AR SR AR 18 41 - 41
shareholders of subsidiaries
Loan receivables JEWE R 8.6 - 8.6
Deposits =30 ?ﬁﬁ 237.2 - 237.2
Trade and other receivables B 5 K Eih fiE 5L 18 3,528.3 - 3,528.3
Cash and cash equivalents HEaERIEREEM 7,695.4 - 7,695.4
Total financial assets TREERE 11,515.3 62.9 11,578.2
Financial liabilities TRHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAh fE {7 I8 (26,053.9) - (26,053.9)
Amounts due to associates Jfﬁ iR /NS E I | (2.1) - (2.1)
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1 Bfit J&8 2 Sl AE 15 RS A% FR SR 18 (152.1) - (152.1)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings RITER (4,135.9) - (4,135.9)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUREEENEEEE - (4,760.7) (4,760.7)
Lease liabilities HEaE (1,267.2) - (1,267.2)
Total financial liabilities TRBERAE (31,611.2) (4,760.7) (36,371.9)
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
152 186 8 R AN 5T E MO BAREGEMN
sREE/(BE) =REE/(2fE) @5t
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET EE:E BRET
As 31 March 2023 k2023 3A31H
Financial assets 2RlEE
Financial assets at fair value YARBEStABENEMEE - 64.6 64.6
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates FE S B S )\ SR 1B 53.0 - 53.0
Loan receivables &S & 7R 105 = 105
Deposits Eftigs 201.8 = 201.8
Trade and other receivables B 7 K HAthFE WFRIR 3,516.4 = 35164
Short-term bank deposits FEHAER AT 7 7K 388 - 38.8
Cash and cash equivalents HERIEEEB 11,695.0 = 11,695.0
Total financial assets TREERE 15,515.5 64.6 15,580.1
Financial liabilities TREE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A E T R IE (25,724.2) = (25,724.2)
Amounts due to non-controlling FET B /&8 2\ Sl JE 1T AR AR SR 7R 1B (52.4) - (52.4)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings RITER (5,854.9) - (5,854.9)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BAESEEN=SEE = (2,347.9) (2,347.9)
Lease liabilities HEaE (1165.7) - (1,165.7)
Total financial liabilities TRIBERE (32,797.2) (2,347.9) (35,145.1)
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33

244

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVPL, amounts due from associates, loan receivables, trade
and other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings, gold loans to be
repaid by cash and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables, gold loans
and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not have any

instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank balances and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate risk

should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk are considered

insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

Certain Group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective functional
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the foreign
currency risk is insignificant considering the related sales and
purchases to the total sales and purchases of the Group. The
majority of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary
items are cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB,
which are held by Group entities whose functional currencies
are not RMB, with carrying amounts of HK$1,041.6 million (2023:
HK$133.5 million). In addition, certain Group entities whose
functional currency is HK$, have intra-group advances from/ to

their subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars
("US$") and RMB, which are arising from relevant Group entities'
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities

for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the
management monitors the related foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise. At 31 March 2024, the Group's
entities with functional currency of HK$ had aggregate RMB
net monetary liabilities of HK$1,423.5 million (2023: assets of
HK$1,117.7 million). If HK$ had strengthened/ weakened by 5%
(2023: 5%) against RMB with all other variables unchanged, the
Group's profit before taxation would have been HK$71.2 million
higher/ lower (2023: HK$55.9 million lower/ higher).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency

risk of US$ is considered insignificant.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline in
prices of gold could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in
the gold price on gold inventory. Should the gold price go up,
the Group would charge a loss representing the increase in
gold price compared to the contract price, and largely net
against the increase in revenue of gold products as a result of
gold price increase. Gold loans are settled at maturity which is
usually in 1 to 6 months from date of inception and any fair

value change is immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commaodity price risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, profit after taxation for the year would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$2,370.2 million
(2023: HK$1,469.8 million) due to changes in fair values of gold
loans. On the other hand, the gold inventory would not be
revalued at market price as it is measured at weighted average
cost, unless an impairment indicator exists. The changes in fair
value of gold loans would be partly offset by the realised gain

or loss impact on gold inventory in future sales.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken

to recover overdue debts.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the provision

of service; and

debt investments carried at amortised cost, including other
receivables, amounts due from associates and loan

receivables

While cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits
are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial as such amounts are

placed in banks with good reputation.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD) 33. 4l T H
% &Jﬁl[‘ﬁﬁ PR H R K R

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERME)

Trade receivables B 5 KGR IE

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring REEEfERAR PR ERS ST ERIE IR 2B
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss EEtERGEEREE, ZRNGEBEEK AN
allowance for all trade receivables. IR B AR T A B 7 KK IH,.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have RITERPEEREE, BEZBUAEEREBEE=ZE
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and & B 1Rz i HA B BUE 1T 2 4

the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the aging of gross trade TEHEIEETIRIE N AL 2024 3 H31H8Y 2023
receivables over a period of 12 month before 31 March 2024 or F3H 31811218 A HA & & 7 &SGR IR R E B AR
31 March 2023 respectively and the corresponding historical IBRIANGEENBEEERGEREE '%ﬁo B 1t e
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss FEMFRABURRZES FEMERRIRE NN
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking BT IR R E( ﬂ%f’f“ﬂmiﬁhﬁmii&@] )z Bl
information on macroeconomic factors, including significant RATEEER . 4K B E 5 E KGR 258 Al & &
changes in external market indicators, affecting the ability of MR R, BI1E%EZ%ER RN TSR
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified B/,

the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical

loss rates based on expected changes in these factors for trade

receivables.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2024 and 31 Kk, RR2024%F3H31H R 2023F3H31HKE
March 2023 was determined as follows: BEEDT
Aging analysis
BRE AT
0 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
0%308 31E90H 91E180H #i@180 8 st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
As of 31 March 2024 k2024 3A31H
Expected loss rate T8 HA B 1B = 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 77.1%
Gross carrying amount FRE4RE 2,471.0 390.2 28.7 29.2 2,9191
Loss allowance ERia Rt - - - 22.5 22.5
As of 31 March 2023 k2023 3H31H
Expected loss rate T8 HA B 1R = 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.5%
Gross carrying amount FRE4RE 3,027.9 144.4 243 314 3,228.0
Loss allowance iRt - - - 14.6 14.6
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33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (c

Trade receivables (Continued)

ontinued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March are

reconciled to the opening loss allowances as follows:

S,

B H R BUR (s

EEREKEE®)

B 5B RIS (4 )
SHIIHEZEWFIE ISR HE Y EEREN
HARWT -

2024 2023

HK$ million HK$ million

BRET BRET

At 1 April R481H 14.6 68.5
Currency realignment & s o B (0.5) (4.9)
Loss allowance recognised/ (written back) BiERE R/ (#E) 8.4 (1.9)
Loss allowance written off 18 1% i 2 HildH - (47.1)
At 31 March MR3HA31H 225 14.6

248

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of

a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

against the same line item.

Debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was limited to 12 months,
expected losses unless significant increase in credit risk. Debt
investments are considered to be low credit risk where they
have a low risk of default and the counterparty has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the

near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a number

of counterparties.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short and medium-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted
and actual cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial

liabilities.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal

3.

4 b T Boa0)
o L o s P R R BUOR (@)

TENE £ = &
KAEBEREBEERATNESENGHEDHE S AR
NESEEATREUBENRBIE MK ERE
W, REBEBEERFRTMEUARSERREAR
BERRETRERESMBEZAHER, EERH
=il

TRAENKEZEMBEER TESHARAE Z2H B
ZRBREFIEEIRERIMEMBEEZERH
HmE, URNEMBEZRBRESRE, 2%
BEBNERAERERE,

cash flows.
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to5years Over5 years cash flows amount
iE  REKRE RERESE
FER 2 AR EAE1FE 1E5%F 527 REREH IREE
% HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEERT BEET
At 31 March 2024 fR20246 3R 318
Trade and other payables BAREMfE R IIE - 26,053.9 - - - 26,053.9 26,053.9
Amounts due to associates fEfTEE = 2N Bt - 21 - - - 21 21
Amounts due to non-controlling EfTH B A T ER - 152.1 - - - 152.1 152.1
shareholders of subsidiaries BRNIA
Bank borrowings RITER 4.9% - 816.0 3,580.3 - 4396.3 41359
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUREEENESRE 0.9% 47664 - - - 47664 47607
Lease liabilities HEGE 3.0% 167.1 5185 622.3 14.8 13227 1,267.2
31141.6 1,3345 4,202.6 14.8 36,6935 36,371.9
At 31 March 2023 fR20233R31H
Trade and other payables B E M fEFIE - 25,7242 - - - 257242 25,7242
Amounts due to non-controlling JEfH It B SR - 524 - - - 524 524
shareholders of subsidiaries BRHAIA
Bank borrowings RITER 40% 33896 1,019.6 16139 - 6,0231 58549
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUREBENESEE 10% 23505 - - - 23505 23479
Lease liabilities HEBRE 32% 158.3 479 5804 04 1,210 11657
31,6750 14915 21943 04 35,3612 35,1451
Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to change if (i) WHERSHRNZEANZSINEGRREEENF LGS, LIFERIRITER
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at 15 B BUER Y B e
the end of the reporting period.
(i) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price of gold (i) EefEENEHESRESREMGEEZEEMRBARBEBEE,

traded in active liquid markets.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueD)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting and enforceable netting arrangements or

similar agreements

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised

financial assets and recognised financial liabilities that:

(1) are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of

financial position; or

(2) are subject to an enforceable master netting

arrangements or similar agreements that covers similar

financial instruments, irrespective of whether they are

offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position.

33. &M T H

(i\uﬁﬁhﬁﬁ

SO #HH, TRHENTERSATS

i Ei‘“ﬁ&ﬁ%w)

HE2¥ 48

UinZEARRNEMEEREMBE

THRITEHEEIAZEMEEREMEBZRA

B, EER

(1) REEZE

(2) ZEEHRMUEHT OO SEHRITER
5T 5 57 HF 5V 48 104 197 5 P AR BR( A 3 2

BEREMBE :

B4R G IR IR IR R E 8 )o

U PNV ki I

e
A

PaN
[}
BERSE

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
assets/ (liabilities)

Gross amounts
offset in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position

Net amounts
presented in the
consolidated
statement of
financial position

BEfEZZ Riza 2IRESE
SMEE/ BRI & BRI &
(BfE)z@EHE Hiz@EE 238
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET
As 31 March 2024 k20245 3A31H
Financial assets SRIEE
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 2,016.7 (1,987.9) 28.8
Amounts due from non-controlling JE STt J8 22 Bl AR AR AR SRR IR 10.8 (6.7) 4.1
shareholders of subsidiaries
Financial liabilities SRIEME
Deposits received from franchisees EpEELEEGECES (23,517.9) 1,987.9 (21,530.0)
Amounts due to non-controlling A NG E R 238 S N (158.8) 6.7 (152.1)
shareholders of subsidiaries
As 31 March 2023 20235 3H31H
Financial assets tREE
Trade receivables Y AVENE] 11265 (1126.5) =
Financial liabilities tRaE
Deposits received from franchisees B /10 B8 7 W B A 4 (22,533.9) 1,126.5 (21,407 4)

The Group has enforceable right and intends to offset the trade

receivables against deposits received from franchisees.
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

()

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group's assets and
liabilities measured at the end of the reporting period at
fair value, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

34. ~fEEE

(a)

AP S
TRIRTREERRSHRUALREE
HEERER, UEKERIBRS T
AIZE1358 [ AEtE | IREN =EQnE
BHnE. 2nEFENERIREESE
T I G 1B 2 94 o 1 A B A & R B O] B R
RESGHEEER

E—cMASBENERRSEORIER
MG IAESEEME E A & 2 R
HwE

EMm MABIENE —RIREI, O
RIEERYBEEREETBEMBEHZ
AR ; &

B MASURNIIFO IRIEBREZE

or liability. YEEMREEZmASIE,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bk BIHR B=R @5t
Notes HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
i3 BERET BEET BEET BEET
Recurring fair value measurement BEEAAESE
At 31 March 2024 k2024 3H31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value KA ETTAEBTER - - 62.9 62.9
through profit or loss ERE E
Liabilities afs
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BARSEENZSEES 28 - 4,760.7 - 4,760.7
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BULEEEEEIEN 28 - 19,7271 - 19,7271
=EEE
At 31 March 2023 k20233 H31H
Asset =13
Financial assets at fair value KA Bt ABREN - - 64.6 64.6
through profit or loss ER0EE
Liabilities =1
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BAREEEN=sEES 28 - 2,347.9 - 2,347.9
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold HIABREEEEN 28 - 12,737.7 - 12,737.7
BHEEGE
During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no BHE2024F3HNBILEFE, F—HREET

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2023: nil).

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuep)

(b)

Valuation techniques used to determine Level 2
fair values

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid

markets as a key input.

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 items
for the periods ended 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023:

34. A RMEEE 80

(b)

PR 78 2 25 2% SR Y il (E 40
SEEZARBERMBRE SR EEE
, RP2RESREMFEEZ HE M5
AR A ESHABE,

0 OB

\

T E R A A o A R 2 8 A2
fHarE (R =5
TREFBIEAABS BNAE 2024438
31B R 20234 3A31 B L HMBE=MEE
wEhE -

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BREET BEREET

Unlisted equity securities JE LR EES
At 1 April R4H18 64.6 295
Currency realignment B (1.7) (1.0)
Acquisitions K7 5 - 361
At 31 March R3A31H 62.9 64.6

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under
Level 3 is determined using valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining
the fair value, specific valuation techniques are used with
reference to inputs such as profit forecast, dividend
stream and other specific input relevant to those

particular financial assets.

Financial instruments that are not measured at
fair value

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

35. Bl ¥ i B E AR Y A B EHIR

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in

the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from

financing activities.

TRANNEKEMETHMELENREES, Ho
BERERFREEH, METHEENREER

BEREE2&(IRRETRENE )RRNEKEK4LR
CHERERNEAMETIMEREREZRE,

Amounts Dividends Interest
due to non- payable payables
controlling (included (included
shareholders in trade in trade
Bank of and other and other Lease
borrowings Gold loans  subsidiaries payables) payables) liabilities Total
JEfT EfTRR BRI
ME2E (StABZ:  (GHAES
EER RE(Mh RE(h
RITEMN BefeHE RRAE BAREAR) BIKXER) HEaE st
Note 27 Note 28 Note 24 Note 26 Note 26 Note 15
Bt EF 27 Bt 5F 28 Pt sE 24 Pt sk 26 PitsE 26 BigE15
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
BHRERL BEET BEET BEET BEAET BERET HERET
At 1 April 2022 k20225 4H18 9,0645 15,720.6 63.8 - 90.1 11945 26,1335
Financing cash flows MERETRE (3,215.7) (957.1) (6.7) (5,079.4) (561.3) (9531)  (10,773.3)
Interest expenses MEMZ - - = = 546.2 392 585.4
Foreign exchange translation INERE — (928.7) 4.7) - - (35.2) (968.6)
Dividends declared SIREE - - - 50794 - = 5,079.4
Fair value loss of gold loans BEEEELALEERE = 1,546.0 = = = = 1,546.0
Other non-cash movements HihIFIR £ & &) 6.1 (295.2)* = = 6.) 920.3 6251
At 31 March 2023 k2023 3H31H 5,854.9 15,085.6 52.4 - 68.9 1,165.7 22,227.5
Financing cash flows AMERERE (1,749.3) (915.7) (10.3) (12,537.5) (615.1) (892.7)  (16,720.6)
Interest expenses Al BB SZ - - - - 654.1 50.5 704.6
Foreign exchange translation INERE 26.4 (436.4) (1.7) - - (22.8) (434.5)
Dividends declared SIREE - - - 125375 - - 12,5375
Fair value loss of gold loans EafEE nEEE - 3,757.4 - - - - 3,757.4
Other non-cash movements HhIEIR & & &) 3.9 6,996.9* - - (3.9) 966.5 7,963.4
At 31 March 2024 k20245 3H31H 4,135.9 24,487.8 40.4 - 104.0 1,267.2  30,035.3

The amounts represented the net effect of the drawdown/(repayment) of gold loans from

gold inventories on hand.
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Accounting Policy

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms approximating the terms of the related
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

Service cost and net interest cost on the net defined benefit
liability are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by
function as part of "selling and distribution costs" or "general
and administrative expenses". Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are

recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Financials
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees' final salary and years of services. The Group does

not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out in March 2024 by BonVision International Appraisals
Limited ("BonVision"), an independent qualified professional
valuer, using the projected unit credit method. The
principal place of business of BonVision is Room 1205-06, 12/F.,
Tai Yau Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on the
results of the valuation are discount rate, retirement age,

turnover rate, mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

30.

1B R A ) A )

R HA e A AT

5% F I & 2 5 B 1R 1995 28 A A0 A 3% 2 il R
SIH (R BIE R EFRINE BRI o 8 113X IHUR R
REBENFH S RREFEY, AEELRBFED
& IS 11 BRI

=
D)

N

%
0l

[==3

IRiFZstEl, BERFESEIEME FRILDE
RMEFRBENTFRERHFE25%E40% ZHIRIN
To R ERHEMBINERERN. RILKIESR
BAAEHEREGENR2024F30HBEIS
BEREXGEMNZRERFGEERAS 2R K
ARt ENERAET. ZRONESERME RS

‘ﬁ*@aii;ﬁllﬁWm%FiﬁXV12$§W205-06§o

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Turnover rate

HEEGREEZENRR MR R RINER.
FEE FTREHFENTIE.
P AE £ SHEERROT -
2024 2023
IR = 3.5% 3.1%
TEHA R S 10t = 2.0% 2.0%
EE kS 0.0% 0.0%

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the defined

benefit scheme are as follows:

IE
B

BE A st Bl iR iR S 1R 1 & HL R % [ U o 2R B 50

RIRUDF

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Current service cost 13 BF AR 755 A 7K 1.6 1.6
Interest on obligation EERRR 6.4 7:3
Components of defined benefits R 18 % T 50 00 E Ba 4B A BB oy 8.0 8.9
recognised in profit or loss
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme ﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁ KT 25 e 57 B X2 R
recognised in other comprehensive income: BRI EIEHHTE -
Actuarial gain arising from changes in U 1R 3% oS 48 P /2 2 1) (8.8) (51.5)
financial assumptions KB E U &
Total ke (0.8) (42.6)
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 36. 1B R AR A AR o
(CONTINUED)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) E FR AR A B a0
The current service costs and interest on obligation for the years B E 2024 F K% 2023 4 3 A 31 B LEF E 511 65 AR 5
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 are included in "selling and MR AERAN SRS BNE SRS Al HER
distribution costs" and "general and administrative expenses" NIRRT —RRERITERAX |18,
depending on the respective employee's function.
The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the years B E2024%F % 202343318 ILFEEHEEEA
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 is included in other stElEmstEst AR MM E A,
comprehensive income.
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit FRANFREREEEIOT
obligations are as follows:
2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREET BEET
At 1 April R4H18 185.2 2391
Service costs IR AY A 1.6 16
Interest costs NS PN 6.4 7.3
Actuarial gain 158 I = (8.8) (51.5)
Benefits paid EX &R (11.1) (11.3)
At 31 March R3A31H 173.3 185.2
Defined contribution scheme JE BRI
The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which R E 2 2 AR R T 8 0 1R 5T S 5% 51 5 it 60 &
are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement BAALFRET B[ B 5 1B ST B % 51 51 81 1) K2 8 2000
Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme") and a Mandatory F12 ARE T B 58§ M FE < R 51 Ay 1280 58 & A
Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme") established under Baatal(] BEEstE ]), 25T EERNER
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in FEENREE, HBEISFEARHNESTEA,
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately JLTR AY 17 58 78 <& 5t 31 5l 2 2 B2 B 5% 18 5T 8118 51 5t
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of B B0 1 5 O] 122 12 4 48 BA A T 35 AR ST 14 1 5t Sl 5Y
independent trustees. Employees who were members of the @ﬂﬂ WwiEaEstEl, MATAER2000F1281HE 2

256

ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

Financials
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36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Defined contribution scheme (Continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of

contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company's subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension schemes
operated by local government of Mainland China and the
Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of the
relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to the pension
schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary in Macau is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to

make the required contribution under the schemes.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)  Share award scheme
Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 7 July 2023,
the Board approved the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme, under which shares of the Company may be
awarded to certain Directors and members of senior
management in Board or the Remuneration Committee's
discretion. The Share Award Scheme operates for 10
years starting from 7 July 2023. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to any grantee under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The share awards are to
be vested subject to the fulfilment of certain

performance targets.

The Company may allot and issue new shares to the
grantee directly; and/ or appoint any trustee for the
purpose of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company's shares for the Share Award Scheme. The total
number of shares to be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is limited to 5% of the issued share capital of the

Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no share was
acquired by the Company for the Share Award Scheme.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continuep) 37. Bty 3 a0

(a)  Share award scheme (Continued) (a) JBcHy B 8N &t # a0
Movements in the number of share awards: RINIEEE B .
Number of
share awards
B2 17 32 BN 8L B
2024
At 1 April R4H18 -
Granted (Note) EEHHME) 2,118,200
At 31 March R3A31H 2,118,200
Note:  The fair value of share awards was determined with reference to market price Mgt : KRABEKARENZSZERASRHKRELEBHAHEREE,
of the Company's shares at the grant date. Average fair value per share was BREANREA12.68 BT,
HK$12.68
Details of the share awards outstanding as at 31 March BE2024F3H31H, BRITEKR DR
2024 were set out as follows: BN
Number of share awards
iR E RS E
Average Granted
fair value At 1 April during At 31 March
Date of grant per share ~ Vesting period * 2023 the year 2024
BRTE iR 2023 5 fik 2024 5
et =g AnE  EEH 4H18 FREETH 3A31H
HK$
BT
10 August 2023 12.68 10 August 2023 to 1 July 2026 - 2,118,200 2,118,200
2023 8H10H 2023F8H10HZE20265F7H1H
The period during which all the specific vesting conditions of the share awards are * TE A A% 17 22 @) PiT 75 45 E B B 1R 1R B A R
to be satisfied
Total expenses arising from share-based payment FANERREEEBMNFZ A BLARG R
transactions recognised during the year as part of HERNTARZMELNFHZBZRWNT
employee benefit expense were as follows:
2024
HK$ million
BEET
Expenses recognised by share award scheme B% 1) 242 Jan 5t Bt 5% 4% B 52 6.0
258 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continuep)

(b)

Share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 28 July
2021, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
"Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of attracting
skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to
remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for
the future development and expansion of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options
to directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors), the
directors of the subsidiaries and the employees of the
Group and any other persons (including consultants or
advisers) who the directors of the Company consider, in
its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute

to the Group (the "Participants").

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 28 July 2021. An
offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a
Participant by a notice of grant requiring the Participant
to undertake to hold the option on the terms on which it
is to be granted (which may include a minimum period for
which the option must be held before it can be exercised
and a performance target that must be reached before
the option can be exercised in whole or in part) and to be
bound by the terms of the Share Option Scheme. An
offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be accepted
by the Participant (the "Grantee") when the Company
receives from the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant
duly signed by the Grantee. An offer may be accepted or
deemed to have been accepted in respect of less than
the number of shares in respect of which it is offered,
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot or
an integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the
Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an option. The
offer shall remain open for acceptance for such time to
be determined by the directors of the Company, provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the
termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer
is made has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent
that the offer is not accepted within the time period and
in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be

deemed to have been irrevocably declined.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continuep)

260

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's share
on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
share options were granted by the Company nor were
there any share options of the Company outstanding.
Such scheme was terminated with effect from 7 July
2023.

Share appreciation rights

The Company issued to the directors and certain
employees share appreciation rights (the "SARs") that
the Company would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs
in cash to the directors and certain employees as part
of the discretionary bonus. The amount payable will be
determined based on the earnings per shares and share
price of the Company. The rights must be exercised on
vesting date and will expire if not exercised on that date.
There were no (2023: 21,830,000 units) SAR granted and
28,628,000 units (2023: 16,926,000 units) were vested
during the year. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount
of liability included in other payables is HK$29.5 million
(2023: HK$219.6 million).

Financials
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Recurring transactions
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party

transactions during the year:

58 15 5 5 5

(a) KEHMER )
RESHBREANE MBI RENRS RS
B®ob, REEERE NI FIEABIS -

2024 2023
Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ million HK$ million
B 1% ZHTE BEET BERET
Entities in which certain Concessionaire fees in department stores 36.0 361
directors * of the Company BEQSIEEN N
have beneficial interests Right-of-use assets 215.3 70.0
RKABlETES ARG EREEE
e B R Lease expenses 24.1 25.3
&R
Purchase of goods and commission expenses 0.2 55
i B oo R A& B 2
Purchase of equipment 1.3 20.1
EERHE
Marking fee 37.2 83.4
Sac & A
Service fees and income from customer 34.8 23.8
|oya|ty programmes
R FT B0 AR TS B R UTA
Non-controlling shareholders Concessionaire fees in department stores 2.7 32
of subsidiaries BELTIEEN N
Bff J&8 22 B1 FF 4% A A ER Franchise sales 169.0 155
0 B3 38 &
Entities in which a close family Engineering services fee 3.6 7.7
member of certain directors * TRERKE
of the Company has control
KRB ETES  HIEREE
Y BHEA TSN E R
Directors and a close family Sales of goods 9.0 27.2

members of certain directors * i € 7 oo
EERGETESF NOEBERENE

The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material

interest at any time during the year.

(b)  Key management compensation
Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the

Company as disclosed in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

39. AN E EEME A A
TFIARBSHARATESH AT 251 -

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
SEMREIL/ BRI E ERTRAERK/ RAB G BEAE
B & A BB 1 RBH SEMER/ BREER 1E & L TEFRHK TEERME
2024 2023
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100%  Investment holding Hong Kong
BEXARAE 20 June 2011 Us$1 REER BE
AEGEARES R AR
20114 6H208 E
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond Hong Kong
BNEZERAE 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 BOBE 55
BB 2R LN
2008 1H10H 10,000 &7t
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 hEERHE Bl
BAABHREETERAS El5 TR R
1961F3H 68 350,000,000 7t
CTF Jewellery Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
AXBHRE(EN} ERAE 21 March 2018 HK$1 and provision of services &t
BB SER R to franchisees
20185 3A21H 1B hEERHERRE
FR 7% 7 N0 B2 7
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of watches Hong Kong
BXEER(SE)ARLE 7 February 2011 HK$1 BIRIHE &
BB TR R
20114 2H78H TRX
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of gemstones, Hong Kong
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery products &
ENERREGRAT Eli5 B R 7R and investment holding
2005 5H 268 5,000,000 7T REED. KEER
HEURRERR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products Macau
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 hEERHE 1Y
BRBHREBFE(RM )ARLE P AR
200937178 5,000,000 /27T
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC The United States Capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products The United States
of America US$74,468,737 HEERHE of America
14 May 2001 B ES
ESE] 74,468,737 %L
200158148
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services us]
ItRBAXEHREERTARLT TE" &R to franchisees
2006114138 30,000,000 %7t HEERHSRER
FR 7% 7 N0 R 7
Chongging Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of watches PRC
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 BERHE t
EERAGERHERRAT hE- s E R

20084 12H25H

AE#10,000,0007T
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

30. AR\ A EEME A F s

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
SEMALL/ BRI R ERTRAMERDR/ RAB GG E
MELEBHE RBH EMER/ REER 1 & L TEXRB TEERME
2024 2023
Chongging Flamingo Watches PRC* Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BIRIHE )
EEEASERGRAE hE- EaiiE=Ri
20084 12H25H AE#1,000,000 7T
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 BIRHE th
BEMAEBERARAT hE: &R
201348 H 28 AR10,000,000 7
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
(Chongging) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services h
BAABKEET(EE )ARAT HE" &R to franchisees
20084 12H23H 30,000,000 £ 7T BEERASER
RERBFINER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang) PRC* Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 and provision of services us]
BRRBHREET( &R ))ARAE hE- &R to franchisees
201418208 AE#20,000,0007T KEERHER
RERBFINER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of PRC
Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$500,000,000 jewellery products th
BABHREET(RIARAE " EaiiE=RiN hEEREERME
2002 4H2H 500,000,000 %7t
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services th
BXBHREET(HM)BRAE hE" EiiEp to franchisees
2006 F 1118 30,000,000 & T KEERHER
R LR 7 10 22 7
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services th
BAXBHREET(®IE)BRAE hE" EiiEpi to franchisees
20084 1H29H 30,000,000 & T KEERHER
R AR T 10 82 7
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 US$140,000,000 products =s]
Company Limited hE" &R KEERLEE
BB E L ERE(EE ) 20124 8H16H 140,000,000 £ 7T
ARAE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 RMB65,723,500 hEERAE thE
Company Limited - ER3=F

BAXBHREZTRRBRINE
BRLE

201054 H 218

AR#65,723,5007T
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

390. AR, a] EEMHE A F s

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
SEMALI/ BRI R ERTRMERA/ RAB G E
B & 22 Bl B 7 RBH EMER/ REER 1 L TEXRHK TEERME
2024 2023
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 products us]
13 L) 7 I (2 A8 R RIS PE" FaE=RiN hEEREE
AIRAE 2007%3H14H 10,639,400 &7t
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 products th
HIUBIEREENEEERAT HE" ERiR=pi KEEREE
1988 € 11H 9 H 18,000,000 £t
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 and provision of services us]
BEREAXBHREZTARLTD HE" S E R to franchisees
2007128108 30,000,000 £ 7T KEERHER
REURE P I0RE
Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Jewellery Manufacturing 30 July 2014 RMB60,000,000 products th
Company Limited hE- S E R hEERLE
B IREE KBk ERIEERATE 2014%7H308 AE# 60,000,000z
Jinan Fudonglin Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 September 2005 RMB2,000,000 and provision of services th
FraRRERETTERAE - &R to franchisees
2005%9A2H AR#2,000,0007T HEERHERER
FR #1082 7
Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 February 2013 HK$60,000,000 and provision of services th
reRXBHREEMEIRAE HE" &R to franchisees
20134 2H 268 60,000,000 & T BERHEER
SRR T 0 A
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 60% 60% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB10,000,000 BERHEE th
LEREAABHREGRAE hE: &R
200041858 AR#10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 31 October 2016 US$10,000,000 hEEMEE th
RYEEEAABHREZTARAQT hE" FaA=RiN
20165108318 10,000,000 %t
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 5 March 2012 RMB50,000,000 products th
RYITEAXBHREHREFRAE E- ERiR=pi KEERLEE
201243858 AR50,000,000 7
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online PRC* Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Media Company Limited 5 January 2017 RMB5,000,000 HEERHE PE
RIEARBERERERLE hE" FaA=RiN
201751858 AE#5,000,000 7T
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

39. AN F] BB A E s

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
SEMALL/ BRI R ERTRAMERR/ RABFRiGBEAE
MEQEBHE RBH EMER/ REER 1 & L TEXRB TEERME
2024 2023
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 BIRIHE ey
RYBKXBEZGRAE] hE” EaiiE=Ri
201ME6H27H 300,000,000 &7z
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 50% * 50% * Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 19 April 2007 RMB8,000,000 KEERHE B
RYIFRBHREZTERLQT hE: EiiEpi
2007 4H198 AR#8,000,0007T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 November 2003 RMB90,000,000 hEERHE th
HEERWKESTARAT hE: EaiiE=Ri
2003118268 AR#90,000,0007T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50% * Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 hEERAE &
REBRNEBABHEREERT hE: EiiEpi
ARAE 201012838 AR 3,000,000
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC* Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 RMB94,567,500 KEERHE ey
RRBRNEBEBERESTARAE  PE- EaiiE=Ri
201269 A 248 AR 94,567,500 T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 hEERAE &
REBRNBEGKESTARLE  $E- st &R
201111 H178 AR #70,000,000 7T

Directly held by the Company.

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, the

Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since their respective date
of establishment/ acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as subsidiaries of the

Company.

Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which are
mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

ARG ) B SR DG 3 S A A A

2024 2023
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEx BEREET
Non-current assets FEREBMEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REMfEATZIKE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary JE ST — RS Bt BB N B3R 18 3,342.3 1,488.1
18,729.6 16,8754
Current assets mENE =
Amount due from a subsidiary i ST — R Bt /B8 2 T R 18 248.2 1,444.2
Cash and cash equivalents HERIEEEEB 41 5.6
252.3 1,449.8
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables HAhfE{T 18 34.4 18.8
Bank borrowings IRITER 793.6 4,366.8
Gold loans =EEEE 4,760.7 2,347.9
5,588.7 6,7335
Net current liabilities mEBEFH (5,336.4) (5,2837)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRAEE 13,393.2 11,591.7
Non-current liability FREBE
Bank borrowings RITEMR 3,342.3 1,488.1
10,050.9 10,103.6
Capital and reserves B i
Share capital A% 7K 9,987.7 10,000.0
Reserves &t 63.2 103.6
10,050.9 10,103.6
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND ~ 40.
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

A ) B 5 5K 0 3 I i e 4 B )

Reserves
f# &
Share-based
Share Share payment Retained

capital premium reserve profits Total

i 7% MR} iR % 1 3 B 1 R iR #ast

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BERET BEET BEET BERET

At 1 April 2022 R2022%481H 10,000.0 898.7 - 9.3 10,908.0

Profit and total comprehensive FARER R W =R - - - 4,195.6 4,195.6
income for the year

Dividends i 4] - (898.7) - (4,101.3) (5,000.0)

At 31 March 2023 R202343H31H 10,000.0 - - 103.6 10,103.6

Profit and total comprehensive FRNIBEHN RS R5E - - - 12,573.7 12,573.7
income for the year

Employees' share-based payments 12 & B 1 R B - - 6.0 - 6.0

Cancellation of buy-back shares = 8 @ B R 1 (12.3) - - (122.6) (134.9)

Dividends i’ E - - - (12,497.5) (12,497.5)

At 31 March 2024 R202453H31H 9,987.7 - 6.0 57.2 10,050.9
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RGO

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and UNTRAKEBERENFEEHEREURE ER
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial BEME, MKEERRERBEFRNGSIERE.
information are extracted from the consolidated financial statements

in the annual reports.

For the year ended 31 March

HEIHANOLFEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BE#ET BEET
Revenue ExB 56,750.8 70,163.8 98,937.7 94,684.4 108,713.0
Gross profit ERF 16,096.2 20,074.7 22,339.7 211715 22,285.0
Profit for the year FE A 2,9831 61761 6,879.9 5,489.5 6,607.2

As at 31 March

iK3A31H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BHEET BEET BERET BHEET BEET

Total assets BEERRE 65,2434 64,308.2 87,737.3 87,340.5 88,819.0

Total liabilities BE#ESE 38,2526 32,740.6 53,182.6 53,980.7 62,073.4

Net assets BEEFHR 26,990.8 31,567.6 34,554.7 33,359.8 26,745.6
268 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

]:J‘L 2 Iz 'L:H_

INVESTOR CALENDAR B&EH H &

FY2024 annual results announcement 2024 I BUAE B & 47 JE BN 4

13 June 2024 2024 6 H13H

AGM JBE R 3H AR K g

24 July 2024 2024%7H24H

Proposed payment of final dividend A U 4R R T i R

on or about 20 August 2024 20248 H 20 Hay il

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive) 7 BB Ay i 5 T R R AN )
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM MEEHERRAFAGLRE ERE
19 to 24 July 2024 2024 7H19BHE24H

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend o e 50 1 3 2 SR K HA AR B B RE R
2 August 2024 2024 8H2H

SHARE INFORMATION JBe Ay 5 L

Company name YNEIEA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited BXERESBEGRL

Listing Ll

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BBIZAT

Stock code JB 53 AR 5%

1929 1929

Listing date T H

15 December 2011 201112 H15H

Board lot size (EER R f XA

200 shares 200 f&

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2024 2024 4E3 A 31 A B # 47 kA
9,987,736,800 shares 9,987,736,800 f&

Index constituent T A 1B

Hang Seng Index 18 2 5 81

Hang Seng Composite Index EELRTIEE

Hang Seng Composite LargeCap Index EEGREKERIEE

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index BEDE(SE LM )100¥

Hang Seng Stock Connect Greater Bay Area Composite Index ELEREBENEREZSE

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index B4 O FF B3 R 1B SR 15 &)

Hang Seng ESG 50 Index B4 ESG50 68

MSCI China Index MSCI o B 45 81

Dow Jones Sustainability Asia Pacific Index 1B T8 H O] 5 48 3 Je 52 K18 81
Annual Report 2024 Information for Investors 269
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SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

JBe SR e 25

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please

write to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

e-mail:  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Shareholders can obtain the annual or interim report of the Company
by writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic

version from our Group website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

B BTHERSE, URMEE. E0ESoyihit
REAKRE, FUZEAAENERMANSERHNEEZ
SEENE

BEBARELEARAT
SBERBE165
ERERDIN7 18

E5E ;. (852) 2980-1333
fE : (852) 2810-8185
EH) :  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

RRMEBEEALBHERMASTBRNIBEBENE
LNEREUR QNS F R P RS, sV B MBI SKE FE
RS E TR

LHH B R

For more information about the Group, please visit
www.ctfiewellerygroup.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at
38/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

ARNEKEFR, HHE
www.ctfjewellerygroup.com

EPMNREEEFERDEEMBHLE
BEEREXKEDP16-18 9%
it SR K S 3818

Tel: (852) 2524-3166 TS (852) 2524-3166
Fax: (852) 2526-9178 BHE . (852) 2526-9178
e-mail:  ir@chowtaifook.com FH : ir@chowtaifook.com
GENERAL INFORMATION — g R

Headquarters and principal place of business KR B A k2 2 M

in Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

270 Additional Information
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BBEBKEP16-18 58
MR KEI3E

ERlEE 4

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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GLOSSARY

60l %

THFY
TFE FH+45F

2HFY
AIEFE T+ 5

Articles

gl

ASP
THEE

Board
4
CIS

AN

Company/ Chow Tai Fook
VNNV PN ]

Directors

BF

FY
U 2ES

Gem-set Jewellery
PhEF X

Gold jewellery and products

ETEMMRER

Group
KE/ KNEKE

Hong Kong, China/ Hong Kong

PEEE/ BB

Karat gold/ K-gold
K

Annual Report 2024
2024 F5R

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September
MFE L4, #Z9H30H1EVEA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MRFEETHE, #E3ANHILENEA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended or supplemented from time to time)

RASEBERMA (ERFETNHR )

average selling price

188 85 1 4

the board of directors of the Company
VNS o Sy

counter-in-shop in POS

REERAKENEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code:1929)
FREHRESEEEGRAE (RN 1929)

directors of the Company

RABIES

financial year, 1 April to 31 March
AR1BZE3IAN BT KEE

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

EMMEAEOREORENED

gold jewellery and products sold by weight or at fixed price. Fixed price gold products include
those with substantial amount of art work, delicate designs and licensed gold products
REBYEEEBEENETEMRER, CEREEREOERSEEN T Z2KXN R,
et AR EENEE ZE o

the Company and its subsidiaries

VANNSIDNEY )= PN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China
hEARZNMBSBRFAINTHE

jewellery products made from gold alloy
LA = & A B S i 2 o

Glossary 271
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Listing Rules
LR

Macau, China/ Macau
hE Py / R

Mainland China/ the Mainland
A/ Al

POS
TEE

Retail Sales Value/ RSV
TEME

Same Store

& &

Same Store Sales/ SSS
[B& tH &

Same Store Sales Growth/ SSSG
E/EHEEBR

SFO
BHF R AERH

SIS
JE B s

Stock Exchange
B 32 Pl

Tier I, 1, 11l, IV and other cities
—H#R. THR. =4 D047
K ELAt 4y 1

272 Additional Information
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Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBHNERZMBRAB#ES EHRA

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China
hiE ARFAE IR RITEHRE

the mainland of the People's Republic of China
ch# AR ILADE A ith

points of sale
ERTER

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REENMABNEMRENBENGESEBFTBEONESHEERNRETEE( 8
VIESBEE-1

BiE BB,

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have been
operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BrRI—EREEJEEENREGRM BB RNABFINEESER

"Same store sales" for FY2024 is the RSV from the self-operated POS of CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY existing as at 31 March 2024 and which have been opened prior to 1 April 2022. RSV
from franchised POS and other channels are not included

2024 M BFEE BEHE IS, EREMR2022F 45 1 HAIMREIR 20245 3H31H
MABEFNREAXRKEEETEHNZTEE, HAAENREERLRAMRENZTERE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable POS in
the corresponding period in the previous financial year, measured at constant exchange rates

LAAE [B] B 22 L B4 2 BA Pl B B 5 S &S B — BF IR FE R BB ol tE 2 S R SH &

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BBIEDIESNEEF R LR

shop-in-shop in POS
REEEANKISE P&

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless otherwise specified

PRIFARBER, SAIBESBEHSIZMERA

for the list of cities, please refer to the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New First Tier
Cities were grouped under Tier Il cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 30
May 2023

AN MsFHRGF2H(E S ) E MO mEFRAES. [
BMHEZGENT, m2R 2023458 30 A MHEHES

— &Ry | REPIBI T PR
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This annual report is printed on FSC® Certified and other controlled material. Pulps used are chlorine-free and
acid-free. The FSC® logo identifies products which contain wood from well-managed forests certified in
accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council® .
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THE UNAUDITED KEY OPERATIONAL DATA FROM 1 APRIL TO 31 MAY 2024

From 1 April to 31 May 2024, the year-on-year changes of RSV and SSS are as follows:

(% change compared to the same period last year)

Group

RSV growth -20.2%
Hong Kong &
Macau of
China and
Mainland China other markets
RSV growth -18.8% -29.0%
Contribution to Group RSV 87.7% 12.3%
Hong Kong &
Mainland China Macau of China
SSSG -27.6% -32.0%
SSS volume growth -39.7% -37.3%

SSSG by product

— Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery -32.9% -31.1%
— Gold jewellery and products -29.8% -34.6%

The unaudited key operational data from 1 April to 31 May 2024 was prepared based on the
latest available management accounts and the information currently available to the Group.
The position remains to be reviewed by the Company’s auditor.

By order of the Board
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 June 2024

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors are Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent,
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton,
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter and Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby; and the independent non-executive directors
are Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond,
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily, Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina and
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric.
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